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Our Vision
“A winning province through Sport & Recreation.”

Our Mission
“We will maximise opportunities through the promotion and

development of sustained Sport and Recreation Programmes
to improve the quality of life of the citizens of KwaZulu-Natal.”
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Foreword by
the MEC

Mr Speaker, Honourable Premier, Cabinet Colleagues and Members of
House, it is an honour for me to table the Annual Report of the
KwaZulu-Natal Department of Sport and Recreation for the 2007/2008
financial year.

Sport participation remains generally low and skewed in South Africa.
Only around 30% of citizens participate in sport, with poorer communities
still excluded, in particular due to a lack of infrastructure and programs.
Yet there are many sport development initiatives taking place in
KwaZulu-Natal. The primary drivers of these programs are Government

and the Department of Sport and Recreation has ensured that the poorest of the poor athletes are accorded
opportunities to participate in sport and recreation events throughout the length and breadth of the country.
There is a resurgent interest in sport in the province and the department has been able to rise to the challenge
in spite of the limited human and financial resources.

Devdevelopment
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Foreword by the MEC

Sustainable development is very important for the new ideas of
sport, development and peace, therefore cooperation between all
stakeholders, communities, NGOs, sport federations, development
bodies and government would ensure that participation in sport
becomes a right. “The right to play should become a human right.”

Over the past year the department has made giant strides in
developing and promoting sport and recreation in the remotest parts
of the Province. It has achieved these targets by fostering and
strengthening its partnerships with local government, community
organizations and sport federations. The department has succeeded
in granting access to athletes from all walks of life to sport and recreation
programmes – from simple mass based recreation activities to provincial
and national competitions.

It is important that the programmes of Sport and Recreation are
aligned to the policy pronouncements as contained in Government’s
Programme of Action, the Millenium Development Goals and ASGI-
SA.  Sport and recreation has a responsibility to promote national
identity and social cohesion, and we hope that our participation in
sport and recreational events in 2008 will unite us as a province and
ensure that we improve on our performances.

With KwaZulu-Natal triumphant at the recent SA Games (24-28
September 2007) in Bloemfontein, Government’s commitment to
development was beginning to pay off and we are beginning to deliver
on the mandate of “restoring the Province to its former glory”. These
Games serve not only as a breeding ground for talent from the far
corners of our Province but also as an opportunity to  educate the
youth about doping, HIV/AIDS and the merits of fair play. Our aim is
to prepare these athletes for the future and use the Games to
compliment the department’s high performance programme.

Let us therefore use Games such as these to redress some of the
disparities of the past with regards to equal opportunities, access to
infrastructure, equipment and kit, skills and skilled coaches, referees
and efficient managers. Federations must be encouraged to flood these
Games with their scouts and ensure that emerging talent flows into
their nurseries.

The above statement becomes more relevant when one considers
the country’s dismal showing in Beijing, 2008. Team SA won six medals
at the Athens Games in 2004 – one gold, three silver and two bronze.
Four years later the country is licking its wounds, wondering what went
wrong. The department will shortly produce its position paper on what
went wrong in Beijing but at this early stage we can offer the following
solution – Investment! Investment in the people and the expertise of
their coaches and management structures, which filters down to the
athletes. South Africa needs to find an event, maybe two, on which to
concentrate and become world leaders. Sport and youth work should
be more closely linked because of the enormous influence sport has
on positive and cohesive transformation of societies, particularly on
the self-esteem and self-confidence of young people.

There is incredible talent in the country which is not being tapped.
By perpetuating the myth of “traditionally white sports codes” we are
keeping our pool very limited and hampering our potential as a nation.
Sadly though, this attitude in sport is reflective of the rest of society.
In KwaZulu-Natal we must focus on building invincible teams that we
can all be proud of and all believe in. Together with the Department
of Local Government and Traditional Affairs (DLGTA) the department
has focused on the provision of basic sports facilities in disadvantaged
communities and it is high time to implement a provincial high
performance centre with satellite academies inland to address
the disparities of the past and to ensure that our youth have a fighting
chance of progressing into becoming permanent fixtures in our
national teams.
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The Department of Sport and Recreation focused its efforts on the
following high leverage Programmes:

• Development Programmes with Spor ts Federations.

• Infrastructure Development.

• African Renaissance Programmes-Rural Horse Riding and
Indigenous Games.

• Community Recreation Programmes focusing on Active Seniors
and Rehabilitation of Vulnerable Groups.

• Football Enrichment  Initiatives.

• Siyadlala Community Mass Par ticipation Programme.

• School Sport Mass Participation Programme.

• Club Development.

• Equity Programmes focusing on Women and Athletes with Disability.

• South African Games.

With the launch of the Mass Participation Programme in 2005 the
department committed itself to taking sport to the people. This was
informed by the observation of how sport had died in most communities.
I have traveled from the rural and desolate areas such as Kwasani in
Sisonke to the dusty villages of Jozini in Northern KwaZulu-Natal.
Everywhere you can see the evidence that sport is back in our townships
and villages. Our youth are crying out for our moral and logistical
support. The idea has been to increase participation and organization
at a very local level and in this way development and social integration
will be assured.

South African Sport is not just about rugby and soccer and the
selection of Springbok or Bafana Bafana teams. Yet those events also
play an important role in building or undermining nation-building. Our
Mass Participation Programme also contributed to the National Youth
Service by recruiting and training more than 650 unemployed young
people who are running programmes in communities. Each of these
volunteers are paid a monthly stipend and research has shown that a
number of these volunteers have gone on to secure permanent
employment with sports federations or provincial government
departments. This has been Sport and Recreation’s contribution to
the Joint Initiative for Priority Skills Acquisition (JIPSA) and the
Millennium Development Goals (MDGs).

The department’s School Sport Mass Participation Programme
(SSMPP) focuses on mass participation in sport amongst learners from
previously disadvantaged urban and rural schools. It encourages

exclusivity through the involvement of able bodied as well as learners
with special needs. Kwazulu-Natal is the leading province in respect of
School Sport Mass Participation Programme. In 2007/2008 the excellent
partnership with the Department of Education benefited 321 schools
(159 in 2006/2007), 18 clusters, 1,734 accredited educators, 152,000
learners, recruitment and training of 171 youth in the community and
343 youth were employed and paid a monthly stipend. In addressing
the priority of resourcing poor schools, R45,000 of equipment was
supplied to each of the 321 schools.

The successful implementation of both the mass participation
programmes initiated the introduction of the Club Development
Programme in 2007 which focused on the establishment of clubs to
ensure the sustained involvement of communities in sport and
recreation. Federations are performing way below par in organising
community clubs. This in turn has a negative effect on the retention
and development of school athlete’s talent. Federations go for ready-
made talent. The department has to continually to bridge the gap
between school sport and senior sport. Human resource development,
infrastructure provisioning and initiating local leagues are the key
components of our Club Development Programme. It tries to take
mobilisation (MPP) to organisation (Club Development). Local
predominant interests guides where we should begin.

With the baton for hosting the 2010 Football World Cup firmly in
the hands of South Africa we cannot but over-emphasize the need for
all of us to throw our weight behind the Province and the country as
a whole as we attempt to finally get out of our starting blocks and
power our way into the home straight. Glory days beckon but first we
must unite behind the Nation’s initiatives in hosting the “best ever
Football World Cup” by ensuring a co-ordinated effort in putting the
event together. We tend to undermine the impact of an event such as
the Football World Cup on the economy.  The economic impacts far
outweigh the sporting achievements, and are the key to economic
development, job creation, sporting and cultural development, raising
global visibility, tourism and the promotion of civic pride and social
unity. Both the French and Germans gained strongly from hosting the
World Cup tournaments, and South Africa should do the same before,
during and after the 2010 event.

The mandate of the department is to ensure participation and
sustainable development of sport and recreation with emphasis on
disadvantaged communities. The department has made great strides
in ensuring that our programmes target the youth in disadvantaged
and rural areas.

Junior Sport Programmes with the various sports federations;
competitive school sport programmes and the school sport mass
participation programme strive to accomplish the following:

• Promote excel lence through s truc tured spor t  and
recreation programmes.
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Foreword by the MEC

• Promote tolerance across diverse cultural groups through sport
and recreation activities.

• Provide effective, efficient, monitoring and evaluation of all sport
and recreation functions.

• Promote the economic viability of sport and recreation for the
benefit of the community.

The mandate of the department is the promotion of sport and
recreation amongst communities, especially the most needy and
disadvantaged. This is informed by chapter 8 of the National
Constitution, Sport and Recreation Policy (1997) and Sport and
Recreation Act (Act No.110 of 1998) as amended. Recreation
programmes, specifically Rural Horse Riding and Indigenous Games
are part of the African Renaissance programmes of the province.
These are therefore flagship programmes.

In order to fulfill government electoral mandates the department
has a strategic plan spanning from 2005-2010. The strategic plan
outlines the vision, mission and broad goals to be achieved by the
department.

The support I have received from my colleagues in Cabinet, the
Head of the Department and her Officials as well as the Portfolio
Committee on Sport and Recreation has ensured that we collectively
deliver on sport and recreation in the province.  I am also encouraged
by the good wishes I have received from stakeholders and the renewed
enthusiasm amongst the officials and players which all bodes well in
“Creating a Winning Province through Sport and Recreation”.

Mr. A. Rajbansi, MPL
MEC: Sport and Recreation
31 August 2008
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General
Information

Sport has been and always will be an expression of important truths about
individuals, communities and nations - an expression of what binds us
together: language, traditions, institutions and above all, the values of
freedom, democracy and development; of supporting the poorer, the
weaker, and the smaller among us; of being joined together as partners
and as equals.

Government needs to advocate the development of policies to provide
young people with access to sport education in schools and that training
opportunities be available to teachers and coaches. In addition, young

people should be involved in shaping and implementing sport strategies, while national strategies and
programmes should be designed to address young people with special needs. These measures are aimed at
building teamwork, leadership, tolerance, understanding and co-operation. Government needs to nurture
the potential of young people through sport and youth programmes.
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General Information

2.1 SUBMISSION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

The Honourable MEC for Sport and Recreation
Mr A Rajbansi, MPL

The Annual Report 2007/2008 of the KwaZulu-Natal Department of Sport and Recreation is hereby submitted in terms of the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999).

The strategic goals, objectives and performance indicators of the Department of Sport and Recreation were aligned to the promotion,
participation and development of sport and recreation in the province which lends itself to an improved quality of life for the participants.
The department has focused on refining its policies, processes and systems to enhance the delivery of services. The mandates and directives
given to us were successfully carried out.

The visionary leadership of the MEC, Mr A. Rajbansi, commitment of officials and the co-operation of the sports federations, volunteers and
other stakeholders have been the main ingredient in a winning team.

Mrs S Khan
Head of Department
Accounting Officer: Vote 16
Department of Sport and Recreation
KwaZulu-Natal
31 August 2008
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General Information

2.2 INTRODUCTION BY THE HEAD OF THE DEPARTMENT

The 2007/2008 financial year signified the end of four years of the
department’s existence.

During the first three years the department focused on establishing
a sound foundation for the administration of the department such as
securing suitable office accommodation, IT infrastructure, implementing
administrative policies and procedures, defining an organisational
structure and the filling of the funded vacant posts.

In this the fourth year, the review, amendments, refining and
implementing of policies and procedures began in earnest to enable
all officials to operate effectively and efficiently within the boundaries
that have been set.

The implementation of supply chain management has greatly
assisted in the proper planning of projects, programmes and events
when preparing the procurement plan. The alignment of the
procurement plan to the annual performance plan has prevented items
from being procured at the last minute thus causing undue pressure
and delays. Greater attention has been focused on internal controls,
internal audit, risk management and performance information.

Whilst our services have always been delivered as per the Municipal
Demarcation of KwaZulu-Natal, the organisational re-structuring and
re-alignment process undertaken during the period under review, has
ensured that we align the structure and the operations of the department
to the Provincial Spatial and Economic Development Strategy.

In attempting to mobilise the masses the focus has been on the
priority codes of sport that lend itself to encouraging greater
participation and those that have the ability to provide accolades

(more medals) during international participation. The Mass
Participation Programme has once again achieved its objective of
“getting the nation to play” and “getting more South Africans, more
active, more often”.

The programmes within the different sub directorates have targeted
a broader spectrum of our clients from learners, athletes, women,
athletes with disability, senior citizens, youth and inmates of correctional
service institutions, students at tertiary institutions, street children and
public service employees. The lack of sport and recreation facilities in
the Province is still a major challenge when it comes to 'getting the
nation to play' and maximizing opportunities for previously
disadvantaged communities to produce athletes capable of performing
at highest levels. 

 Most District Municipalities are mainly rural with little or no facilities
at all to cater for different codes of sport.  In some areas there are only
football grounds (gravel). This poses an urgent challenge to the
department and federations in their quest to promote various sporting
codes in the Province.  Since its establishment as a stand alone

department focusing on sport and recreation, providing facilities has
become one of the main functions and flagship programmes of the
KwaZulu-Natal  Depar tment of  Spor t  and Recreat ion.

It should therefore not come as a surprise that considering the
needs/priorities of municipalities (IDP), 2010 FIFA World Cup legacy
initiatives, Treasury’s poverty ratings, initiatives for massification of
projects and other challenges given in the background above, the
department allocated R24.1 million during the 2007/2008 financial
year for the provision of sport and recreation facilities in the province.

The commitment of the departmental staff and their passion for
sport and recreation has been the winning ingredient for the department
to achieve its goals and objectives. The department has also successfully
delivered the Government’s Programme of Action where the
department’s activities have been aligned to the Apex of Priorities.

In particular, the following Apex of Priorities as identified by the
Social Sector Cluster have been addressed through our major
flagship programmes:

Promotion of Social Cohesion

• The South African Games contributed to the promotion of National
Identity where sport and recreation was used as a means of achieving
social cohesion. 520 Athletes including, athletes with disability
competed in 14 codes of sport against the other 8 provinces.
KwaZulu-Natal emerged as winners of the major multi-coded
sporting event.

• The Indigenous Games Programme has been further developed
with the formation of Indigenous Games Councils, Indigenous
Games Technical Committees and the presentation of Indigenous
Games Festivals. The Indigenous Games programme is recognised
as one of the department’s African Renaissance Programmes.

• The Rural Horse Riding Programme has grown considerably thus
ensuring its sustainability. Capacity building and weekly programmes
in horse care has provided owners with much needed know-how
in grooming and care of animals. The last year has seen the formation
of eight district associations and the provincial event has benefitted
4000 people. This programme is part of the Province’s African
Renaissance Programmes.

• The department’s involvement with the Comrades Marathon has
assisted disadvantaged athletes gain access to this world class event.

• In 2007/2008 the department began its programme celebrating
national and international days via sport and recreation programmes.
Signature events such as the Rural Girls Games during Women’s
Month, , Sport and Recreation as a Human Right and Indigenous
Games to celebrate Heritage Day form part of the department’s
initiatives to add significance to these national/international days.
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Comprehensive Health Care

• The Siyadlala Mass Participation Programme has promoted positive
and healthy lifestyles. Training was provided in life skills, first aid,
event management and sports administration.

• Hub festivals were held in all 65 hubs.

• 80 Clubs were formed as part of the department’s Club
Development Programme. This was achieved in partnership with
sport federations.

Community Infrastructure

• Provision of sport and recreation facilities in areas of most need.

• The department’s development of infrastructure included the
construction of basic sports facilities, and the upgrading and
rehabilitation of existing sports fields.

• The department persevered with the provision of swimming pools
and combo-courts in deep rural areas.

Broadening access and improving the quality of Education

• The department has provided 321 schools with sports equipment,
human resources and access to sport and recreation competitions
and festivals via the School Sport Mass Participation Programme.

• Development of capacity of volunteers in the mass
participation programme.

• Structural transformation of sports codes has been prioritised.

• Continued emphasis has been placed on programmes to improve
the capacity of sports administrators, technical officials, coaches
and volunteers.

Implement anti-poverty strategy

• Training unemployed youth to deliver sport and recreation
programmes in communities.

• Provision of temporary and permanent jobs to youth,
women and athletes with disability via the infrastructure
development programme.

• Focus on BBBEE and SMMEs as per the SCM policy

The cluster system has ensured our close co-operation and
collaboration with various other departments and entities namely;

• Local Government in the provision of infrastructure, roll-out of
the community and school sport mass participation programmes
and delivery of community sport projects.

• Education – via Competitive School Sport Programmes, School
Sport Mass Participation Programme, for which the department
received commendation from the National Minister of Sport and
Recreation, Rev Dr MA Stofile. The collaboration protocol between
the two departments was signed in August 2007.

• Social Development and Correctional Services in implementing
the recreation programmes for senior cit izens and
prisons respectively.

• Health in terms of the health promotions and healthy
lifestyles project.

• Office of the Premier for 2010 projects, inter-governmental and
international relations.

• SAPS in sport against crime activities.

• Joint initiatives with the Economic Cluster departments.

It must be emphasised that Sport and Recreation has a critical role
to play in ensuring that active and healthy lifestyles are promoted, and
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that our youth enjoy holistic development through the provision of an
academic programme that is supported by those elements that add
aesthetic value. Through mass participation and recreation, we have
identified many talented players who have been enlisted into the more
formal sports structures. Despite the many challenges our efforts have
been rewarded by the many successes that the department has achieved.

2.3 INFORMATION ON THE MINISTRY

'Transforming South Africa into a country that belongs to all who
live in it, united in our diversity' remains our fundamental mandate.
Sport and recreation must necessarily contribute to our country’s
transformation agenda - an agenda which seeks to create a non-racial,
non-sexist, prosperous and peaceful South Africa. Sport must contribute
towards redressing the disparities of the past: equal opportunities,
access to infrastructure, access to equipment and kit and equal access
to skills and skilled coaches, referees and efficient managers.

The preamble to our Constitution declares South Africa to belong
“to all who live in it, united in our diversity.” Non-racialism and non-
sexism are added to human dignity, equality and human rights mentioned
in the preamble. The transformation agenda needs to transform those
who must drive it in the first place, black and white. By transformation
we do not simply confine ourselves to the demographics of national
teams. Sport must contribute in an improved situation in the health of
our people. It must contribute to the reduction of substance abuse
and criminal activities. Above all, sport must contribute to the provision
of infra-structure in our communities and in human resource
development and participation in the economy.

For this reason the Ministry for Sport and Recreation in the Province
believes in the ethos that development must work at forging linkages
with other governments and organizations. Our collaboration with
sport federations is critical as this is where the players are. This way,
we believe we can truly make a contribution to the attainment of the
Millennium Development Goals. We will recall those heady days post-
1990 and particularly from 1991 onwards, when sport led the way in
uniting the disparate federations; since then we seem to have lost
impetus and more importantly lasting impact.

One of the first challenges we faced upon taking up office was the
restructuring of sport. In the process of restructuring, it has been clear
that our progress has been severely hampered by the lack of a sports
plan to guide our endeavours. We are addressing this. The department’s
main thrust has been mass participation and development. There is
ample evidence to demonstrate that sport and recreation has made a
difference to people's lives as well as to the communities in which
they live.

The social and economic value of sport lies at the heart of the case
for sport as it is a global phenomenon, an integral component of

modern society - some call it entertainment but it has become a global
business. In 1999, sport accounted for approximately two percent of
the gross domestic product (GDP) in South Africa, contributing R795
billion to our economy. Sport has delivered socially and economically
to nations but we need to leverage the impact of sport by guaranteeing
the quality of the overall sport systems to manage, direct and align the
entire sport system and to work collectively as government (through
all spheres) and the private sector towards common goals and objectives.

Government must ensure that for every unit of monetary investment
there are multiple returns in terms of:

• Provincial, regional and local community development.

• Community regeneration.

• Health.

• Disease prevention.

• Psychological well-being.

• Learning and productivity improvement.

• Poverty alleviation.

• Social policy areas (women, youth at risk, marginalised youth and
the aged).

• Employment opportunities.

Evidence highlights the positive impact of sport in relation to
creating stronger communities, addressing issues of community safety,
including reduction in anti-social behaviour, the propensity to commit
crime and reduction in the 'fear' of crime amongst the wider community.

The work performed by the Ministry for the 2007/2008 financial
year was predominantly related to consultation with various strategic
stakeholders.  The consultation process is aimed at gathering information
for the delivery of sport and recreation programmes to the remotest
parts of the province.  Sport and recreation plays a meaningful and
critical role in improving the quality of life of all people as it provides
for an active lifestyle. The policies are in line with the directives of the
President, in his State of the Nation address, the National Department
of Sport and Recreation, the Premier of the Province and His Majesty,
King Goodwill Zwelithini.

There are no institutions or public entities that report to the MEC.

The Ministry has not submitted any Bills to the legislature during
the financial year.
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2.4 VISION

“A winning province through Sport & Recreation.”

2.5 MISSION

“We will maximise opportunities through the promotion and
development of sustained Sport and Recreation Programmes to improve
the quality of life of the citizens of KwaZulu-Natal.”

2.6 LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MANDATES

The department is responsible for the promotion and development
of sport and recreation in KwaZulu-Natal. The responsibilities of the
department are mandated in terms of the following Acts:

The National Sport and Recreation Act, 1998 (Act  No. 110
of 1998)

This Act provides for the promotion and development of sport
and recreation and the co-ordination of the relationships between the
Sports Commission, national and recreation federations and other
agencies; to provide for measures aimed at correcting imbalances, to
promote equity and democracy; and to provide for dispute resolution
mechanisms in sport and recreation.  The National Sport and Recreation
Act, 1998 (Act No. 110 of 1998) has been amended by the National
Sport and Recreation Amendment Act, 2007 (Act No. 18 of 2007).
This Act was accented to on 12 November 2007.

The National Sport and Recreation Amendment Act, 2007
(Act No. 18 of 2007)
The Amendment Ac t  includes ,  amongst  others ,  the
following changes:

• Certain new bodies have been created and new definitions inserted.

• “High Performance Sport” is now defined as high level participation
in major international sporting events including but not limited to
world championships and other international multi-sport events
such as Commonwealth Games, Olympic Games, Paralympic Games
and All Africa Games.

• “National Federations” are defined as a National Governing Body
of a code of sport or recreational activity in the Republic recognised
by the relevant international controlling body as the only authority
for the administration and control of the relative code of sport or
recreational activity in the Republic.” The previous definition
excluded “recreational activity”

• Sports Commission has been deleted.

• “Sports Confederation” is defined as the Confederation recognised
by the Minister as the National Coordinating Macro-body for the
promotion and development of high performance sport.

The Sport and Recreation Amendment Act makes provision for
the promotion and development of sport and recreation and the
coordination of the relationships between Sport and Recreation South
Africa and the Sports Confederation (SASCOC), national federations
and other agencies. In relation to high performance sport, a government
ministry, department, province or local authority may consult with the
Sports Confederation. The Sports Confederation must coordinate all
activities relating to high performance sport including team preparations
and must consult with all the relevant sport bodies in that regard.

The Act provides for measures aimed at correcting imbalances and
provides for dispute resolution mechanisms in sport and recreation.
The Act calls for National Federations to assume full responsibility for
the safety issues within their sport and recreation disciplines and allows
the Minister to determine policy instituting necessary affirmative action
controls which will ensure that national teams reflect all parties involved
in the process. The effect of all of this is that the government must
prevent lower standards from being adopted. We need to curtail the
number of foreign players and officials plying their trade in this country
whilst at the same time we would need to look inwards.

The Act also makes provision for women, youth, disabled, senior
citizens and neglected rural areas to receive priority regarding delivery
of sport and recreation.

The White Paper on Sport and Recreation (Revised)
This white paper gives effect to stated government policy of a

better life for all and to get the nation to play.  Cognisance is taken of the
imbalances which exist between the advantaged urban and the
disadvantaged rural communities; the strategic vision and policy for
the development of sport and recreation and the need for South Africa
to take its rightful place in the global sporting community.

This White Paper indicates that in the governance of Sport and
Recreation at the provincial level, the Member of the Executive
Council (MEC) and the Provincial Sport and Recreation (Department)
are charged with the responsibility of:

• Policy development, within the context of the national sport and
recreation policy, with the principal agents being provincial
federations and macro bodies.

• Implementation of recreation policy, via the Provincial Recreation
Councils (PRORECs). The Province of KwaZulu-Natal does not
have this Council.

• Funding of the above agencies.

• Upgrading of facilities as created by local authorities, for national
and provincial events.

In addition, for the operational duties of the MEC and the Provincial
Department of Sport and Recreation, it states – The provincial structures
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are one step closer to the delivery of sport and recreation than their
national counterparts. They serve to:

• Make sport and recreation accessible to all people in the province.

• Provide the infrastructure required for sport and recreation and
its maintenance.

• Ensure the existence of programs that develop the human resource
potential in sport and recreation.

• Develop a policy framework for the governance of sport and
recreation in the province that is in concert with the national sport
and recreation policy.

• Coordinate the involvement of the various departments of the
Provincial Government, to ensure congruence with Provincial Sport
and Recreation Policy.

• Effect international agreements, as reached by Sport and Recreation
SA for the purpose of sharing technology, skills transfer and the
development of sport and recreation.

An extensive process was launched by SRSA at the beginning of
2007 to take stock of the strategies that guide the work of SRSA as
national government department responsible for sport and recreation.
As a first step the 5-year Strategic Plan of SRSA was updated and
submitted to Parliament in April 2007. Once this was accomplished
the more challenging task of revising the White Paper and creating a
National Plan for Sport was tackled. In the first phase a draft framework
for the revised White Paper was drawn up in collaboration with the
chief directorates in SRSA. This internal consultative process resulted
in a first draft of the key strategic objectives that could impact on the
development continuum of sport and recreation.

The developmental triangle which has been a conceptual guideline
for sport since the days of the former National Sports Commission
(NSC) is to be retained (see figure on the next page).

The five proposed objectives that should support the sports
development system and form the basis for the White Paper include:

•  Creating an accountable, coordinated, responsible sports system.

•  Developing and promoting healthy and sporting communities.

•  Ensure a winning, transformed and proud sporting nation (in which
all South African’s take part).

• Creating and developing a sustainable and empowered
sports economy.

• Ensuring South Africa participates and influences the direction of
sport in the continent and globally.
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General Information

Sports Science and Sports Medicine

Education and Training

Communication

Governance and Legislation

Infrastructure

Major Events

International liaisonTransformation

Financial

SAPS

SANDF

Tertiary
Sport

Correctional
Services

International

National

Provincial

Club

School ( Competitive and Physical Education)

Mass Participation/Recreation
Social business and govt leagues

Indigenous Games

Other legislation:

• Constitution of the Republic of South Africa Act, 1996 (Act No.
108 of 1996), Schedule 5.

• The Bill of Rights – focusing especially on equality, freedom of
association, labour relations, sport and recreation and just
administrative action (basic values/principles and the public service).

• The South African Boxing Act, 2001 (Act No. 11 of 2001).

• Second 2010 FIFA World Cup South Africa Special Measures Bill,
07 September 2006.

• Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999, as 
amended) and Treasury Regulations.

• Annual Division of Revenue Act, 2008 (Act No. 2 of 2008).

• Public Service Act, 1994 (Act No. 103 of 1994) and Public
Service Regulations.

• Labour Relations Act ,  1995 (Act No. 66 of 1995).

• KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Supply Chain Management Policy
Framework (2006).

• Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act , 2000
(Act No. 5 of 2000).
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Programme
Performance
3.1 AIM OF THE VOTE

The aim of the vote is to promote participation and development
of both Sport and Recreation in the Province which lends itself to an
improved quality of life for the participants. The department expects
to achieve these targets by fostering and strengthening its partnerships
with local government, community organizations and sport federations
through simple mass based recreation activities to provincial and
national competitions.

3.2 STRATEGIC GOALS, CHALLENGES, PROGRAMMES
AND ACHIEVEMENTS

3.2.1   STRATEGIC GOALS
The Department has four strategic goals:

• Goal 1:  Promotion, transformation and development of Sport and
Recreation to address the issues of nation building and quality
of life.

The department has the task of promoting and facilitating the
participation of the citizens of KwaZulu-Natal in sport and recreation

to ensure the transformation of Sport and Recreation by adopting
a developmental approach.

• Goal 2: Promote and contribute to economic growth and
opportunities through Sport and Recreation.

The intention is to develop excellence in sport and recreation which
will promote the province resulting in economic growth.

• Goal 3: Promote and contribute to good governance in
Sport and Recreation

Towards good governance and compliance with the Public Finance
Management Act and other legislation the department will continue
to ensure that the necessary systems and processes are developed and
implemented to ensure state resources are optimally utilised. The
department also has the responsibility of promoting good government
in terms of administrative and financial management amongst
federations and sporting bodies to which financial assistance is provided
by the department.

• Goal 4: Provision of an effective and efficient support service.

achachievements
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The department will ensure that adequate support services in the
form of the Ministry, Head of Department, Financial Management and
Corporate Services are provided to complement and enhance
service delivery.

3.2.2 SUMMARY OF SERVICE DELIVERY ENVIRONMENT
AND CHALLENGES

KwaZulu-Natal, the 3rd largest province is predominantly rural and
characterized by high levels of poverty and a lack of resources with a
population of approximately 9 million. Historically, sport and recreation
development has mainly benefited citizens residing in the urban areas.
The neighbouring and rural areas were ignored due to policy at the
time as well as the vastness of the area. There is a need for us to extend
our services to these communities and areas to transform sport and
recreation in the province.

The National Department of Sport and Recreation has identified
priority codes of sport. There needs to be transformation and
development in these priority codes.  For transformation to occur at
grass root levels there must be structured development programmes.
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The levels of development programmes vary across the priority
codes and funding is required to level the playing field for these codes.

The sport federations are key stakeholders of the department and
there must be a close working relationship between the department
and the federations to develop and promote sport. Not all the priority
codes of federations have structures at a district level and the
administration of a few of the federations is not optimal.  These 2
factors affect service delivery at a grass root level in terms of making
sport accessible to all especially the previously disadvantaged.

A number of elite athletes have already been identified in the
province; however, there is inadequate support for these athletes to
ensure they achieve high performance to deliver to their
maximum potential.

The lack of adequate Sport and Recreation facilities also poses a
significant challenge, impacting on the actual programmes and the
events that the department can facilitate. It is estimated that the backlog
of facilities is in the region of 3,585 in KwaZulu-Natal. The municipalities
are the implementing agents for the sport facilities, however delays in
signing service level agreements, lack of capacity within municipalities
and with service providers has an adverse effect on delivering the facility
within prescribed timeframes.

There is currently no electronic database of sport and recreation
statistics and information such as number of coaches, athletes, facilities
etc.  The department has to work on gathering the data, capturing and
maintaining the data on an electronic database.

3.2.3 SUMMARY OF ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT
AND  CHALLENGES

Significant progress has been made in filling the department’s
organisational structure.  By the end of March 2009 the department
would have filled all 205 funded posts. However the 205 funded posts
is only 64% of the total approved organisational structure. This still
poses a challenge for the department as there is a lack of capacity in
implementing programmes to a district and local municipal level, and
to a grass root level as sport and recreation is labour intensive.

The department currently has district offices in eThekwini,
uMgungundlovu, Zululand and Uthukela. The department is in the
process of setting up district offices in Ugu and uThungulu. The
department was also allocated additional funding in 2009/2010 for
further district offices in Amanjuba, Umkhanyakude and Sisonke.
Therefore by 31 March 2010 there will be 9 district offices.  There will
still be a need to establish 2 additional district offices as district offices
are required in all 11 district municipal areas.

The growth of the department through the establishment of district
offices poses a challenge for the organisation in terms of implementing
effective communication and reporting channels.

As the department progresses each year and refines its business
processes to maximise service delivery the organisational structure
needs to be revisited to ensure there is alignment.

3.2.4 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW AND KEY POLICY 
DEVELOPMENTS FOR THE 2007/2008 FINANCIAL YEAR

The department has determined its policies and priorities
as follows:

• To transform Sport and Recreation through a progressive and
developmental approach.

• To promote the participation of sport and recreation to the masses.

• To develop sports infrastructure throughout the province and
especially in the rural areas.

• To ensure collaboration between sports federations and tertiary
institutions, to facilitate sport development and high performance.

• To create a legacy for sport and recreation in the province.

• To strengthen co-operative governance with the Departments of
Local Government and Traditional Affairs, Education, Health and
Social Development.
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• To expand the Mass Participation Programmes (School Sport Mass
Participation, Siyadlala and Club Development) and;

• To host and co-host major provincial, national and international
sporting events.

3.2.5 PROGRAMMES
It is important that the programmes of Sport and Recreation are

aligned to the policy pronouncements as contained in Government’s
Programme of Action, the Apex of Priorities, Millennium Development
Goals and ASGI-SA.  Sport and Recreation has a responsibility to
promote national identity and social cohesion, and the department’s
development and sport promotion programmes has fostered unity
and instilled a sense of pride in our athletes as they strove to improve
on their performances in 2007. The department’s development
initiatives have been aimed at forging linkages with other governments
and organisations. Sport and Recreation can boast of making a significant
contribution to the attainment of the Millennium Development Goals,
Section seven (1): “participation in sport and recreation is recognised
by the United Nations (UN) as a fundamental human right and all
governments must ensure access for all their people.” Equality of access
and opportunity to participate in physical activity has been made
available to all, including those with disabilities and chronic illness.

The department operates through 2 Programmes: Administration
and Sport Coordination. These programmes are discussed below:

Programme 1: Administration
This programme caters for the overall management of the

department in accordance with national policy, PFMA and other
legislation and policies. The main aims of the programme are policy
formulation by the MEC, strategic planning and management by the
Head of Department, human resource management and auxiliary
services.  The Administration programme is responsible for the
development of policies and procedures and exercising control through
head office and district offices.

There are four sub-programmes contained within this
programme, namely:

• Office of the MEC.

• Office of the Head of Department.

• Financial Management.

• Corporate Services.

Programme 2: Sport Coordination
The purpose of this programme is to promote, develop, administer

and fund sport and recreation in the Province of KwaZulu-Natal. It
also ensures advancement of participation in sport and recreation,

talent identification, the promotion of performance excellence and to
facilitate the provision and upgrading of sport and recreation facilities
in partnership with local authorities.

 This programme also promotes the participation and development
in recreation and coordinates the provision and development of sport
and recreation facilities.

3.2.6 SUMMARY OF ACHIEVEMENTS FOR 2007/2008
Over the past year the department has made giant strides in

developing and promoting sport and recreation in the remotest parts
of the Province. It has achieved these targets by fostering and
strengthening its partnerships with local government, community
organizations and sport federations. The department has succeeded
in granting access to athletes from all walks of life to sport and recreation
programmes - from simple mass based recreation activities to provincial
and national competitions. In 2007/08 the department strategically
moved from a quantitative to a qualitative approach with the
implementation of its programmes across all components. With the
department’s focus on good corporate governance, human resource
development has become critical.

The following rate as the department’s critical success factors in
2007/2008:

• 80% Of our service delivery was targeted towards previously
disadvantaged areas and people, thus facilitating transformation. 

• The Minister of Sport and Recreation, the Rev Dr MA Stofile has
announced that KwaZulu-Natal was “the best performing Province
in the country”.

• We have received high commendation from the National
Department for the effective utilisation of the Conditional Grant.

• KwaZulu-Natal is the leading province in respect of School Sport
Mass Participation Programme. The excellent partnership with the
Department of Education has benefited 321 schools (159 in
2006/2007), 18 clusters, 1, 734 accredited educators, 152, 000
learners, recruitment and training of 171 youth in the community,
and 343 unemployed youth were employed and paid a monthly
stipend. In addressing the priority of resourcing poor schools,
R45,000 of equipment was supplied to each of the 321 schools.

• The Club Development Programme has yielded 80 registered clubs
in soccer and netball in the following areas: Nkandla, Msinga,
Mzimkhulu and Mtubatuba (Dukuduku Forest).

• In addressing shortages of skilled personnel in sport and recreation
the department conducted SETA accredited courses in event
management, life skills, first aid and event specific aspects of training
in 6 codes of sport. A total of 2, 335 volunteers were trained as

Programme Performance
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administrators, coaches (basic to level 1 and level 2) and technical
officials. 150 volunteers received SETA accredited training to
perform duty at the 20/20 Cricket World Cup and the FIFA 2010
Preliminary Draw in Durban. The Pro 20 Cricket World Cup afforded
the department with the opportunity of introducing this shorter
version of the game to masses of disadvantaged learners by busing
them into the Sahara Kingsmead Stadium to witness a live cricket
match for the first time.

• As part of its anti-poverty campaign and in addressing self-
employment in the second economy, the department employed
a total of 321 schools sports assistants and 18 cluster coordinators,
200 individuals received basic training in construction, grassing
and fencing and 650 youth are employed in the Community Mass
Participation Programmes across 61 municipalities. Each of these
employed youth is paid a monthly stipend of between
R1, 200 - R1, 800.

• Completion of 33 sport and recreation facilities covering
Umkhanyakude, Zululand, Uthungulu, Amajuba, Sisonke,
Umgungundlovu, Ugu, Ilembe, Uthukela and Umzinyathi. These
facilities range from basic sports fields, international standard
athletic tracks, swimming pools and combination courts. Due to
the nature of the construction, some of these projects are rolled
out over two financial years. In 2007/2008 the department’s
infrastructure development projects have created more than 400
job opportunities in grass planting, erection of drainage, irrigation,
fencing and bricklaying. The department has conducted appropriate
accredited training to capacitate these individuals .

• The Siyadlala Mass Participation Programme has seen a significant
increase in the number of hubs from 40 to 65 benefiting over
700, 000 people and creating 650 temporary employment positions
for youth in the communities.

• With regard to the 2010 Soccer World Cup, the funding of R15
million allocated to the department was utilized for the construction
of 31 combination courts, player development, capacity building
and administrative support to the SAFA. The department successfully
partnered SAFA in the development and promotion of football in
the Province and the provision of basic equipment such as soccer

kits, training footballs, computers, faxes, technical and electronic
equipment and office furniture. Basic and advanced office
administration training has also been completed.

• The department’s Under 17 football enrichment programme
provided an opportunity for 1, 200 youth players’ (both male and
female) to participate and be developed via league competitions
and tournaments and further training and coaching.

• The department used its many women’s month activities to draw
attention to the participation of women in sport related activities.
Women’s football in the Province was also catered for, with each
of the 14 teams in the women’s league receiving training equipment
to uplift and sustain their development. The 2010 unit within the
department also provided basic coaching equipment to Disability
Sport South Africa (DISSA) schools.

• The exploits of Team KwaZulu-Natal at the SA Games held in
Manguang, Bloemfontein from 24-28 September 2007, where the
Province won an overwhelming 135 medals is testimony that the
department’s investment in the development of sport is beginning
to reap the dividends.  On their way to dethroning Gauteng as
Champions Team KwaZulu-Natal walked away with 52 gold and
49 silver medals with swimming, women’s football, boxing, rugby
and athletics making clean sweeps. This fledgling development
programme of the Department of Sport and Recreation has renewed
our pledge of supporting the development of athletes and ensuring
that opportunities are provided for them to be able to compete
on an equal footing with the best the rest of the world has to offer.
The department will endeavour to give prominence to the
achievements of these fine athletes … today’s youth …
 tomorrow’s stars …

• The department focused on developing policy to establish
due processes, capacitating staff and recruitment of volunteers for
our Mass Participation Programmes.

• The process of restructuring into 11 districts has been completed.
The department has set up 4 district offices in 2007/2008 and
funding has been received for 2 new district offices in 2008/2009
and a further 3 district offices for the 2009/2010 financial year.
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Administration

Sport Co-ordination

Total

R’000

34,795

127,982

162,777

R’000

34,795

125,803

160,598

R’000

0

2,179

2,179

Programme VarianceTotal voted 2007/2008 Actual exp. 2007/2008

The original budget for the year was R162, 777 million. Due to capacity constraints at municipalities Programme 2:  Sport Co-ordination was
unable to finalise certain projects with municipalities for the year which resulted in under expenditure of R2, 179 million.  These projects are
undertaken by the department on property owned by municipalities and payments are made in instalments based on progress of construction.

3.3.2 Departmental Expenditure

The table below summarises the original budget allocation and actual expenditure incurred.

Actual exp. 2007/2008

  34,795
 125,803

Total 160,598

Total Variance  2,179

Programme

 Administration         Sport Co-ordination

3.3 DEPARMENT REVENUE, EXPENDITURE AND OTHER SPECIFIC TOPICS

3.3.1 Collection of Departmental Revenue

Non-tax revenue

Total departmental receipts

R’000

760

760

R’000

18

18

R’000

87

87

Type of Revenue 2006/2007 Actual 2007/2008 Actual2007/2008 Budget

Departmental revenue is obtained from commission earned from insurance companies on insurance deductions of employees and from sale
of bid documents.

3.3.2 Departmental Expenditure

   34, 795
  127,982

Total voted for 2007/2008

Total 162,777

  R’000   R’000
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3.3.3 Transfer Payments

Infrastructure Transfers

Current Transfers

Various Sport Federations and organisations

Tourism, Hospitality and Education Training Authority

Total

R’000

24,126

4,881

26

29,211

R’000

21,975

4,879

26

27,060

2,151

2

-

2,151

Name of Institution Budget Allocation VarianceAmount Transferred

For the promotion and development of Sport and Recreation, the department utilises the skills, knowledge and human resources of the sport
federations. Transfer payments are made to federations on a project basis. The construction of facilities is completed by the District Municipalities
who are appointed as implementing agents. The transfer payments are made in instalments based on progress of construction.  Annexure 1B,
C, D and E of the annual financial statements details individual payments effected.

3.3.4 Conditional Grants and Earmarked Funds

Total

Mass Participation

R’000

37,276

37,276

R’000

37,276

37,276

Type of Grant Actual ExpenditureAmount received

The department fully expended its grant allocation for the year.

The aim of the project is to encourage mass participation of the
communities in sport and recreational activities to promote an active
and healthy lifestyle. The priority for the department is to ensure that
the number of mass participation hubs increases so that there is at least
a hub in each local municipality.

During the year the number of activity hubs was increased to 65.
At each of these hubs the following activities took place, basketball,
handball, football, aerobics, gymnastics and fun run/walk.  Volunteers
are appointed as activity coordinators and hub co-ordinators at each
of the hubs. The volunteers receive a stipend per month that is in
accordance with the National Blue Print of the project. The volunteers
are responsible for ensuring that there is ongoing participation
throughout the year and not only at festivals or events, thus ensuring
sustainability of the programme.

The grant allocation is used for the payment of stipends for the
volunteers, transport costs, equipment purchases, stationery, launch of
the hubs, and training of volunteers. Monthly provincial reports are

submitted to the National Department of Sport and Recreation.
The project was ex tremely successful  and is  ongoing.

3.3.5 Capital Investment, Maintenance and Asset
Management Plan

Capital Investment
During the year the department commenced with the construction

of 18 sports facilities throughout the province. The department
contributed to the costs of these facilities by means of transfer payments
to the relevant District and Local Municipalities. The municipalities are
the implementing agents as they will be responsible for the ongoing
maintenance of the facilities.

Maintenance
The local municipalities maintain their sports facilities.

Asset Management
The Department implemented the Provincial asset register software,

HARDCAT. The department has updated HARDCAT for all movable
assets purchased up till 31 March 2008.

Households 178 180 (2)
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3.4 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

The programmes of the Department of Sport and Recreation is
giving life to latent and dormant talent and everywhere there is renewed
enthusiasm for sport and recreation in the province. Sport and recreation
facilities that have previously been "white elephants" are being changed
into "work horses" as they get almost over-utilised. There is an urgent
need for more facilities and equipment and the youth need our moral
and logistical support if they are to continue on their upward spiral
of regeneration.

In an effort to deliver on its mandate, the department will operate
for 2007/2008 with 2 programmes namely;

Programme  1: Administration

Programme  2: Sport Coordination

The programme structure is in accordance with National Treasury’s
budget structure. Details of the purpose, measurable objectives, service
delivery objectives and indicators and service delivery achievements
as published in the Annual Performance Plan for 2007/2008 for each
programme is presented below:

3.4.1 PROGRAMME 1:   ADMINISTRATION

Purpose of the Programme
The purpose of this programme is to provide overall

management of the department.

The programme consists of four sub-programmes, namely:

• Office of the MEC.

• Head of Department.

• Financial Management.

• Corporate Services.

The main aims are policy formulation by the MEC and the
department’s management, organising the department, managing its
human resources and financial management, determining policies and
procedures and exercising control through head office and
district offices.

Situation Analysis
All administrative support programmes functions are clearly

informed by the Public Service Act, Public Service Regulations, Public
Finance Management Act and Treasury Regulations.  Owing to the
fact that this department has been newly created, it has only recently
filled all funded posts in administration and formulated policies and
procedures.  All key policies and procedures have been approved and
these are at various stages of implementation. The challenge for
Administration is to ensure compliance to these policies and procedures.

With a changing operational environment the organizational
structure has to be reviewed on a regular basis to ensure the structure
is aligned to the business processes and to allow for effective
communication and optimum service delivery. With the increase in
funding for service delivery there is a direct need for an increase in
administrative support services.



Achievements
Administration is responsible for the provision of administrative

and logistical support. Despite the shortage of staff and funding it
managed to ensure that all officials were provided with essential
resources required to execute their duties, e.g. furniture and equipment.

The Information Technology Sub-Directorate has ensured that
99% of officials are electronically linked and supplied with IT resources
through the purchase of Personal Computers and monitors, printers,
scanners, docking stations, servers, cabling and networking.

Due to the nature of line function operations, the department’s
policy has been to encourage the provision of subsidized vehicles to
sports officers and limit the number of government vehicles purchased.
Due to the implementation of the National Credit Act and the
affordability of sports officers, many requests for subsidized vehicles
have been disapproved. This has created a strain on the provision of
government transport. These challenges are being addressed through
the purchase of additional government vehicles and the coordination
of transport requests by the Transport Section.

The provision of office accommodation has been a challenge as
the two District Offices which were scheduled to be established in the
2007/2008 financial year were not completed.  The challenges regarding
the identification of suitable accommodation and obtaining the right

price has resulted in delays which have been addressed. The Ugu and
Uthungulu District Offices will be finalized during 2008.

The Management Advisory Service is currently reviewing the
organizational structure to ensure effective service delivery at district
level and to place greater focus through the structures on strategic
direction and monitoring and evaluation.

The Administration Directorate has been in a better position to
provide greater legal advisory support after the appointment of a Legal
Officer in October 2007. The Legal Officer has reviewed service level
agreements, contracts, policies, thereby ensuring that the department
receives an efficient service and value for money in its interaction with
other organizations.

3.4.2 PROGRAMME 2:   SPORT COORDINATION

3.4.2.1  Purpose of the Programme
The purpose of this programme is to promote, develop, administer

and fund sport in the Province of KwaZulu-Natal. It also ensures
advancement of participation in sport and recreation, talent identification
and the promotion of performance excellence.

Programme Performance
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Strategic Objectives

The strategic objectives for Programme 1: Administration is as follows

Head of Department

Office of the MEC • Render an efficient and effective administration support service to the MEC.

• Promote accountability at all managerial levels and ensure the proper delegation of
responsibilities to the relevant levels in the department.

• Support and advise the MEC and give effect to policy directives

Financial Management • To ensure compliance with PFMA through implementation and maintenance of efficient,
effective and transparent systems of financial management and internal controls.

• Provision of an effective and efficient Supply Chain Management service.

Community Mass Participation • Render human resource management services.

• Render administrative support services

Strategic ObjectivesSub-Programme

The above strategic objectives contribute to the Department’s achievement of the following strategic goals:

• To promote and contribute to good governance in sport and recreation

• To provide an effective and efficient support service.
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3.4.2.2  Situation Analysis
The department has made great strides in making the people of

KwaZulu-Natal aware of the services that the Department of Sport
and Recreation delivers.  This awareness has resulted in a greater
demand for the department’s services for the promotion and
development of Sport and Recreation.  As the department grows it
will continually assess service delivery to ensure that it is achieving its
objectives within legislative mandates.  In spite of the limited capacity,
the department officials have worked together to ensure the
implementation of the programmes.

3.4.2.3  Focus Areas

Spor t  Coordination focu ses on the fol lowing area s:

• Providing financial assistance to sport and recreation organisations
for development programmes, provincial and national tournaments.

• Managing a number of annual sport and recreation functions.

• Hosting major provincial, national and international sports events.

• Promoting sport programmes for targeted groups such as the
disabled; senior citizens, youth and women.

• Maintaining an oversight role in the Provincial Academy of Sport,
which provides for the development of sport, including the
identification of talent and the provision of education, training and
sport science to athletes.

• Promoting mass participation.

• Promoting and developing community sport,  junior sport and
recreational activities.

• Infrastructure development which encourages both job creation
and development of sports facilities in different nodes in the
province,  targeting previously disadvantaged areas .

3.4.2.4  Sub-Programmes

There are seven sub-programmes under Sport Coordination and they
are listed below:

• Sport Management:
To provide strategic direction for the promotion and development
of sport;

• Community Sport:
To promote and develop sport in partnership with sport federations
and other community based organisations;

• Junior Sport:
To promote and develop sport amongst the youth;

• Recreation:
To promote recreational activities;

• Facilities:
To facilitate the provision of new sport and recreation facilities and
the repairs to existing sport and recreation facilities;

• Mass School Sport:
To promote mass participation at a school level;

• Community Mass Participation:
To promote mass participation within disadvantaged communities.
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3.4.2.5  Strategic Objectives

The Strategic Objectives for Programme 2: Sport Coordination is defined as follows:

Sub- Programme Strategic Objective

Sport Management • To provide effective and efficient planning, monitoring and evaluation of all sport and
recreation functions.

Junior Sport • To deliver and support participation in junior sport competitions and promote high performance
programmes for youth.

Community Sport • To provide and develop talent identification, high performance services, sport development and
capacity building programmes to support excellence in sport.

• To ensure participation of sport across targeted groups to promote tolerance across diverse
cultural groups through sport activities.

Recreation • To provide sustainable recreation programmes to create opportunities for citizens to live an
active healthy life style.

Facilities • To ensure the provision of adequate and appropriate sport and recreation facilities.

Mass School Sport • To promote mass participation of sport in previously disadvantaged schools.

Community Mass Participation • To promote mass participation of sport and recreation in previously disadvantaged communities.

3.4.2.6  Service Delivery Achievements

The key cumulative targets achieved from inception to 31 March
2008 are detailed below:

• The programmes for junior sport has benefited 400,000 youth to
date and 1,100 elite athletes were taken through a high performance
programme.  28,000 technical officials, coaches and administrators
participated in junior sport programmes.

• 390,000 Participants were reached through community sport
programmes.

• 8,000 Administrators, coaches and technical officials have
been trained.

• 2,500 Athletes were supported through high performance.

• 1,000,000 People participated in various recreation programmes,
and flagship programmes such as rural horse riding, recre-hab and
indigenous games have been implemented.

• 33 Sport and recreation facilities have been completed and 31
combination courts (combo courts) have been built.

• 321 Schools from previously disadvantaged communities are part
of the Mass School Sport Programme, where 152,000 learners
participate in sport.

• Employment has been created for 514 volunteers who receive a
monthly stipend.

• 8,500 Volunteers and educators are trained in sport administration.

• 65 Hubs have been established for the implementation of the
Community Mass Participation Programme. 1,500,000 Citizens
participated in this programme.

• 650 Jobs have been created through the community mass
participation programme.

The Service Delivery Achievements are detailed below for each of
the Sub-Programmes:

3.4.2.7  SUB-PROGRAMME: COMMUNITY SPORT

The Department’s Community Sport programme aims to promote
and develop sport within the community and encourage high
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performance. Programmes in this component are run in partnership
with the governing bodies of the different codes of sport. The projects
are implemented at a local municipality level to ensure that we are
reaching all spectrums of the community. Programmes are
developmental in nature.

The following programmes have been successfully implemented
throughout the Province:

A) DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF TARGETED
PROGRAMMES

Participation of Women in Sport and Recreation
The role and position of women in South Africa has changed

dramatically over the past decade, as the country moved irresistibly on
a path of democracy towards a non-racial, non-sexist society. Our
constitution entrenches and guarantees the right of everyone to
equality, as well as prohibits all forms of discrimination; (both direct
and indirect) that may be based on race, gender, disability, ethnic origin,
creed and any other.

Sport has played a major and often leading role, in effectively
facilitating the process of democracy at all levels and in different spheres
of society. Sport has the potential of taking a leading role in addressing
gender issues and equalising the playing fields for women.

For many years women have been disadvantaged by being afforded
relatively limited access to active participation in physical activity,
recreation and sport.  Women were also relatively absent in decision-
making roles in sport such as in coaching, as technical officials and as
far as administrative positions are concerned. The lack of affirmative
action policies, gender focused development initiatives, training, as
well as educational and motivational programmes aimed at facilitating
women’s participation impacted negatively on gender equity in sport.

One of the main challenges remains the serious lack of representative
female sport stars who should act as role models for eliciting participation
and perseverance amongst the younger generation. Sport has the
potential to contribute to the achievement of the United Nations
Millennium Development Goals in unique and creative ways. We have
a duty to promote gender equality and empower women and the
disabled if we are to achieve the millennium development goals. The
participation of girls and women in sport and recreation challenges
gender stereotypes and discrimination. In particular, women in sport
leadership can shape attitudes towards women’s capabilities as leaders
and decision makers.

Since 2005 the department’s emphasis has been on increasing
participation levels of women and the building of capacity at a basic
administration level. The department has used every opportunity
available to advance the cause of women in sport and through sport
and recreation. The department has ensured that the composition of
sports team reflect gender balance in athlete representation, technical
and administrative officials and general leadership. Greater advocacy
is required to ensure that sporting federations elect women on their
executive committees. It is mandatory for the mass participation
programmes to provide employment opportunities for women and
activities that allow for the participation and human capacity
development of women and girls.

Through our partnership with sports federations we have
empowered women sports administrators with training in leadership,
effective communication, media skills and financial management. This
we hope will prepare women to take on key leadership and decision
making roles within the sports fraternity. The disparity and treatment
of women’s sport by the media, both in terms of reporting their
activities and the employment of women sports journalists is identified
as a factor restraining the growth and exposure of women’s sport.
Sponsors look to sport to extend their brands. As such the focus is on
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maximizing exposure, spectator interest, participation and being
associated with champions. There is a dire need to identify female
sports ambassadors who will serve as role models to motivate and
inspire women and girls participating in sport and recreation.

The department’s Equity Programme targets active involvement
of women and the disabled in sporting activities.

This includes

• Capacity building to prepare women for leadership/decision making
roles in sport organisations.

• Celebration of Women’s Month with sport and recreation activities.

• To fast track the delivery of new sporting facilities and the provision
of equipment to sustain participation and service-delivery, especially
in the rural areas.

• To increase resources for volunteer recruitment in impoverished
communities where volunteers could become assets in
service-delivery.

• Gender mainstreaming.

• Sustainable programmes through tested practice initiatives, including
girl-child programmes.

• Equity, access opportunities, diversity, legacy, active participation,
research, leadership and skills development.

• Developing mentorship programmes and role-modelling.

SAWSAR
To address these challenges, the Department of Sport and

Recreation, has a project called South African Women for Sport and
Recreation (SAWSAR). SAWSAR intends to provide a rationale and
framework for actively and concretely promoting sport and recreation
among girls and women. The department aims to mobilise and increase
the number of women and girls participating in sport. Programmes
are aimed at dealing with areas facing the development and participation
of women and sports federations are urged to have definite strategies
and make concerted efforts to address the challenges facing women’s
participation in sport and recreation.

Promoting Women’s Boxing
The first quarter has seen an increase in the participation of women

in sport related activities. Staff within the department is also capacitated
via various training courses in sport management, facilitation, financial
management and human resource management. In partnership with
Showtime Boxing Promotions the department hosted KwaZulu-Natal’s
first International tournament featuring only women on the 9 August
2007 at the ICC, Durban. The slogan of “Umemulo” (Coming off Age)
was adopted and the tournament featured three international bouts
with our own professional female boxers being pitted against fighters
from Brazil. The main bout featured Juliana Werner De Aguilar against
Noni Thenge. The tournament also featured female amateur local
boxers on the under card.
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Spar Ladies Race
The Department of Sport and Recreation, recognizing the need to

encourage the female youth, especially from rural areas, to participate
in sport and recreation hosted numerous 10km Road Challenges in
the 11 Districts. Each of these district races attracted between 500 –
600 athletes and thus we can boast of approximately 3000 rural female
youth having had the opportunity of participating in the Spar 10km
Challenge. A total of 555 athletes were transported and accommodated
in Durban for the main Spar Ladies Race. Many of these young women
have performed well and were included in the programmes of the
Provincial Athletic’s Association. They continue to represent the
province at athletics.

Success Stories
A number of KwaZulu-Natal female sporting heroes have been

unearthed over the years. Some of them who come to mind are Cindy
Gumede a young netball player from Zululand and who is ranked
amongst the top ten goal scorers in the world. Young Melissa Corfe’
and Kathryn Meaklim have been outstanding for South Africa and are
both national record holders in the 400m freestyle and 400m individual
medley respectively. Former UKZN student Marsha Marescia is captain
of the national hockey team. Dolly Mavumegwana who is employed
as a sports officer in the department is a Springbok and has excelled
as a lock in recent tests against Wales and England. Mbali Ndlovu from
Inzululwazi Secondary School in Buffalo Flats has been selected for
Banyana Banyana. Dominique Mann is the African Aerobic Gymnastic
Champion whilst Tanith Maxwell has been a medalist in the
Rome Marathon. However these and other outstanding female sporting
stars have not received sufficient media and private sector support to
be able to take their achievements to another level.

Women’s Month Activities
As part of our Celebration of Women the department will host 83

different programmes, involving 15, 852 women in all 11 of our districts
in the period of Women’s Month.  The programmes ranged from sport
tournaments, women’s symposium on active lifestyles, capacity building
– coaching, administration and technical officials workshops, Women’s
Day Festivals and programmes aimed towards “active seniors”

It must be borne in mind that all projects and programmes of Sport
and Recreation ensure that women are involved at every level, from
decision making to operational levels. During the month of August, as
a celebration of National Women’s month, a greater focus is placed
on activities with a bias towards capacity building. Attached is a schedule
of activities that the department delivered to provide the women of
KwaZulu-Natal with an opportunity to enjoy the benefits that Sport
and Recreation has to offer. These are not once off activities but they
emanate from existing activities that the department facilitates:

• 200 barefooted rural youth girls pitted their skills at a Cross Country
Festival held at the Makhanisi Sport Ground, Jozini. This event
served as a selection tournament for the provincial event. In total
the Umkhanyakude District hosted 6 programmes involving 450
participants to highlight their women’s month initiatives.

• The Zululand District highlighted the role of women by hosting 2
festivals. 600 rural females participated in a day of sport and
recreation that drew large support at the Bilanyoni Stadium
(Emdumbe) and Enkonjeni Sports Ground. In addition to both
these events which were held on the 9 August 2007, the district
hosted a netball league and inter-hub festivals involving 820
female participants.

• A women’s day celebration on 9 August 2007 featuring 450 excited
female participants who were provided with opportunities to
interact on a wide range of issues affecting women, formed the
anchor of the women’s month programme of the Uthungulu
District. The event drew 400 particpants and was held at the
Mbonambi Sports Ground. The district also hosted a number of
smaller activities in a volleyball workshop, football tournament and
awards ceremony, fun run, netball tournament and community
games. In total 635 females attended these events and the highlight
was the district’s support for their regional team to the South
African Netball Championships.

• The department hosted a women’s day conference at the RS Skinner
Camp in Cedara from the 17-19 August 2008. A number of leading
female sports stars and other role models interacted with the 350
delegates on a wide range of issues. The Umgungundlovu District
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also anchored the department’s Girl’s Sports Day at the
Mpophomeni Stadium on the 25 August 2007 featuring some 800
participants from all walks of life. The district has devised innovative
programmes such as street basketball, ongoing netball leagues and
rugby development programmes to sustain women’s interest in
sport. 681 Females participate in the above programmes.

• The department in partnership with KwaZulu-Natal Netball hosted
a provincial netball tournament at the University of KwaZulu-Natal’s
Old Mutual Sports Complex on the 21 April 2007. This event
featured 500 aspiring youth netball stars and was the culmination
of the department’s netball development initiatives featuring 1000
participants throughout the province.

• A girl’s sports day at Mzumbe on 4 August 2008 involving 2800
participants was the highlight of the Ugu District’s women’s
month celebrations.

• The Siyakha Games, boxing judges and referee’s course, swimming
instructor’s course and an indigenous games festival anchored the
Sisonke District’s women’s month activities. Programmes within
this district realized 2, 576 female participants. This programme
commenced on 12 May and culminated in a girl’s sports day at the
Morningside Sports Ground on the 25 August 2007.

• Women’s day celebrations were held at the Endumeni Sports
Ground (Umzinyathi District) involving 240 rural female youth on
9 August 2007 and Osizweni Stadium (Amajuba District) attracting
600 female participants on 18 August 2007.

• Two women’s day workshops targeting female youth were held in
the Uthukela District. These workshops attracted 570 delegates
and were held at the Ladysmith Town Hall, Emnambithi and
Kwamkize Hall, Imbabazane on 25 and 26 August 2007.

• The Bambithuba Youth Project in Ntuzuma (7 July 2007), Tongaat
Youth Games (27 May 2007) and Siyaphumelela Youth Tournament
(30 June 2007) anchored the Ethekweni District’s women’s month
programme. This district’s women’s month programmes attracted
a total of 2, 364 female participants and included a capacity building
workshop at Lindelani.

• The Chief Albert Luthuli Commeration Games at KwaDukuza on
the 15 July 2007 was a phenomenal success with a total of 550
participants vying for honours in netball, football, volleyball and
boxing. Boxing attracted huge spectator support and featured some
exciting bouts. In addition 1, 421 female youth participated in a
wide range of programmes devised to encourage and highlight
women’s role in sport and recreation. The pick of the events
hosted by the Ilembe District was an event management workshop
(4 August 2007) and the Mandeni Community Games on
8 July 2007.

Critical Success Factors

The following rate as the department’s critical successes with women’s
initiatives in the province:

• The department celebrated Women’s Month through women in
sport seminars and female sports festivals.

• Road shows in rural areas on breaking barriers in leadership and
cultural constraints.

• Gender and HIV and AIDS issues addressed at major sporting events
in partnership with other departments and external agencies.

• Monitoring and evaluating programmes in the province and ensuring
that Federations have gender desks and policies with set targets on
the promotion of women in their codes.

• Increased participation of KwaZulu-Natal women at national
and international sporting events by sharing best practices
and presentations.

• 432 Unemployed women recruited for the department’s Siyadlala
Mass Participation Programme throughout the province since 2006.

• Staging the first Women’s International Boxing Tournament at the
ICC, Durban in 2007.

• More than 50% of the 1, 480 participants at the 2007 Provincial
Indigenous Games in Nseleni were females participating in
Umlabalaba, Jukskei, Incuva, Arigogo, Amagende, Inqathu,
Dibeke/Shumpu and Kho-kho.

• Successful rehabilitation programme with female prisoners to
promote healthy lifestyles in 10 prisons across the province.

• Increasing participation in sport amongst rural women by hosting
the Provincial Rural Girls Tournament. The 2008 version of this
event will target 660 participants.

• Providing opportunities for women, especially rural women, to
participate in major sporting events such as the Comrades Marathon,
Spar Ladies Race and Dusi Canoe Marathon.

• The Department made it possible for more than 2, 000 rural female
youth pound the streets of Durban barefoot in the Spar Ladies
Race since 2005.

• Promotion of women’s football via the department’s U17 football
enrichment programme that has already yielded 2 national age
group caps.

Programme Performance
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Most sporting federations in South Africa still treat women as
‘add-ons’. A quick look at the organization, budget and media coverage
of such codes as football, rugby, cricket, netball, hockey, etc will verify
our argument. Sponsors are also very prejudiced against women in
sport. This is more so in team sport than it is in individual sport and
for this reason most women athletes remain marginalised. Our challenge
is to create more opportunities for our female youth and to get our
media to give greater exposure to our stars. The private sector must
also come on board to offer support to our rising female stars to go
onto become sporting icons in the world.

Disability Sport
Our success in the South African Games, 2007 can to a great extent

be attributed to the sterling performance of our athletes with disabilities.
In swimming and athletics we fielded cohesive squads of athletes who
competed as an integrated unit. In track and field athletics, athletes
with disability scooped 15 medals whilst our deaf football team were
close silver medalists.

This was indicative of the achievement of our objective of ensuring
the inclusion of athletes with disability to the mainstream of sports.

In order to address the issues of transformation and needs of people
with disabilities, the department works closely with Disability Sport
South Africa (DISSA) to:

• Ensure the development of human capacity for administrators of
the disabled sports organisations.

• Ensure the recruitment of disabled persons in the mass
participation programme.

• Make provision for LSEN schools in the School Sport Mass
Participation programme.

• Ensure compliance to the needs of the disabled in the provision of
sport and recreation facilities.

• Ensure inclusion of the disabled in all major sport and
recreation activities.

• Provide financial support for athletes with disabilities to participate
in major provincial and national sport and recreation events.
In this regard the department invested in the following development
programmes with DISSA and other institutions/organizations
representing athletes with disability:

• As all sport and recreation non-profit organizations are not affiliated
to DISSA the department finds itself working on a number of
projects with a variety of community based organizations as well.
The Forget-Me-Not Sporting Club for the Physically Disabled has
been in existence for 20 years and has displayed remarkable resilience
and growth in areas such as Chatsworth and Umlazi. The
department’s involvement in programmes with this club has realized
a number of milestones:

• Several athletes have received provincial colours in basketball
and table-tennis.

• Hosting of a sports day on 28 October 2007.

• Hosting a blind navigator’s rally.

• Capacity building to increase opportunities for employment.

• In partnership with the uDondolo Disabled Group the department
assisted 8 wheelchair athletes to participate in the Outeniqua
Wheelchair Challenge held in George on 16 February 2008.
uDondolo is a NPO which services the needs of 1, 400 people with
disabilities from Richmond Central, Ndaleni, Smozomeni, Magoda,
Phatheni, Nhlazuka, Hopewell, Gengeshe, Mgxobeleni and
Masangazane.The department’s Umgungundlovu district has been
working with uDondolo on a number of programmes since 2006.
The Outenqua Challenge was a national event to select the South
African team to participate in the Paralympic Games, Beijing 2008.

• As part of its initiative to develop athletes with disability, the
department sponsored tandem cycles to the Blind Tandem Cycling
Association. This made it possible for eight visually impaired cyclists
to participate in the Boland (2-7 March 2008), and Argus
Cycling Tour.
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• In partnership with DISSA and the KwaZulu-Natal Golf Union the
department has been promoting golf amongst athletes with disability.
The highlight of this programme is the participation of athletes at
the Nedbank SA Disabled Golf Open.  The event was held at the
Erinval Golf Course, Somerset West from 13–18 May 2007.
10 Golfers with disability who have been part of the department’s
development programme par ticipated at the event .

• The department’s ongoing support for DISSA KwaZulu-Natal has
yielded a number of champions. The province selected a senior
team of seven athletes who participated in the South African
Wheelchair Bowling Chamiponships in Kimberley, Northern Cape
Province from the 12–19 May 2007. The department’s support
of this programme made it possible for this team to display their
talent at this prestigious event.

• The South African disabled table-tennis tournament was held in
Benoni from 1–7 July 2007. The department assisted with the
transportation and accommodation of the provincial team. The
team’s participation in the Nationals was the culmination of the
department’s ongoing programme with DISSA Table-Tennis.

• In its continuing efforts to promote sport and recreation amongst
people with disabilities the department equipped a number of
organizations with wheelchairs. A total of 20 wheelchairs and
clothing (700 shirts) were distributed to athletes from Lamontville
and Umlazi at a special wheelchair race for people with disabilities
on 25 August 2007.

• KwaZulu-Natal has five wheelchair basketball players selected to
participate in the Paralympics, Beijing 2008. The department, in
partnership with DISSA vigorously promotes wheelchair basketball.
In association with DISSA the department made it possible for the
provincial team to participate in a number of national events to
enhance further development and opportunities for national
selection. The provincial team participated in Wheelchair Basketball
South Africa’s 3-a-side National Tournament courtesy of the support
of the department for this initiative. The tournament was held from
the 7-9 December 2007. Siphamandla Gumbi a finalist in the 2007
Premier’s Sports Awards, is a key member of Team South Africa at
the Beijing Paralympics, 2008.

B)  DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMMES
Our partnership with sports federations is key to the delivery of

sport and recreation in the Province. Sports federations are the
custodians of our athletes and by virtue of their constituency, govern
the respective codes of sport.

In 2007/2008, the department’s focus has been on a developmental
approach. This has entailed working more closely with sports federations
for the strategically selected codes of sport, which are athletics,
swimming, football, rugby, boxing, cricket, golf, netball, gymnastics,
tennis, table tennis, hockey, surfing, dance sport, volleyball, karate and

canoeing. In partnership with the federations who have the appropriate
structures in place, development programmes were formulated and
implemented with the target group being individuals from historically
disadvantaged areas.

The fol lowing major development programmes have
been implemented:

SA GAMES
The South African Games has been instrumental in ensuring the

integration of our mainstream athletes and those with disabilities. It
has also been an excellent medium through which we identify our
talented athletes and accelerate their high performance path.

The South African Games was hosted in Manguang, Bloemfontein
in the Free State Province from 24-30 September 2007. The codes of
sport included Amateur Golf, Athletics, Boxing, Cricket, Football,
Goalball, Gymnastics, Hockey, Netball, Rugby, Table Tennis and Tennis.
Approximately 5 000 participants, including coaches and team managers,
from all provinces converged on the host city, to compete in the 13
codes of sport including those codes of sport catering for athletes that
are differentially abled.  Participants at these Games were represented
on a 50/50 basis, namely 50% advantaged and 50% disadvantaged
athletes and included those coming from both established and non-
established sectors.  A contingent of 445 players, managers and coaches
were registered by KwaZulu-Natal.  This number excluded the support
staff from the department.

The department set up a Local Organizing Committee in conjunction
with all participating sports federations and all the preliminary work
commenced with fervour in the first quarter of 2007. In partnership
with the Provincial Academy of Sport, Sports Federations and
Community Organizations the department invested heavily in the
preparation of Team KwaZulu-Natal. Athletes were offered scientific,
technical and psychological support with all codes of sport hosting a
number of training camps.

That KwaZulu-Natal emerged as run-away Champions for the first
time was testimony to the vision of the department and its partners
and commitment to the cause. In total Team KwaZulu-Natal won 135
medals (52 gold, 49 silver and 34 bronze medals) in comparison to
second-placed Gauteng’s haul of 112 medals (35 gold, 35 silver and
42 bronze).  A detailed medals table is attached.

The exploits of Team KwaZulu-Natal at the 2007 SA Games is
testimony that the department’s investment in the development of
sport is beginning to reap the dividends.  This fledgling development
programme of the Department of Sport and Recreation has renewed
our pledge of supporting the development of athletes and we will
endeavour to give prominence to the achievements of these fine
athletes … today’s youth … tomorrow’s stars …



KWAZULU-NATAL DEPARTMENT OF SPORT & RECREATION                               ANNUAL REPORT 2007 - 200841

Programme Performance

SA Games Medals Standing

RUGBY TALENT IDENTIFICATION
The department, in partnership with the KwaZulu-Natal Rugby

Union, has run development programs in previously disadvantaged
communities throughout the Province. The following programmes
have received support:

Rugby Friendship Games
These games held on the 19 August 2007 has become an annual

event which has attracted 22 clubs from all corners of the Province.
The objective of this programme is to provide opportunities to athletes
from previously disadvantaged areas to be exposed to a higher level
of the sport. Talented players are identified and trapped in the Union’s
development programme.

Talent Identification
The Department of Sport and Recreation has formed a partnership

with the KwaZulu-Natal Rugby Union and the Sharks Academy in
promoting a rugby development programme in previously disadvantaged
communities throughout the Province.  Over the past few years,
relationships have been developed between the Sharks Academy,
International Countries like England, Ireland, New Zealand, Australia
and Wales in order to assist with further developing players and coaches
for the Sharks under 19, 21 and Senior teams.  Over the past 5 years,
at least 70 talented players from disadvantaged backgrounds have been

sent to these countries listed above for development purposes, and at
least 1/3rd of players in the Sharks Academy are from historically
disadvantaged communities.

The partnership between the Union and the department realised
every aspiring player’s dream when the premier talent identification
tournament for Under 12, 15 and 17 players was held at the George
Campbell High School from 7–9 September 2007. The tournament
was opened on Friday, 7 September by the MEC for Sport and
Recreation, Mr A. Rajbansi and attracted 480 budding rugby players.
At the closing on Sunday, 9 September 2007 the National Minister of
Sport and Recreation, the Hon Rev Dr Mr MA Stofile graced the event
with his presence and re-iterated the fact the KwaZulu-Natal Department
of Sport and Recreation were trend setters for the rest of the country
to follow.

The tournament catered only for players from historically
disadvantaged schools and communities. This year this tournament
was preceded by tournaments in the districts, to select district
municipality squads and was followed by trials between districts to
select sub-union teams. The district municipalities are, amongst others
Ethekwini, Umgungundlovu, Amajuba, Uthukela , Ugu and
Umkhanyakude.

Province

Gold

  52
  35
  30
  23
  21
  14
     7
     5
     4

Silver

  49
  35
  35
  33
   11
   13
     3
     5
     3

Bronze

  34
  42
  30
  25
   18
  16
    8
   11
     9

KwaZulu-Natal
Gauteng

Western Cape
Eastern Cape

Free State
North West

Total Gold/Silver/Bronze in:

Mpumalanga: 18
Limpopo: 21

Northern Cape: 16KwaZulu-Natal: 135
Gauteng: 112

Western Cape: 95
Eastern Cape: 81

Free State: 50
North West: 43

Mpumalanga
Limpopo

Northern Cape
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The Rugby Talent Identification Programme has been extended to
amongst others the following areas; Umlazi, Chatsworth, KwaMashu,
Wentworth, (Ethekwini District), Edendale, Imbali, Woodlands,
Bruntville, Richmond and Northdale (Umgungungdlovu District),
Gamalakhe, Munster, Harding, Nqabeni (Ugu District), Ezikhaweni,
Wembezi, Nquthu, Ulundi, Kwadlangezwa, Madadeni, Osizweni
and Ezakheni.

60 Players from each sub-union was selected to attend the final
trials to select the provincial squads of 30 in each age group. These
selected players have undergone specialized coaching to prepare them
for Craven Week and Grant Khomo Week trials. The department has
become willing partners and, has invested in these developmental
programmes as it believes that genuine transformation in the sport
has to begin at the very elementary level.

KwaZulu-Natal Schools Easter Rugby Festival
The KwaZulu-Natal Schools Easter Rugby Festival is an annual high

school rugby festival held over the Easter Weekend at Kearsney College
in Botha’s Hill, halfway between Durban and Pietermaritzburg.  This
festival has a competitive edge designed to show case top high school
rugby talent.

The Department of Sport and Recreation has an extensive rugby
development programme in partnership with the KwaZulu-Natal Rugby
Union. The Kearsney College Festival is part of the department’s
commitment to promote the sport amongst the youth and to ensure
that transformation of the sport occurs at a developmental level.
Kearsney College has excellent facilities and infrastructure in place to
host a Festival and has a most impressive record of hosting successful
sport festivals over many years. The Kearsney College campus offers
a magnificent venue with excellent sporting and boarding facilities.

An exciting line-up of ten top rugby-playing schools from around
the country took to the field for the inaugural House of Paint Easter
Festival hosted annually at Kearsney College on 20, 22 and 24 March
2008. Included amongst the participating schools was the provincial
development team. The KwaZulu-Natal Development XV team is
selected through the KwaZulu-Natal Rugby Union’s development
programme and Talent ID Tournament that is fully supported by the
Department of Sport and Recreation. Each of the other participating
schools demonstrated a rich history of rugby with proven records and
a significant number of teams showed evidence of transformation.
Families and young sportsmen from around the country and beyond,
representing top independent schools, state schools, development
sides and schools from Southern Africa were part of this tournament.

PROVINCIAL CROSS COUNTRY
Athletics South Africa have identified cross country as their specialist

development area in the sport. They are using cross-country to unearth
new talent from the rural areas and thus emulate the performances of
the renowned Kenyan long and middle distance performances. The

department has involved itself with the sport on a provincial level as
we believe that enormous talent exists in the outlying areas of the
Province and the fact that no real infrastructure is necessary to develop
the sport.

The department supported KwaZulu-Natal Athletics with the staging
of cross country leagues in all districts. The department believed that
such programmes were sustainable and that youth were afforded an
opportunity of participating from a developmental to an elite level.
Our investment culminated with a provincial event staged at the
University of KwaZulu-Natal. The department made it possible for all
district teams to travel to this event. A team of 120 athletes were
selected to represent the Province at the National Cross Championships
in Mpumalanga in September 2007. In addition the department
supported the ASA Cross Country mass event staged in Newcastle.
The department provided logistical, human resource and
financial support.

DEVELOPMENT OF SPORT IN PARTNERSHIP
WITH FEDERATIONS

The department’s partnership with sports federations is key to the
delivery of sport and recreation in the Province. Sports federations are
the custodians of our athletes and by virtue of their constituency,
govern the respective codes of sport.

In 2007/2008, the department’s focus has been more on a
developmental approach. This has entailed working more closely with
sports federations for the strategically selected codes of sport, which
are athletics, swimming, football, rugby, boxing, cricket, golf, netball,
gymnastics, tennis, table tennis, hockey, surfing, dance sport, volleyball,
karate and canoeing. In partnership with the federations who have the
appropriate structures in place, development programmes have been
formulated and implemented, with the target group being individuals
from historically disadvantaged areas. 160,000 Individuals, including
60,000 women have gained from this programme.

For those federations where appropriate structures were not in
place, assistance was provided to ensure that structures were established.
Transformation in sport as well as high performance has received
attention. The Department has also provided assistance to existing
elite athletes in the form of additional training, coaching and equipment
to enable them to be high performers in national and international
events. The Provincial Academy was used for talent identification and
scientific testing. 500 Athletes have been targeted via the department’s
high performance programme.

In 2007/2008 the department also invested in the training of
specialist coaches at a developmental (youth) and professional level in
the Province. Special emphasis was placed on the improvement of the
overall administration and organization of smaller federations and in
this regard accreditation of technical officials and administrators to
enhance the delivery of sport was given priority.
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A comprehensive life skills programme was offered to players and
officials to enhance their performance. Capacity building has taken
place in all local municipalities to ensure the sustainability of leagues
and have been followed with the introduction of leagues within the
communities. A database of trained individuals has been maintained.
This database will be utilized to track the location of officials and
whether they have been utilising these skills to promote and develop
sport. A target of 6,700 trained individuals was realized in the last
financial year.

The following major programmes have been initiated and supported
by the department in 2007/2008:

• 70 sports administrators gained from a Basic Sports Administration
Workshop held at the La Mercy Beach Hotel from the 9-11
November 2007. The programme was run in partnership with the
KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Academy of Sport.

• The department supported the KwaZulu-Natal Hockey Association
for the hosting of the President’s Cup tournament at the AB Jackson
Fields in Pietermaritzburg from 20-25 August 2007. Six of the
country’s top women’s hockey teams participated at this week long
event. A number of these players were selected to the national
hockey squad for Beijing, 2008.

• KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Athletic Championships on the 15 February
2008 where the department ensured access for 160,000 athletes
from rural areas. 160 athletes from Msinga, Mzimkhulu,
Umkhanyakude, Zululand, Richmond and Nkandla were supported
via this programme. A number of these athletes, especially in the
middle and longer distances gained provincial selection to participate
in the National Youth and Junior Championships at the Pilditch
Stadium, Pretoria.

• In partnership with KwaZulu-Natal Athletics the department offered
support to the provincial team to participate in the SA Senior Track
and Field Championships in Stellenbosch from 13-15 March 2008.
A total of 22 athletes gained from this programme and 16 of the
athletes were from disadvantaged backgrounds. Veronica Abrahamse
medaled with a throw of 16,29m in the shot put.

• The department supported the South African National Age Group
Level 2 Swimming Championships held in Newcastle from 20-24
March 2008. 1200 swimmers gained from this partnership.

SALGA-KWAZULU-NATAL/KWANALOGA GAMES
The department has supported SALGA in these Games by making

funding and human resource available. These are developmental games
aimed primarily at promoting the youth in the Province from grass
roots to world-class level and to encourage partnerships and coordination
with relevant stakeholders.

 The vision of these Games is to nurture sports potential in all
KwaZulu-Natal Municipalities and the games serve as a crucial point
of entry for the youth into various provincial, national and international
competitions. The games provide an ideal opportunity for established
structures and those from the non-established sectors to participate
on an equal footing. These Games culminate with an Inter-Provincial
Tournament and the department offers financial and human resource
support to SALGA.

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO NON-PROFIT INSTITUTIONS
The department consciously supports the development plans and

initiatives of Sports Federations, Associations and Community
Organisations because it has prioritised the good governance of these
bodies. Good governance should improve the quality of our sport. We
are making a humble but important contribution to the Accelerated
and Shared Growth Initiative for South Africa (AsgiSA) and Joint
Initiative on Priority Skills Acquisition (JIPSA).

Financial assistance has been rendered to these non profit
institutions for:

• Development programmes,

• Hosting provincial, national and international events.

• Assisting athletes who will participate in National events outside
the province.

Funding has been made available as per the department’s funding
policy and based on the business plans submitted by these institutions.

MAJOR EVENTS
During the 2007/2008 financial year the department hosted, co-

hosted and provided human resource and financial assistance to the
following major events to promote and develop sport and recreation
in the province:

Dusi Canoe Marathon
The department sponsored the KwaZulu-Natal Canoe Union with

their development programme to fast track black canoeists to participate
in the Dusi Canoe Marathon and Drakensberg Challenge. The
department partnered the Union in fast tracking training and coaching
of the paddlers and ensuring the disadvantaged paddlers had the
necessary racing equipment to participate in these events. The
department supported these paddlers with equipment, transport, and
medical cover. The equipment provided was carried forward for use
at future events and for training purposes.

Comrade’s Marathon
In partnership with KwaZulu-Natal Athletics and NIKE SA, the

Department of Sport and Recreation set up a Comrades Athlete’s
Village at the Coastlands Holiday Resort in Durban to cater for 300
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disadvantaged athletes. Athletes from disadvantaged backgrounds were
previously compelled to sleep on park benches, stadiums, shop verandahs
and even road sides. This, before they have to embark on a grueling
89 km race and, they often set off from the start without having had
a decent meal for some 18 hours. In addition the department bused
these athletes to the start in Pietermaritzburg and hosted disadvantaged
athletes to a Gala Dinner on the evening of the race.

The department also provided incentives (R10,000 each to the first
KwaZulu-Natal male and female) to encourage KwaZulu-Natal athletes
to finish in the top ten of the men and women’s race respectively. This
policy paid off with KwaZulu-Natal’s Mncedesi Mkhize being the first
South African snatching the bronze medal after a gruelling battle with
Vladimir Kotov. The event was run on the 17 June 2007.

In an effort to ensure that athletes were not disadvantaged in any
way from competing in the Comrades Marathon the department set
aside a sum of R30,000 which was used to assist disadvantaged runners
with their entry fees to this and other major events in the country.
The department has also hosted a Refreshment Station positioned
20km from the halfway point for the more than 11,000 runners in
the race.

African Leg of the 2008 Beijing Volleyball Olympic Games Qualifier
The African leg of the global qualification process to determine the

participants for the 2008 Beijing Olympic Games (Men) was hosted
in KwaZulu-Natal by Volleyball South Africa. The Women’s qualifier
was held in Algeria and South Africa did not proceed to the next round.
The Department of Sport and Recreation supported the event by
assisting with funding and human resources.

The tournament was hosted at the Tongaat Sports Centre from
03-09 February 2008. Volleyball South Africa’s decision to host the
Qualifier in Tongaat was vindicated by the huge turn-out of spectators
especially on the last 3 days. Africa is granted only one berth at the
Olympic Games and thus this tournament took on gigantic proportions.
A record total of 10 countries participated at the event.

The MEC for Sport and Recreation, Mr A. Rajbansi delivered the
keynote address and officially opened the tournament at a glittering
opening ceremony. The Opening Ceremony, and the tournament as
a whole received television coverage on SABC.

The following countries participated: Egypt, Algeria, Cameroon,
Tunisia, South Africa, Morocco, Nigeria, Rwanda, Gabon and
Mozambique. North Africa generally dominates volleyball as their close
proximity to Europe grants them the opportunity to poach coaches
from the continent and make use of their advanced training facilities.
Many of the North Africans ply their trade in professional clubs in
Europe and their domination continued at this qualifier. Cameroon
emerged as a major force in Men’s Volleyball on the continent but
North African giants Egypt and Algeria contested a 5 set thriller in the

final. The Final attracted a capacity crowd and Egypt completed the
double (their football counterparts successfully defended their African
Nations Cup title) by snatching victory from a game Algeria. South
Africa acquitted themselves well but finished a disappointing 5th overall.

The department’s involvement in this major tournament was a
culmination of a number of development projects in all 11 of the
department’s districts in an effort to take the sport of volleyball to the
remotest parts of the province.

Midmar Mile
In partnership with KwaZulu-Natal Aquatics the department bused

in 100 disadvantaged swimmers to participate in this event. These
swimmers were identified via the department’s Learn to Swim Campaign.

DanceSport National Championships
DanceSport is the fastest growing Olympic Sport in South Africa.

This form of dancing was previously known as Ballroom and Latin
American Dancing. It is now part of the Olympics.

As part of it ongoing programme to promote DanceSport amongst
the communities the department offered support to DanceSport
KwaZulu-Natal in hosting the DanceSport National Championships at
the ICC in December 2007. A total of nine provinces and well over
3000 competitors participated. DanceSport KwaZulu-Natal has a youth
couple who have qualified to represent South Africa at an international
Dance competition in Italy on 22 September 2008. In addition the
World Dance Championships has been earmarked for Durban in 2008.

DanceSport KwaZulu-Natal has a rich development programme
for their coaches, administrators and technical officials. The sport has
a strong following amongst the black communities and the department
has agreed to assist, develop and spread the sport to all corners of the
Province. In this regard the department has assisted DanceSport with
transport and accommodation to their Inter-Provincial Competition
in Port Elizabeth and will fund part of their development programme.

Baby Champs Boxing Development Programme
The Department of Sport and Recreation, in partnership with

Boxing South Africa, SANABO and a number of other stakeholders
have started a number of initiatives to revive the sport in the province
and restore it to its former glory.

The following has been identified by the department as challenges
to uplift boxing to its former glory in the province:

• Necessary funding for the development of boxing, especially such
programmes as the Baby Champions.

• Logistics to ensure that development takes place in preparation for
professional tournaments.



• Necessary funding for major tournaments, including
international bouts.

• Lack of infrastructure across the province where trainers and boxers
can converge to hone their skills.

• Kick-starting the establishment of at least one Academy in Central
KwaZulu-Natal.

• Making career pathing for boxers compulsory.

• Getting female boxers to be featured as under-cards in all
major tournaments

In this regard the Department of Sport and Recreation has committed
itself to the following initiatives:

• Establishment of structures (amateur and professional).

• Restructuring of boxing in the province in line with
District Municipalities.

• Host workshops to address the governance of boxing in the province.

• Constituting boxing as a Federation in the provinc.e

• Funding tournaments  (amateur  and profess iona l) .

• Provision of basic equipment.

• Capacity building programmes aimed at administrators and trainer.s

• Supporting the establishment of gymnasiums (Ukhahlamba) which
will serve as an Academy of Boxing in the province.

• Establishing co-operation with District and Local Municipalities to
support the development of the sport.

• Assisted with the registration and licensing of promoters with Boxing
South Africa (BSA).

• Organize BSA to workshop the boxing fraternity in the province
with requirements at a National and International level.

• Stage title fights in the province.

The Baby Champs Programme is at the epicenter of boxing
development. It is the culmination of a programme that promotes
boxing at schools and community organizations. The Baby Champs
Programme has seen a number of budding baby champions’ graduate
into Provincial and National Champions. The programme encourages
mass participation. The event was staged on 21 July 2007 and the
department was a major role player in offering human resource, financial
and logistical support.

In addition the department supported the following boxing
development programmes in the province:

• As part of its efforts to capacitate boxing promoters the department
assisted with ensuring 36 promoters attended a boxing convention
in Bloemfontein from 16-17 February 2008.

• Administration workshop staged at the La Mercy Beach Hotel from
the 08-10 June 2007. A total of 50 administrators attended the
workshop held under the auspices of SANABO.

• In partnership with SANABO the department hosted the Baby
Champs Championships in Cato Ridge on 27 July 2007. A total of
85 boxers gained from this opportunity.

• Assisted the KwaZulu-Natal Olympic Style Boxing Organisation to
send a representative team to the Women’s Inter-Provincial
Tournament in Vereeniging from 5-7 October 2007. 25 female
boxers displayed their skills at this tournament.

• A development tournament was held at the Victoria Mxenge Hall,
Umlazi on the 21 October 2007.The department offered
organizational and financial support. In addition to others 14 youth
boxers benefited directly from this initiative.

KWAZULU-NATAL DEPARTMENT OF SPORT & RECREATION                               ANNUAL REPORT 2007 - 200845

Programme Performance



Programme Performance

KWAZULU-NATAL DEPARTMENT OF SPORT & RECREATION                               ANNUAL REPORT 2007 - 200846

• Supported the development programme of the Ethekwini Olympic
Style Boxing Organisation. The department was a major role player
in staging coaching clinics culminating in a development tournament
in KwaXimba from 20-21 October 2007. 150 boxers and trainers
benefited from this programme.

International Women’s Boxing Tournament
In partnership with Showtime Boxing Promotions the department

hosted KwaZulu-Natal’s first International Tournament featuring only
women on the 9 August 2007 at the Inkosi Albert Luthuli (ICC), Durban.
The slogan of “Umemulo” (Coming off Age) was adopted and the
tournament featured three international bouts with our own professional
female boxers being pitted against fighters from Brazil. The main bout
featured Juliana Werner De Aguilar against Noni Thenge (64kg). The
tournament also featured female amateur local boxers on the undercard.

Other International fights on the card matched Adriana Zanella
(Brazil) against Dorothy Cloete (SA) in the 54kg category. In the 57kg
category Michelle Larissa Bonassoli (Brazil) came up against Unathi
Myekeni (South Africa). The tournament was broadcast live by SABC
– TV and was part of the department’s Women’s Month celebrations.
The department provided assistance in the form of goods and services
and human resource.

ICC 20/20 Cricket World Cup, 2007
The advent of the ICC 20/20 Cricket World Cup held in South

Africa from the 10-24 September 2007 presented opportunities for
the Department of Sport and Recreation to deliver on its mandate of
bridging the gap between the privileged and the historically
disadvantaged people of KwaZulu-Natal.  The department, in its attempt
to empower people through sport and recreation, initiated a training
programme for volunteers from the disadvantaged areas of KwaZulu-
Natal so as to tangibly allow access to major events.

This training programme incorporated the workshopping of 3, 000
volunteers to participate in these Cricket World Cup Games.  The skills
imparted to these volunteers are expected to be utilized after these
Games so as to benefit both the game of cricket, as well as the Province,
in the long term.  As these volunteers are from the school core in the
main, the love of the game is being further inculcated and the sport
is thus being promoted.

A core objective of the department is to promote mass participation
in sport and recreation activities.  It is thus of significance that 3, 000
volunteers were capacitated to form a cricket support corp.  Also, as
these are international games, widely publicized and appealing to the
masses, these volunteers were given an opportunity to participate on
an international platform

Premier’s Sports Awards
The Department of Sport and Recreation hosted the Premier’s

Sports Awards at the Inkosi Albert Luthuli Convention Centre (ICC)
on Friday, 02 November 2007.

The Premier’s Sports Awards is an annual event that showcases the
rich talent that exists in the Province. Whilst the Awards acknowledge
the athletes who achieve at the highest level, it also rewards members
of the community and enriches the sporting lives of people at a grass
roots level. The Awards serve to motivate the athletes by bestowing
the honour and prestige of the first citizen, the Honourable Premier,
Mr J.S. Ndebele on them.

Point’s machine and versatile Sharks and Springbok fullback Percy
Montgomery scooped the coveted Sportsman of the Year Award.
National gymnast Dominique Mann vaulted her way to the
Sportswoman of the Year title for her exploits on the international
gymnastic circuit. The baby of the Rugby World Cup and the country’s
most prodigious rugby talent Francois Steyn was first through the post
as the Junior Sportsman of the Year. Swimming sensation Kathryn
Meaklim and SASSU National Football Captain Amanda Dlamini tied
for the Junior Sportswoman of the Year award.

The evening was glamorous with the who’s who of sport present
and the Department of Sport and Recreation used the evening to
showcase KwaZulu-Natal on a world stage. Well over 700 guests made
this an evening to remember.  A giant rotating globe took centre stage
as the Sharks soared to new heights pummelling all opposition to fly
away with the Team of the Year Award. Swimming icon and the champion
of non-racial sport Morgan Naidoo was acknowledged posthumously
for his contribution to sport through the decades. In his opening
remarks the MEC for Sport and Recreation, Mr A. Rajbansi paid tribute
to the administrators and sportsmen and women for their unfailing
sacrifice and commitment in ensuring that “KwaZulu-Natal is the best
performing sporting Province in the country”

These Awards were held on the back of a euphoric few weeks for
South African sport - Rugby World Cup glory, the Proteas series victory
in Pakistan, Bafana Bafana’s Cosafa Cup victory all contributed to social
cohesion and national identity. The youth of the province who also
outdid themselves by walking away with the SA Games title in
Bloemfontein was acknowledged by the Premier of the Province,
Mr J.S. Ndebele.

The Premier’s Sports Awards has certainly lived up to its top billing
and the evening’s theme of “Siyanqoba” most certainly highlighted the
Province’s climb to sporting prominence. The slick show was the
forerunner to the FIFA World Cup Preliminary Draw to be held at the
same venue later that month.
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The following were the category winners on this night of glitz and glamour:

Category

Sportsman of the Year

Sportswoman of the Year

Team of the Year

Junior Sportsman of the Year

Junior Sportswoman of the Year

Disabled Sportsman of the Year

Disabled Sportswoman of the Year

Administrator of the Year

Name of Winner

Percy Montgomery

Dominique Mann

Sharks

Francois Steyn

Kathryn Meaklim

Amanda Dlamini

David Patrick Coates

Caroline Zondi

Peter Thompson

Rugby

Gymnastics

Rugby

Rugby

Swimming

Football

Swimming

Athletics

Aquatics

Code of Sport

Coach of the Year

Technical Official of the Year

Community Achievement – Athlete

Dick Muir

Siphesihle Gumede

Thabani Sangweni

Rugby

Volleyball

Rugby

Community Achievement  - Coach/Administrator

Community Achievement  - Municipality

Wellington Magwaza

Amajuba

Gymnastics

Posthumous Maharanja Japtha
Morgan Naidoo

Cricket
Swimming

Bheki Makhatini Boxing

Lifetime Achievement Parusuramen Govender Cricket
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C) HIGH PERFORMANCE PROGRAMMES WITH FEDERATIONS
This programmes focuses on prioritized codes of sport. The

department in partnership with the Provincial Academy of Sport has
ensured that scientific testing is provided for selected athletes. This
has commenced at a local developmental level and athletes have been
supported up to the elite level. Talent identification has been completed
by the sports federations and the department provides Federations
with support for their Provincial and National Age-Group
Championships. The following federations have received assistance
with this programme: Hockey, Table-tennis, Volleyball, Aquatics, Football,
Amateur Boxing, Gymnastics, Netball, Athletics, Tennis and Rugby. In
addition the department supported and funded a number of SA Games
training camps within all the federations participating in the SA Games
in Bloemfontein. Scientific and nutritional support, medical, coaching
and administration, and logistical support were rendered.

D)    CLUB DEVELOPMENT
This is a new national programme to increase participation in sport

and recreation at grass roots, at the simplest level of organisation, the
club. A number of clubs were formed to play in the leagues within
communities such as Nkandla, Msinga, Umkhanyakude and uMzimkhulu.

• The introduction of the Club Development Programme has to be
seen against the above background. Federations are performing
way below par in organising community clubs. This in turn has a
negative effect on the retention and development of school athletes’
talent. Federations go for ready-made talent.  Club Development
tries to bridge the gap between school sport and senior sport. The
programme is expected to fast track transformation/affirmative
action objectives.

• Human resource development, infrastructure provisioning and
initiating local leagues are the key components of our Club
Development Programme.  It tries to take mobilisation (MPP) to

organisation (Club Development). Local predominant interests
guide where we should begin (soccer, netball, athletics etc).

In the 2007/2008 financial year the Club Development Programme
focused on the following:

• Training of coaches, administrators and referees. 120 people were
trained in events management and basic sports administration.

• 80 Clubs were formed.

• Promotion of netball and football.

• Provision of playing kits, technical equipment was rolled out in
3 of the identified  areas.

• The consultation process with the following areas was completed
during August 2007: Kwanongidi,  Bhadeni, Maqumbi
and Kokstad. The following areas benefited: Nkandla, Msinga,
Mtubatuba, uMzimkhulu and uMziwabantu.

• The department hosted a National Club Development Tournament
on behalf of SRSA at Esikhawini Ex-College of Education, in Richards
Bay from 29 February-02 March 2008. Each province was
represented with participants in netball and football. The selection
of these teams was via the Club Development programme.

The department’s vision with this programme is to see that
participation leads to community clubs. These will in turn be the basic
sites of sport development and the building blocks of social cohesion.
Together with school sport, community clubs are also where the
catchment of players for skills and transformation will come from.
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CLUB DEVELOPMENT- CLUBS: 2007/2008

eThekwini

Zululand

Ukhahlamba

Ilembe

Umkhanyakude

Uthungulu

Zululand

Sisonke

Maqumbi

Mtubatuba

Nkandla

Edumbe

Greater Kokstad

10

10

10

10

Region District Number Of ClubsArea

10

Sisonke Umzimkhulu 10

Umzinyathi Msinga 10

Ukhahlamba Ugu Umziwabantu 10

Total 80

E) FOOTBALL ENRICHMENT PROGRAMMES
In the months of June and July of 2010 South Africa will host the

FIFA 2010 Football World Cup. Thirty-two teams will arrive two to
three weeks prior to the tournament and then, during a period of 43
days, an estimated 2.7 million local spectators will view 64 matches
played in stadiums around the country. Assessed in terms of the number
of global viewers, the World Cup is the world's largest sporting event.
The World Cup presents Africa with a stage to showcase its skill and
talent as well as to eradicate stereotypes that reflect it as a continent
of inefficiency, and corruption.

As one drives past our 2010 stadiums we can see the dust billowing
from the construction sites and giant concrete monstrosities rise into
the sky. We watch in awe as South Africa readies itself to usher in the
world. It is time for communities and the country as a whole to put
their hands to the wheel that winds its way slowly to the largest sporting
spectacular in the world.

It is a given fact that various stakeholders have different obligations
towards achieving a successful 2010 World Cup and the Department
of Sport and Recreation has been toiling with its efforts to mobilize
ordinary South Africans to get behind the World Cup. The department
is working closely with SAFA and other stakeholders to restore the
sport of soccer in our Province to its full strength, and play our role in
ensuring that the World Cup makes a huge contribution to improve
the lives of all the citizens of this Province, giving additional impetus
to the development of the country and continent as a whole.

The overall driving factor underpinning the line function
responsibilities of the Department of Sport and Recreation relating to

the 2010 FIFA World Cup is to leave a legacy that contributes to
improved administration, skilled coaches and highly qualified technical
officials. Further to the tremendous support given to SAFA to establish
offices in all 11 districts, a further 120 administrators, 40 SAFA Level
1 coaches and 330 SAFA Levels 1-4 technical officials will benefit from
skills development. The U17 football enrichment programme will
provide an opportunity for a further 1, 400 players to participate and
be developed via competitions and further training and coaching.

Aligned to the National and Overall Provincial Strategy the
department’s focus has been on:

• Hosting a successful 2010 FIFA World Cup event in KwaZulu-Natal.

• Facilitating maximum benefits for soccer from the World Cup Event.

• Improving the standard of football in the Province through capacity
building of administrators, players, coaches and technical officials.

• Leaving a legacy of infrastructure development and skilled human
resources by the provision of appropriate facilities, equipment and
support services.

• Developing a high level Under 17 football enrichment programme
in partnership with SAFA.

• Marketing and communication tool for all stakeholders: public;
administrators and management. Creating awareness, sponsor
advertising and communication.
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One of the cornerstones of the 2010 FIFA World Cup is to get a
lasting legacy for South Africa and the rest of the continent. Government
has therefore put together structures and plans, to ensure that its
investment into the World Cup benefits the large majority of our
people. It should be borne in mind that by the nature of some of the
work that has to be undertaken, it will not always be easy to identify
opportunities for small medium and micro enterprises (SMMEs) and
disadvantaged communities. It is therefore important that big businesses
be encouraged to partner with those that are emerging. In this way,
we will be contributing positively towards a skills pool in our country.

Under 17 Football Development
The department has developed a high level Under 17 Soccer

Enrichment Programme in partnership with SAFA. This programme
commenced in 2006 with qualification tournaments in each of the 11
SAFA Districts. A team was selected in each district and these teams
participated in a Provincial Final. The Provincial Final was held at the
Douglas Mitchell Sports Complex in the Ugu district on 11 March
2007. The U17 Programme catered for both boys and girls. The final
22 players were selected to participate in the SA Games in Bloemfontein.

In the 2007/2008 financial year the U17 football enrichment
programme was hosted once again with 1 400 players participating in
a Provincial Final at the Gamalakhe College Stadium in Ugu District
Municipality from 7-9 March 2008. A total of 44 teams (944
players/technical officials in both male and female teams) representing
each of the newly formed SAFA Districts participated in a weekend of
soccer frenzy. Each of these teams was selected via an ongoing U17
league programme held in the SAFA local football associations. This
internal programme in each of these football associations yielded a
target of 4, 950 players.

Mr Tebogo Moloi (SAFA Under 17 National Coach) and Mr
Augustyn Makalakalane (Banyana Banyana National Coach) attended
the tournament. A total of 4 players were selected by these coaches
to attend national camps in the respective national teams. Zenzele
Zungu (Uthungulu) and Ayanda Mbatha (Amajuba) represented the
U17 National team in an international against Zimbabwe.

In a closely contested ladies final Ethekwini defeated Sisonke by 1
– 0. Smangele Magutshwa was named as the ladies player of the year.
Umgungundlovu defeated Amajuba by the same margin in the youth
boys final with Ayanda Mbatha named as Player of the Tournament.
As an addendum to this Provincial Tournament a selected team of 18
players have been identified to participate in a SAFA sanctioned U17
football tournament at the University of Western Cape. The tournament
will be held from 14-17 June 2008 and the department has assumed
complete responsibility for this tour.

SAFA Women’s Vodacom League
The department aims to mobilise and increase the number of

women and girls participating in sports. Programmes are also aimed
at dealing with areas facing the development and participation of
women and sports federations have been urged to have definite
strategies and make concerted efforts to address the challenges facing
young women’s participation in sport and recreation. In an attempt to
support a sustainable programme that will increase the participation
of women in football and as a means of fast tracking the development
of women’s football in the province, each of the SAFA Provincial
Vodacom League teams have been allocated a training kit comprising
training balls, stopwatches, whistles, cones and bibs.

In an effort to bridge the gap between our Mass Participation
Programmes and formal clubs of the federation, the department
invested heavily in the development of community clubs especially in
disadvantaged areas. Assistance to these clubs was in the form of
training, capacity building, playing and training equipment, kit, and
technical expertise.

2010 FIFA World Cup Preliminary Draw
The 2010 FIFA World Cup Preliminary Draw was held at the Inkosi

Albert Luthuli Convention Centre (ICC) on 25 November 2007. The
Preliminary Draw drew thousands of delegates including journalists
from 204 countries.

In addition to a number of departmental staff working as volunteers
at the Draw to ensure its resounding success, the department engaged
in a number of legacy projects around Durban to uplift the football
communities. The department conducted a number of coaching clinics
in conjunction with the FIFA 2010 LOC and the host city. The FIFA
football ambassadors comprising the legendary Lucas Radebe, Mark
Fish, Philemon Masinga and Dr Khumalo conducted clinics with local
coaches in the following municipalities: Uthungulu, Amajuba,
Umgungundlovu and Ethekwini. 800 youth footballers benefited from
this programme.

Participation in World Street Soccer in Brazil
Nje’s Tavern is based in Umlazi. Their football team represented

South Africa at World Street Soccer Tournament in Brazil from the 6
August 2007. The team was selected for the Brazil tour courtesy of
them winning the National Street Soccer Raga Bolo Tournament in
Gauteng on the 31 March 2007. The department assisted the team
with logistical arrangements and sponsorship of kit and accessories.
The MEC for Sport and Recreation hosted the team at a gala send-off
function.

Nje’s Tavern won the inaugural World Street Soccer extravaganza
in Brazil and celebrated their victory as special guests of the MEC at
the Premier’s Sports Awards.
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Development of Human Capability
 The department, in partnership with coaching department of SAFA

and sports federations has trained and qualified coaches, administrators,
technical officials and administrators in football.

The following areas were targeted:

• Specialist coaches at a professional level in the Province.

• Technical officials,  especially referees, assessors and
referee’s instructors.

• Club administrators to enhance management of clubs at a local
level and to improve relevant areas of sport administration at
an amateur and professional level.

• Comprehensive life skills programme to players and officials to
enhance their performance.

The department was able to realise the following targets in
2007/2008:

• Successfully train and qualify 330 referees with qualifications from
SAFA Level 1-4. Sixty of these referees were expected to be
introduced at a SAFA Vodacom League level.

• 120 Administrators comprising club owners and executive members
of Local Football Associations were trained in a football
administration course from 28 February-2 March 2008.

• All 11 SAFA districts were represented at the SAFA Level 1 course
hosted by the department from 29 April-6 May 2007. The course
was facilitated by SAFA National Chief Instructor Mr Conti Khubekha.

• In an effort to improve the standard of the game and
provide coaches with an opportunity to share ideas and
methodologies, the department once again hosted a 4 day
coaches conference from 8-11 August 2008. The conference
was attended by coaches from local and professional teams in
the Province.

All of the above programmes, courses and workshops are conducted
in accordance with SAFA requirements and all instructors and facilitators
are supplied by the Coaching Development Office of SAFA and the
Provincial Academy of Sport.

The department has invested heavily in the development of football
and expects that it will begin to reap the following rewards:

• Progression of identified talented players from the mass participation
and school sport mass participation programme into the club
development programme.

• Incorporation of non-established structures to formal football
structures at a local level.

• Vibrant club competition.

• Ongoing skills development and exchange programmes.

• Capacity development of Professional Soccer League (PSL) Clubs,
(financial management, administration etc).

• Progression from amateur to professional clubs.

3.4.2.8  SUB-PROGRAMME: RECREATION

Recreation programmes were implemented at a local municipality
level, in institutions and a variety of recreation sites. The Recreation
programme has six flagship programmes targeting all age groups, and
a variety of codes of sport and recreation activities to lead a healthy
lifestyle. These are the Indigenous Games promoting social cohesion,
Rural Horse Riding promoting African renaissance, Recre-hab
encouraging rehabilitation and reintegration of offenders in prisons,
Work and Play, an employee recreation programme encouraging
wellness among public servants, Active Seniors promoting wellness
among senior citizens and, lastly Beach Games promoting active
utilisation of natural resources.

This programme targeted 315,000 participants with 184 programme
sites with 24 ongoing programmes to promote an active and healthy
lifestyle. The Programme trained 1,181 recreation leaders and
programme volunteers. 120 Senior Citizen clubs/structures were
formed and supported by the department in the 2007/2008
financial year.

A) INDIGENOUS GAMES
Very few people in the world associate the Olympic Marathon with

being an indigenous game of Greece. Even fewer people associate
taekwondo with being the indigenous game of Korea or karate with
China and football with England. But the truth of the matter is that all
games have an indigenous home. The hegemony of different cultures
and nations of the world has helped globalize some games to the extent
that they are accepted as common to all rather than indigenous to
any people.

The indigenous games provide insight into cultural practices of
various groups in the province and reinforce community values, customs,
and symbolize the beauty of diversity. The Games is a flagship of the
African Renaissance Programme. These indigenous games were
neglected in the historical and ethnological records. The challenge is
to trace, reintroduce and promote the rich games such as Induku,
Umlabalaba, Khokho, Jukskei, Shumpu, Arigogo, Ncuva, Inqathu,
Thunee and 3 Tins. The department intends to carry this momentum
from local communities to national festivals.
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 The department hosted the third successful Provincial Indigenous
Games Festival from the 29 June-01 July 2007 at the Umuzuvukile
Sports Ground in Nseleni. A total of 10 district municipalities and the
metro participated with a total of 1, 480 participants converging on
the sports fields to demonstrate their skills at the various games
on offer.

“It was not the Olympics, but what made the 2007 Indigenous
Games special was that the games which might have been relegated
to oblivion took centre stage”; wrote Myrtle Ryan in the Sunday Tribune
(8 July 2007).  The Games were preceded by a colourful opening
ceremony on the 29 June with teams parading in their full colours and
ushered into the field by Izintombi Zomhlanga. Speeches from dignitaries
were punctuated by world class traditional dancers and drummers.

On Saturday the competitive spirit began with each district trying
to score maximum points during the round robin stage to force
themselves into the knockouts. When the starter’s whistle blew for
arigogo, baseball fans might have noticed some similarities as they
watched runners, catchers and shooters in teams of 10. Debeke seemed
very complicated – a mixture of cricket, soccer and running, played
with a size 3 soccer ball. Cheering and excitement persisted throughout
the day and friendships were forged amongst the competitors.  Most
of the participants felt that the games were exciting and the level of
competition was high.

The following Indigenous Games were witnessed by a large crowd
of over 3, 000 people: Induku, Umlabalaba, Jukskei, Incuva, Arigogo,
Amagende, Inqathu, Dibeke/Shumpu and Kho-kho. Stick fighting
(induku), which originated among herd boys trying to prove their
strength, certainly drew the biggest and most vociferous crowds.  The
Indian indigenous game of kho-kho played by indentured labourers
who came to work on the sugar plantations, is a game of chasers and
runners and drew enthusiastic crowds.

The final standings saw Ethewini as run-away winners with
Uthungulu, Zululand, Umkhanyakude and Uthukela occupying the
minor placings. Ethekwini emerged as the champions for the second
year in a row. A squad of 107 participants was selected to undergo
intensive training and the final KwaZulu-Natal team to represent the
province in the National Indigenous Games in the Eastern Cape from
30 August-3 September 2007 was drawn from amongst them.

The MEC for Sport and Recreation, Mr A Rajbansi summed up the
games well when he said “this has been the best Indigenous Games
ever! The spirit of the people is wonderful; everywhere you look there
is a happy face”. His comments were backed up by the large contingent
of mayors, municipal managers, members of the provincial legislature
and other political dignitaries present.

In an effort to address HIV/Aids the department ran the programme
in conjunction with loveLife and they co-incided their activities with
the Games Programme to ensure that their call for a healthy lifestyle
was heard by all.

Team KwaZulu-Natal emerged with the overall bronze medals at
the National Indigenous Games in the Eastern Cape. The provinces
dibeke team toyed with their opposition and snatched the gold medal.
As reward for their achievement the Dibeke team from the province
will join the national team visiting Busan, Korea in September, 2008 to
participate in an International Indigenous Games Festival. Twenty nine
athletes have been selected to represent the country at the International
Games. These athletes have been drawn from across all districts and
are representative in terms of gender and transformation. South Africa
is expected to display its traditional games to a world audience.

A list of athletes selected to participate in Korea is attached:
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List of athletes that will participate in the Interntional Indigenous Games in Busan, Korea

Nonhlakanipho Ndlovu

Bonginkosi Mhlongo

Thandeka Mkhwanazi

Mgungundlovu

Mgungundlovu

Mgungundlovu

eThekwini Metro

Zululand

Mpofana

Msunduzi

Msunduzi

eThekwini

Edumbe

M

M

M

F

Name District Municipality Male/FemaleLocal Municipality

F

eThekwini Metro eThekwini F

Umzinyathi Endumeni F

Barbara Ngubane Uthukela Indaka F

Gabisile Nkumane F

Nkosinathi Mbatha

Lindani Khoza

Samkelisiwe Mngadi

Nomfundo Hlatshwayo

Lungi Zondi

Brenda Hlatshwayo

Mhlengi Thwala

Sisonke

Umkhanyakude

eThekwini Metro

Uthukela

Uthukela

Kokstad

Mhlabuyalingana

eThekwini

Indaka

Indaka

F

F

M

M

F

eThekwini Metro eThekwini M

Umzinyathi Endumeni M

Manqoba Mncube Umzinyathi Nquthu M

Njabulo Sangweni M

Ntombifuthi Manzini

Simo Khowane

Emanuel Dasa

Philani Cele

S Mlilo

Umgungundlovu

Umgungundlovu

Ilembe

Umsunduzi

Umsunduzi

Maphumulo

F

M

F

Ethekwuni eThekwini F

Ilembe Mandini M

Sibonelo Zondi Umgungundlovu Msunduzi M

Mathabo Mabaso F

Nompilo Chamane

Nathi Nyoka

Sindiswa Khawula

S Mdunge

Zululand

Mgungundlovu

Umgungundlovu

Edumbe

Msunduzi

Msunduzi



KWAZULU-NATAL DEPARTMENT OF SPORT & RECREATION                               ANNUAL REPORT 2007 - 200855

Programme Performance

B) RURAL HORSE RIDING
Ukutelebhela and horse riding is a popular past time pursued by

African men and boys. It has grown in recent years but has lacked
support and promotion. An initiative was undertaken by the Department
of Sport and Recreation to stage Rural Horse Riding Festivals in Dundee
in July 2005 and 2006.

The Premier of the Province, the Hon. Mr JS Ndebele, has declared
the last Saturday in July as the preferred annual day of the Rural Horse
Riding Festival. Indigenous Games have been an integral part of the
African communities for decades.  They reflect values and customs
passed through generations.  They serve as a source of good pastime
activity.  Horse riding is one such activity which is being pursued in
many parts of the province.  Areas such as uMzinyathi, AmaJuba, Ugu,
uThungulu, Umgungundlovu and Zululand have horse owners who
organise races regularly, although they are staged on an informal level.

A directive was given to the department by the Honourable Premier
to investigate and organise a pilot festival in 2005.  This pilot festival
was a resounding success. In 2006 the festival was expanded and
became more structured. The programme has also been included as
part of the African Renaissance Programme. July is an important horse
racing month in KwaZulu-Natal. The 2007/2008 version of the Dundee
July took place on the 28 July 2007 at the Horse Racing track in the
Central Business District. Eight district municipalities including Amajuba,
Umzinyathi, Uthungulu, Zululand, Umgungundlovu, Sisonke, Uthukela
and Ugu, participated in this year’s extravaganza.

The main attraction was horse riding featuring uKutelebhela and
racing. There were approximately 150 horses in the event. Support
activities included traditional beer making display, stick fighting,
indigenous games, dance, music and traditional fashion. The event had
its first female rider and she put up a very creditable performance in
a very male dominated sport.

The festival has the following benefits:

• Focus on rural development which promotes transformation.

• Recognition of indigenous activities ensuring sustainability of values
and customs (nation building).

• Organisational skills whch are passed on to the target group during
the festival thereby addressing the issue of human resource capacity.

Key stakeholders were the Department of Sport and Recreation,
Umzinyathi District Municipality, Endumeni Local Municipality, KwaZulu-
Natal Horse Riding Society, Harness Racing Association, Gold Circle,
Dundee Horse Riding Club, Umzinyathi/Dundee Publicity Association,
Local Inkosi, Premier’s Office, Local Sport and Recreation Organisation/s,
NSPCA and other essential services (namely SAPS, Disaster
Management, Ambulance Services. etc)

C) RECRE-HAB
One of the major concerns amongst South Africans is the level of

crime.  Criminal activities such as rape, murder, armed robberies, drug
abuse and petty offences are reported daily.  The problem is exacerbated
by contributing factors such as unemployment and high level of poverty.
In some parts of KwaZulu-Natal poverty is as high as seventy percent.
It is no surprise that prisons are reported to be overpopulated.  Statistics
further show that a significant part of those in prisoners are habitual
offenders.

In dealing with this problem, the Department of Sport and Recreation
has embarked upon extensive mass participation programmes at
community level as a prevention strategy.  The MEC for Sport and
Recreation, Mr A. Rajbansi has been very vocal in driving the department
towards the introduction of Recre-hab programmes in Correctional
Centres.  This is a joint initiative with the Department of Correctional
Services and a Memorandum of Understanding has been signed
between both partners.

Recre-Hab is a rehabilitation programme for prisoners and street
children.  Recreation can be an alternative to unhealthy behavior such
as drug abuse and violence. In the prisons, the recre-hab programmes
are integrated with other prison programmes on a daily and weekly
basis. In the case of street children, the programme is integrated with
other activities which seek to re-integrate street children with society.
Activities are open ended with a weekly fun league. The vision of this
programme i s  rehab i l i t a t ion  through empower ment .

The programme is currently operational in 14 of the 27 prisons in
the province. 44 Recreation leaders have been trained and 19, 000
participants have participated in this programme on a monthly basis.
Exciting activities include fun games, recreational sports, indigenous
games, therapeutic talks/debates, artistic and cultural pursuits. The
programme is facilitated by prison authorities.

Offenders are given basic training in administration, leadership,
lifeskills and first aid.  In addition to training, equipment is provided to
run programes effectively.  Designated officials from both Correctional
Services and Sport and Recreation monitor the programe on a monthly
basis. The programme is targeted to be extended to the rest of the
correctional centres in the province in 2008/2009.

D) WORK AND PLAY
Employee wellbeing and attitude can affect production and service

delivery. Recreation provides the necessary atmosphere and environment
to energise employees, encourage inter-departmental co-operation
and improve their wellbeing.  Each provincial department is expected
to commit to providing recreational opportunities as part of their
employee wellbeing strategy. Activities have been staged at a district
level with a yearly provincial festival.
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E) ACTIVE SENIORS
Senior Citizens, like children, are classified as most vulnerable. They

suffer from neglect, emotional and physical abuse, and are generally
physically not strong. Like everyone else, recreation benefits them by
improving their wellness and confidence. Activities are therefore
structured such that their needs to socialize and improve physical and
emotional strength are enhanced.

120 Senior recreation clubs have been created and/or supported
through all 11 districts. The programme allows for some activities held
during pension payout days. Activities include: socializing, dancing,
singing, sport and recreation days, pension fun day activities, sight
seeing tours, arts and crafts, home-based entertainment.

11 Senior citizen festivals were staged around the province to
celebrate the senior’s month of October. Activities are led by trained
programme leaders. 11 Facilitators were accredited in 2007/2008 to
train leaders in districts to run sustainable programmes. This programme
is conducted in collaboration with Age in Action and the Social Welfare
Department.

F) BEACH GAMES
Umgababa is situated about 45 km South of Durban.  In the past

Umgababa used to be a popular beach ,“a place to be”, mainly for
people of African origin because of the segregation policies of the
government of the time. This tranquil beach used to be host to thousands
of people descending from as far as Gauteng, Mpumalanga and Eastern
Cape.  Sadly, political violence in the 80’s and 90’s and criminals
destroyed whatever infrastructure existed.

It is in this context that government saw it necessary to contribute
to Umgababa’s redevelopment. In 2006 a successful pilot two day
beach festival was introduced. Over 2000 people participated and wide
media coverage was received.  This initiative is part of a broader
development plans to revive coastline beaches, especially in the former
disadvantaged areas.

The 2007 festival featured four districts: Ugu, Ethekwini, Ilembe
and Uthungulu. Approximately 3000 people attended. It took place
from 15-16 December 2007.

Activities included:

• Water based activities:  surfing, rescue mission activities, body
boarding, water safety awareness.

• Sand based:  Beach soccer, beach volleyball, beach netball, action
rugby, beach handball, sand castle competitions.

• Land based:  Musical and dance, beauty competitions, body building,
Indigenous games.

• Kiddies activities: included jumping castles.

• Some of the ac tivit ies were competit ive in nature.

Other role players included the Ethekwini Municipality, sport and
recreation organisations, the local community and Igagasi FM as the
official media partner. This Beach Festival Programme achieved the
following objectives:

• A positive image of Umgababa and rekindled interest in the area.

• Provided alternative positive activities for the community.

• Stimulated the economy as local service providers were used.

• Developed an active beach culture.

• Promoted an active lifestyle.

• Fostered skills development.

• Direct beneficiaries included families in general, tourism and water
sport enthusiasts.

The Umgababa Beach Festival has the potential of becoming one
of the finest beach festivals along the south coast.  There is growing
public awareness of the festival.  The number people attending the
festival are expected to grow.  The festival seeks to encourage the use
of natural resources for recreational pursuits.  The department will
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explore the possibility of extending this programme to other coastal
districts in 2008/2009.

G) SIYADLALA COMMUNIT Y MA SS PARTICI PATION
PROGRAMME

The Siyadlala national flagship programme aimed at getting the
nation to play commenced in 2004 with 4 hubs. The programme offers
the following activities – aerobics, gymnastrada, fun walks/jogs, street
ball, volleyball and indigenous games.  South Africa has a high level of
lifestyle challenges, diseases, including high blood pressure, heart attacks
and crime. This programme seeks to address these modern day ills
facing communities. The programme also seeks to reduce levels of
poverty by employing youth aged between 18-35 years.

In 2005 an additional 16 Hubs were added to the programme
bringing the total to 20. The purpose of the hubs is to provide skills
and opportunities for participation in a variety of sporting codes and
indigenous games. In 2006/07 the department increased the number
of hubs to 40. The hubs render life skills support to the youth in their
communities. The programme also focuses on high crime areas,
government nodal points, rural and poverty stricken areas.

This programme is co-ordinated by the National Department of
Sport and Recreation through the Dora Grant. The programme is being
rolled out through the system of hubs (Community Recreation Centres)
which are run by the youth themselves. Daily programmes offered by
the hubs include aerobics, recreational sports such as fun athletics,
action soccer, volley ball, learn to swim, dance as well as variety of
Indigenous Games.  Youth also offer first aid, and provides basic life
skills support to other youth.

• In the 2007/08 financial 65 year hubs have either been established
or reconfirmed.

• A total of 321 youth have been trained to run programmes.  Training
has been conducted by accredited facilitators and sport federations.

• Each hub is serviced by a hub coordinator and 9 activity leaders.

• Each hub coordinator earns a stipend of R1, 800 per month and
the activity leaders receive a stipend of R1, 200 per month. Research
has shown that this stipend on average is able to feed an average
family of five.

• 50% of the youth employed are women.

• In total 650 youth are employed in this programme.

• Volunteers have undergone intensive training involving basic sport
and recreation administration, life skills, recreational sport, Indigenous
Games and first aid.

• The primary beneficiaries of the programme are the youth,
disadvantaged areas/groups and the programme provides equal
opportunities for women.

• The programme benefits all 61 local municipalities and is making
an impact in transforming public sport and recreation services.

• 400, 000 People have benefited from this programme in the
2007/2008 financial year.

• A total budget of R 16, 3m was allocated in 2007/2008.

With the launch of the Siyadlala Mass Participation Programme in
July 2004, government committed itself to taking sport and recreation
to the people. This decision was informed by the observation of how
sport had died in most communities. The success of this programme
has given life to dormant facilities. Sport and recreation is becoming
a way of life in dusty villages and remote communities. The youth and
aged are beginning to see the value of recreational activity towards a
healthy lifestyle. The department intends to deepen participation and
improve organization within community structures in 2008/2009.
This will ensure both development and social integration.

A list of Siyadlala Mass Participation Hubs for 2007/2008
is attached:

eThekwini eThekwini

Umgungundlovu

Ilembe

Sisonke

Ugu

Umgungundlovu

Umkhanyakude

Region District Number of Hubs

Zululand Uthungulu

Zululand

uThukela

Ukhahlamba Amajuba

Umzinyathi

Total

7

8

5

6

7

6

6

5

6

4

5

65

 SIYADLALA HUBS 2007/2008
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H) WORLD GYMNASTRADA CHAMPIONSHIPS-AUSTRIA
The department’s investment in the mass participation programme

has begun to pay dividends. In addition to Rope Skipping that has been
introduced in the hubs, gymnastrada has become very popular. The
KwaZulu-Natal Gymnastics Union has been most enthusiastic in assisting
the department with driving these programmes in its numerous activity
hubs. A large contingent of gymnasts from the department’s hubs
participated in the South African Gymnastrada Championships in
Tshwane, Pretoria last year. A large contingent of gymnasts were
selected to participate in the July World Gymnastrada Festival in
Dornbirn, Austria. The department is proud to record that its mass
participation programme gave 5 youth from our rural hubs the
opportunity to travel to Austria to be part of a world festival.

I)  CAPACITY BUILDING
There is no doubt that KwaZulu-Natal will continue to make a more

significant impact in the next few years as we marshall increasing
resources in the direction of sport and recreation. However we need
to recognise, now more than ever, the lack of skills or opportunities
to explore people’s capacity that is still prevalent in sport and recreation
and other areas, and the poor leadership that was suffocating our
federations from performing to their full potential. It is for this reason
that the department shifted its focus slightly towards creating
opportunities for youth and other sport and recreation leaders to
improve their levels of skill and capacity to administer, coach or manage
sport and recreation programmes and/or athletes.

Programme

Siyadlala Mass
Participation- Hub
Coordinators

eThekweni Ilembe Amajuba Uthukela Sisonke

The following table presents statistics on the number of people (predominantly rural) that were trained in the various recreation programmes:

Zul Umkh

Number of People Trained Per District

Umzin Ugu Umg Uthun

Total

Recre-Hab
Coordinators
and Leaders

Recreation Leaders
for Active Seniors

Horse Owners /
Grooms / Jockeys
trained for Rural
Horse Riding

Indigenous Games
Coordinators

Total

35

20

16

15

86

40

-

-

12

52

20

10

-

12

42

30

8

10

12

60

25

10

10

12

57

30

9

10

14

63

25

8

10

12

55

35

8

10

10

63

25

10

10

15

60

30

10

10

15

65

30

8

-

15

53

325

101

120

86

144

656
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3.4.2.9 SUB-PROGRAMME:  JUNIOR SPORT

The future of sport in the country is undoubtedly determined by
the degree of investment in the youth. The Junior Sport programmes
focus on the promotion and development of sport with the prime
purpose of developing a healthy nation. Programmes are designed to
ensure inclusive and integrated involvement of both the able-bodied
as well as those with special needs. The plan and implementation of
these programmes are undertaken together with the federations and
the Department of Education who are the key stakeholders.

A) FEDERATIONS
Sports federations play a pivotal and significant role in the promotion

and development of sport in the country. The department has been
fully involved in Mass Participation and Talent Identification programmes
with the intention of satisfying both the need to increase overall
participation in sport incrementally and cater for the needs of high
performance athletes. A total of 100, 000 youth from all areas
throughout the province have been exposed to training and development
programmes in football, netball, rugby, athletics, volleyball, hockey,
swimming and cricket. In addition, technical officials have successfully
completed training in order to equip themselves with the necessary
skills to promote the different codes of sport.

B) COMPETITIVE SCHOOL SPORT
The Provincial and National School Sport Championships are a joint

initiative of both the Department of Education and the Department
of Sport and Recreation with the Department of Sport and Recreation
being the lead department. The department was responsible for the
funding of 129 primary school and 140 secondary school athletes
selected to represent the province at the national championships held
in Pretoria and Port Elizabeth respectively .The department was also
responsible for the hosting of the Provincial All Ages and  Summer
Games which were held in Richards Bay and Chatsworth respectively.

A total of 1, 800 learners from throughout the province participated
in the Games which resulted in the selection of the provincial teams
to participate in the National Games. KwaZulu-Natal was also chosen
to host the National All Ages Games which was successfully completed
at the University of KwaZulu-Natal, Howard College Campus where
all nine provinces converged to compete against one another.

In addition to staging the Games the department also provided
both the All Ages and Summer Games provincial teams with playing
attire. The National Summer Games was held in Pretoria.

C) JUNIOR FOOTBALL ORGANISERS
The Junior Football Organizers Programme was launched in 2006

with the prime purpose of inspiring young people through football to
see themselves as valuable contributors to the 2010 World Cup. The
programme focuses on capacity building of referees, coaches,
administrators and the mass participation of 12 year olds in small sided
football games. A total of 6, 000 learners and 300 administrators were
involved in the programme which was rolled out throughout the
Province.

D) SCHOOL SPORT MASS PARTICIPATION
PROGRAMME (SSMPP)
The School Sport Mass Participation Programme, a joint initiative

of both the Department of Sport and Recreation and the Department
of Education, was launched in 2006 with a total of 159 schools. The
2007/2008 financial year marked the introduction of a further 162
schools to the programme resulting in 321 schools and 160, 000 learners
from previously disadvantaged areas engaging in a sustained programme
targeting mass participation.

Job Creation
The appointment of youth is a key element of the programme

which also strives to eradicate unemployment and poverty. A total of
343 unemployed youth from previously disadvantaged areas who
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receive a monthly stipend ranging from R1, 212 to R1, 818 per month
and a telephone allowance of R100 are contracted to assist with the
administration of the programme. School Sport Assistants are appointed
at each of the 321 schools to assist educators with encouraging mass
participation in sport amongst learners which is a specific outcome of
the programme. A total of 18 coordinators are contracted to manage
the programme within each cluster. In addition, 3 contract employees
are based at head office to manage the human resource matters
pertaining to the programme.

Capacity Building
Equipping volunteers with the necessary skills is an essential part

of the programme which uses the building of capacity and the gaining
of relevant experience as an exit strategy for future permanent
employment. A total of 172 cluster coordinators and school sports
assistants attended training in event management, first aid, and life
skills. In addition, 1, 734 educators and volunteers from 321 nominated
schools have successfully completed a training programme which
targeted the development of coaching and administration skills which
is crucial to the promotion of sport. Many of these coaches who hail
from rural disadvantaged areas were afforded the opportunity to attend
training courses for the first time. Since the inception of the programme
340 cluster coordinators and school sport assistants and 2, 688
volunteers have undergone the relevant training which is accredited
by SETA.

Equipment
The provision of resources is crucial to the promotion, development

and sustainability of the programme. A significant part of the budget
has been utilized to ensure that all 321 schools in the programme
receive equipment and playing attire in the nominated codes of sport
(football, netball, volleyball, cricket, rugby and athletics). Each school
received equipment and playing attire to the value of R45,000. In
addition, schools were provided with permanent goal posts and portable
netball and volleyball posts.

Festivals
The formation of local leagues and the involvement of schools in

a sustainable programme of cluster fixtures is a significant part of the
programme. Schools are encouraged to promote mass participation
in sport amongst learners within the school as well as focus on
opportunities for talented players through inter-school participation.
A total of 36 cluster festivals which is a culmination of the ongoing
leagues, have been completed during the 2007/2008 financial year.
These festivals, which involved the participation of 10 000 learners,
800 educators and 20, 000 spectators; provided schools with an
opportunity to showcase their talent against other schools within the
cluster. The impact of the programme was evident by the improvement
in both the standard of play amongst the learners as well as the overall
organization of the festivals. The talented players were identified for
further development and specialized coaching by the respective
federations who play a pivotal role in the programme. Also of significance

was the tremendous interest, dedication, and commitment shown by
principals and educators towards the development of sport at schools.

UK / SA LINKAGE PROGRAMME

School Links
Mqedandaba High School from the UKhahlamba Region and

Mnyankanya High School from the Zululand Region have been chosen
to forge links with two Sports Colleges from the UK. The purpose of
this initiative is to recognize good practices in sport in schools from
other countries and thereafter design similar programmes for
implementation in our schools.  The principals and lead teachers from
these schools were part of a study tour of the United Kingdom. In
addition, programme development managers from the UK conducted
training of cluster coordinators and school sports assistants from the
Emangwaneni and Kwa Nxamalala Clusters.

Bambisanani Partnership Programme
David Geldart, Assistant Head Teacher of St. Mary’s School from

the UK, together with 2 members of staff and 9 students from Leeds
visited Mnyakanya High School from Nkandla on 7-14 March 2008.
The purpose of the visit was to reinforce the established partnership
linkage and to conduct joint leadership training with South African
learners, sport assistants and educators.  The programme culminated
in a successful cluster festival involving 150 participants from the 10
primary schools in Nkandla. The festival was graced by the presence
of the MEC for Sport and Recreation KwaZulu-Natal, the Mayor of
Nkandla, the Chief Director from the Department of Education and
other dignitaries. It was patronized by 250 local spectators. The
programme was based on introductory games in football, netball,
volleyball, athletics, rugby and cricket.

Achievements
The introduction of the School Sport Mass Participation Programme

was initially intended to create awareness thereby generating greater
interest, enthusiasm and involvement of learners in sporting activities.

• The mass participation of learners in the various codes of sport
has resulted in the identification of young talented athletes by the
respective federations. Through the federations and the school
sport structures many learners from the School Sport Mass
Participation Programme schools represented the province at
national tournaments in various codes of sport.

• Ohlange High School from the Inanda/Phoenix School Sport Mass
Participation Programme cluster, and affiliate of  the KwaZulu-
Natal Rugby Union, who are currently participating in KwaZulu-
Natal Women’s Premier League, are rated as one of the best
performing teams in the Province.

• Mbali Ndlovu from Inzululwazi  Secondary  School in the Buffalo
Flats Cluster has been selected for the Banyana Banyana Team.
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• Sbongiseni Miya from Silindokuhle Secondary School (Klip River
Cluster) has been drafted into the KwaZulu-Natal U19 football
team whilst Moffet Shabalala from Ladysmith Secondary School
(Klip River Cluster) was signed by Kaizer Chiefs for its U17 nursery.

• Mr. V. B. Zondo, an educator from Malusi Omuhlue Primary  School
who attended the School Sport Mass Participation Programme
Volleyball Coaching Course in 2007 was selected as the Assistant
Coach of the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Schools Volleyball Team
which emerged National Champions at the Summer Games
in Pretoria.

LIST OF SSMPP CLUSTERS AND SCHOOLS: 2007/2008

District

Head Office

eThekwini

Number Of
Primary
Schools

Number Of
Secondary
Schools

Total Number
Of Schools

Number Of
Volunteers
Trained

Ilembe

Sisonke

Ugu

Umgungundlovu

Uthungulu

Zululand

Umkhanyakude

Umzinyathi

Uthukela

Amajuba

18

18

18

17

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

18

17

17

321

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

180

8

8

8

7

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

7

7

141

1

19

19

19

18

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

19

18

18

340Total

Cluster

Mpumalanga

Wentworth/Lamontville/Chatsworth/Umbumbulu

Inanda/Phoenix

Ndwedwe

Umzimkhulu

Umzumbe

Impendle

Umshwathi

Kwa Nxamalala

Obuka

Empembeni

Kwa Ceza

Emanyiseni

Hlazakazi

Ngubevu

Klip River

Emangwaneni

Buffalo Flats
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3.4.2.10  SUB-PROGRAMME: FACILITIES
In spite of its limited budget the Department of Sport and Recreation

is endeavouring to take the provision of sport and recreation facilities
out of the trenches and this year will handover 21 newly completed
facilities to the most disadvantaged communities. The department’s
infrastructure plan focuses on building for sport and recreation, creating
job opportunities, poverty alleviation, capacity building and strengthening
inter-governmental relations. Since its inception this programme has
created more than 1, 000 jobs for individuals from local communities
as project managers, skilled and unskilled labour and, for SMME’s. The
department has conducted appropriate accredited training to capacitate
these individuals.

The lack of adequate sports and recreation facilities in the province
still poses a significant challenge to the department, impacting on the
actual programmes and events that the department can facilitate.  The
department commenced with several infrastructure projects in
2006/2007, and the number of these projects is set to grow over the
2007/2008 MTEF with the additional allocation for sport and recreation
facilities. The construction of these facilities is being carried out in
partnership with district municipalities, to address the need to provide
basic sport and recreation facilities for communities. The department
undertook the construction of facilities in partnership with municipalities.
The department has utilized the municipalities as implementing agents
for the construction of facilities.

Whilst the construction of new facilities generally shows slow
progress during the start up phase, the rate of progress accelerates
considerably towards the end of the financial year. Whilst the department
will have on record signed PIA’s with municipalities it can only play a
monitoring and evaluation role. Municipalities are responsible for the
appointment of service providers but the progress is  slow due to their
own procurement and tender processes and the finalization of
environment impact studies.

In an effort to speed up the process of service delivery the
department holds regular meetings with municipal managers and
fostered direct communication with mayoral offices in the District
Municipalities. In the first quarter of the 2007/2008 financial year a

total of 65 project steering committee members received training
through orientation meetings and workshops.

In 2008/2009 the department will handover an Olympic  size
swimming pool in Nkandla, phase one of a horse riding facility in
Dundee, two basic sports fields in Umzimkhulu, a cricket pitch in
Dannhauser, and 31 combination courts (multi-purpose courts) catering
for basketball, netball, volleyball and tennis. The Inkosi Bhambatha
Sports Complex in Msinga and a beach recreational facility at the Tugela
River Mouth in Mandeni are also ready for hand-over. Construction
of these facilities commenced in the 2007/2008 financial year.

In our efforts to get athletics to clear the hurdle of a lack of suitable
tracks the department has invested in the construction of two
international standard synthetic track and field facilities in Richards Bay
and Pietermaritzburg and, whose first phases are due for completion
in 2009. In emulating Kenya’s success at unearthing raw world class
athletic talent from their deepest rural areas, the department will
handover the Ulundi Athletics Track this year. This track is sure to
benefit a number of schools, clubs and communities in their pursuit of
identifying and developing talent. The Ulundi facility can also cater for
football, rugby, netball and volleyball and also has a swimming pool
attached to it. We can proudly boast of this being the only facility of
its kind in the northern part of our Province. This world class facility
is sure to attract major sports events into the hinterland.

In addition to communities benefiting from top quality sport and
recreation facilities, the department’s infrastructure development
programme for 2007/2008 has yielded 554 additional jobs in grass
planting, erection or drainage, irrigation, fencing and bricklaying with
50% of these occupied by women. A total of 54 Project Steering
Committees were formed and members received accredited training.
This year the department expects to complete a facilities audit in the
Province and thus produce a strategy to address the infrastructure
backlogs. By 2009/2010 the department would have constructed 89
facilities and created more than 2000 job opportunities throughout
the Province.

A list of facilities for the 2007/2008 financial year is attached.
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District
Municipality

Amount
Allocation

Status

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Overall
progress 85%

Construction
commenced

Completed

Completed

Overall
progress 85%

Overall
progress 70%

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Name of project

Inkanyiso Sportsfield
(upgr)

Ezakheni Sportsfield

Inkosi Bhambatha
Sportsfield

Ndumeni Rural
Horse Riding

Isithebe  Sportsfield

Emondlo Sportsfield

Newstand Sportsfield

Mpolweni Sportsfield

Murray Park Sportsfield

Ndumo Sportsfield

Mzinto Sportsfield

Qwabe Sportsfield

Nelly Valley Sportsfield

Imbabazana Sportsfield

Ncotshane Sportsfield

Egqumeni Sportsfield

Bhambatha Sportsfield

Kwacinci

Emachibini

Deepdale Primary School

Zwelinzima High School

Local
Municipality

Hlabisa

Emnambithi

Umvoti

Endumeni

Mandeni

Abaqulusi

uKhahlamba

Mshwathi

Greater
Kokstad

Jozini

Umdoni

Umzumbe

Danhauser

Imbabazane

Phongolo

Ingwe

Umvoti

Mbonambi

Mandeni

uMzimkhulu

uMzimkhulu

uMkhanyakude

Uthukela

uMzinyathi

uMzinyathi

Ilembe

Zululand

UThukela

Umgungundlovu

Sisonke

Umkhanyakude

Ugu

Ugu

Amajuba

uThukela

Zululand

Sisonke

uMzinyathi

uThungulu

Ilembe

Sisonke

Sisonke Completed

Scope of work

Earthworks, combo courts, changerooms, grand
stands and grassing

Palisade fencing, soccer pitch, irrigation system

Soccer pitch, palisade fencing, grand stands,
ablution block and irrigation system

Ablution block, clubhouse, railings, race track
and fencing

Soccer pitch, palisade fencing, ablution block,
irrigation system

Palisade fencing, parking area and main gate.

Soccer pitch, palisade fencing, ablution block,
irrigation system

Repair fence, combo-courts, ablution and
change rooms

Earthworks, irrigation, grassing, ablution block
and fencing

Palisade fencing, earthworks, ablution blocks and
sportsfield leveling.

Renovation of changerooms and ablutions,
soccer pitch, floodlights, security house

Ablution block, fencing, soccer pitch,
irrigation system

Repair and renovation to existing sportsfield.

Repair and renovation to existing sportsfield.

Repair and renovation to existing sportsfield.

Repair and renovation to existing sportsfield.

Repair and renovation to existing sportsfield.

Repair and renovation to existing sportsfield.

Repair and renovation to existing sportsfield.

Erection of combo court for netball, basketball,
volleyball and tennis

Erection of combo court for netball, basketball,
volleyball and tennis

Maphumulo Sports
Complex

Maphumulo Ilembe

R1,200,000

R1,100,000

R 1,500,000

R 2,000,000

R 1,300,000

R 1,000,000

R 1,2,000,00

R 1,000,000

R1,200,000

R1,500,000

R1,300,000

R1,000,000

R200,000

R194,000

R197,000

R182,000

R92,000

R195,000

R190,000

R 184,000

R 184,000

R 1,000,000 Construction
commenced

combo-court, concrete seating, ablution block

TenderR1,000,000

R1,000,000 Construction
at 75%

Phatheni Sportsfield

KwaMnqobokazi

Richmond

Big Five

Umgungundlovu

Umkhanyakude

Grand stands, change rooms, combo courts,
palisade fencing

Fencing, ablution blocks, soccer pitch, storm water

List of Facilities for 2007/2008



Newcastle

Emadlangeni

Danhauser

eDumbe
uPhongolo

Ulundi

Nongoma

Abaqulusi

Jozini

Hlabisa

Mtubatuba

Big Five

Nkandla

Mthonjaneni

Umlalazi

Ntambanana
Mbonambi

Ndwedwe

Maphumulo Mandeni

eThekwini

Umvoti

Umsinga

NquthuEndumeni

Emnambithi

Indaka

Umtshezi

Imbabazane

uMshwathiuMngeni

Mooi Mpofana

Impendle

Msunduzi

Mkhambathini

Richmond

Vulamehlo

uMuziwabantu

Ezingolweni

Ingwe
KwaSani

Greater
Kokstad

uBuhlebezwe

Umhlabuyalingana

uKhahlamba

KwaDukuza

uMhlathuze

Hibiscus Coast

Umdoni

uMzimkhulu

Umzumbe

A graphical representation of facilities completed in local municipalities in KwaZulu-Natal

Combo-Courts
The department constructed a total of 31 combination
courts (combo) in the 2007/2008 financial year. Two
combo-courts were built in uMzimkhulu; at Deepdale
Primary School and Zwelinzima High School. The combo-
courts cater for netball, basketball, volleyball and tennis.

Schools are targeted by the department as this prevents
these facilities from being vandalised. The department
has an agreement in place with these schools to allow
access to the community at large. In addition to
uMzimkhulu, combo-courts have being erected in
eThekwini, Amajuba, uThungulu, Zululand and the Ilembe
Municipalities. Combo-courts are built at an average
cost of R200,000.
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SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
The tables below include the measurable objectives, performance measure indicators, targets and actual output per target per sub-programme.

Measurable ObjectiveStrategic Objective

1. Junior Sport

To ensure proper team delivery
to inter-provincial and national
junior sport competitions as
well as to promote active mass
participation of youth that will
lead to the identification of
talented athletes for a
sustainable sport and
recreation environment.

Performance measure Indicator 2007/2008
Annual Target

2007/2008
Actual output

• Number of participants

• Number of talented athletes identified
that were taken into high performance
structure/programme

To deliver and support
participation in inter-provincial
and national junior sport
competitions

• Number of coaches participatingIncrease participation by
developing and implementing
targeted programmes
(different sport codes in
partnership with stakeholders)

• Number of  technical officials participating

• Number of administrators participating

• Number of female participants

• Number of disabled participants

 2. Community Sport

To ensure proper team delivery
to inter-provincial and national
junior sport competitions as
well as to promote active mass
participation of youth that will
lead to the identification of
talented athletes for a
sustainable sport and
recreation environment.

Support the establishment and
functioning of appropriate
structures and partnerships

Increase participation by
developing and implementing
targeted programmes
(different sport codes in
partnership with stakeholders)

Support and develop capacity
building programmes

To facilitate, support and
render High performance
services

• Number of provincial, district and local
co-ordinating structures established

• Number of participants

• Number of women participants

• Number of disabled participants

• Number of youth participants

• Number of sport administrators trained

• Number of coaches trained and developed

• Number of technical officials trained
and developed

• Number of Volunteers

• Number of athletes supported through
high performance programmes

160,000

700

2,700

3,800

2,100

70,000

3,000

61

160,000

60,000

3,700

120,000

1,000

2,200

500

2,200

800

190,800

725

2,721

3,836

2,310

73,004

2,963

146

161,999

67,576

2,943

124,038

776

3,253

866

1,960

916
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Strategic Objective

To provide sustainable
recreation / mass participation
programmes and structures as
well as creating opportunities
to communities across the age
spectra in order to live an active
healthy life style.

Performance measure Indicator 2007/2008
Annual Target

2007/2008
Actual output

Measurable Objective

Increase mass participation by
developing and implementing
targeted programmes in
partnership with relevant
stakeholders

• No. of on-going programmes

• No. of participants

• No. of events presented

Facilitate formation of viable
and self sustainable recreation
structures and organisations

• No. of recreational structures formed /
supported

• No. of structures trained in administration

Support and facilitate capacity
building programmes

• No. of trained officials/volunteers

• No. of accredited facilitators

To ensure access, upgrading
and provision of sport and
recreation facilities.

Facilitate the establishment
of appropriate structures

• No. of structures established

• No of trained individuals to monitor the
construction and management of facilities

Facilitate the building,
upgrading and renovation
of facilities • Number of facilities upgraded and

renovated

• Number of new facilities constructed

Continuous monitoring and
evaluation of the provision
of facilities

• Number of  reports (including site
inspection records)

Facilitate and coordinate
effective utilisation and
development of facilities

• Consultation with municipalities and
Federation, utilisation programmes

Facilitate and coordinate the
provision of sport equipment
and machinery

• Number of municipalities that received
equipment for maintenance

Creating job opportunities • No. of people employed

• Permanent

• Temporary

• SMME (contracts)

Skills and training • Number of learnership contracts

630

21

161

6

17

252

Ongoing

21

21

609

21

1

581

30

145

8

18

251

Ongoing

10

21

533

23

5

 3. Recreation

 4. Facilities

7

315,000

61

61

61

1,830

61

24

401,797

185

87

79

1,181

0
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Strategic Objective

To ensure sustainable
development and promotion
of sport and recreation
with emphasis towards
disadvantaged communities.

Performance measure Indicator 2007/2008
Annual Target

2007/2008
Actual output

Measurable Objective

Promote mass participation
programmes in the schools that
encourage healthy lifestyle and
well-being

• Number of clusters involved

• Number of schools involved

• No of administrators trained

• No of learners involved in the programme

To ensure sustainable
development and promotion
of sport and recreation
with emphasis towards
disadvantaged communities.

Promote mass participation
programmes in the province
that encourage healthy lifestyle
and well-being

• No. of organised events

• No. of clubs and groups formed

• No. of municipalities empowered to run
programmes

• No. of hubs created

• No. of jobs created

6. Community Mass Participation

• No of educators/ volunteers trained

19

329

348

83,952

5,759

18

321

172

152,109

1,734

• No of administrators trained

• No. of trained activity co-coordinators

• No. of participations

61

61

61

30

610

610

610

600,000

25

63

82

69

328

322

881

710,233

5. Mass School Sport
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Report of the
Audit Committee
On Vote 16 – Sports And Recreation

l

The KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Audit Committee is pleased to present their report for the financial year ended 31 March 2008.

Audit Committee Members and Attendance:
The Audit Committee consists of the members listed hereunder

and should meet four times in a financial year as per its approved terms
of reference. During the year under review a new committee was
constituted due to the resignation of outgoing members. During the
2007/2008 financial year a total of five (5) meetings were held and
the new committee has been in office for two (2) of those meetings.

Name of Member       
Adv B. S. Khuzwayo 4
Mr. B.P. Champbell  (Previous Member) 3
Mr. A.D.K. Leisegang (Previous Member) 3
Mr. S. Luthuli (newly appointed Chairperson) 1
Mr V. Naicker 2
Adv W.S. Kuboni 2
Mrs. M.T. Sibanyoni 1

  Number of meetings  attended

Audit Committee Responsibility
The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its

responsibilities arising from Section 38 (1) (a) (ii) of the Public Finance
Management Act and Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.  The Audit Committee
also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference
as its Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance
with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained
therein.

The Effectiveness of Internal Control
The system of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance

that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities and working capital are
efficiently managed.  In line with the PFMA and the King II Report on
Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit
Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls
are appropriate and effective.  This is achieved by means of the risk
management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions

and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes.  From the
various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Report of the Auditor-
General on the Annual Financial Statements both any qualification
and/or the emphasis of matter, and the management report of the
Auditor-General, it was noted that no significant or material non
compliance with prescribed policies and procedures have been reported
except for Supply Chain Management.

The quality of in year management and monthly / quarterly reports
submitted in terms of the Treasury Regulations and the Division
of Revenue Act

The Audit Committee did not review and therefore cannot comment
on the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared
and issued by the Accounting Officer and the Department during the
year under review. A system for such monitoring is in the process of
being developed.

Evaluation of Financial Statements
The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited annual financial

statements and the Auditor-General’s management report and
management’s response thereto. The Audit Committee concurs and
accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the annual financial
statements, and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial
statements be accepted and read together with the report of the
Auditor-General.

Adv B. S. Khuzwayo
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Report of the Accounting Officer
for the year ended 31 March 2008

1. General review of the state of financial affairs
The department under spent its budget for the 2007/2008 financial

year by R2,179 m. The under spending is in Programme 2: Sport Co-
ordination for facilities.  All funds budgeted for transfers to municipalities
for the construction of facilities were not transferred to municipalities
who are the implementing agents.  Capital transfer payments are made
to the municipalities and the department is wholly dependent on the
implementing municipalities for completion of the facilities. During
the 2007/2008 financial year the commencement for the construction
of 7 facilities were delayed due to unforseen circumstances which were
not present at the time of preparing the adjusted budget.  These
circumstances include management changes at municipalities, non-
appointment of project managers/ EIA specialists/ contractors etc,
capacity constraints at municipalities, alteration of proposed sites at
municipal level, absence of final business plans, conflicting project
decisions between district and local municipalities. Although there was
a delay in the commencement of these projects, they are in progress
and the percentage completion as at 31 March 2008 is between 50%
and 75%.  These projects will be completed in the 1st and 2nd quarter
of the 2008/2009 financial year.   A request for a rollover of these
funds has been submitted to Provincial Treasury. Notwithstanding this
the department has completed numerous facilities in previously
disadvantaged areas which include inter alia sports fields, stadiums, a
swimming pool and sports complexes in 10 District municipalities across
the province.

The department realised savings in compensation of employees as
a result of delays in the filling of vacant posts. These savings were
utilised for the implementation of sport and recreation programmes
in Programme 2: Sport Co-ordination and on capital purchases in
Programme 1: Administration. Capital purchases were overspent due
to additional IT requirements for the establishment of district offices
and purchase of software licences for new staff appointments.  A net
amount of R212, 000 was vired to Programme 1: Administration from
Programme 2: Sport Co-ordination to defray over expenditure on
capital assets.  The virements were in accordance with the PFMA and
Treasury Regulations and a letter has been forwarded to the Provincial
Treasury for review and approval. The department’s staff compliment
increased from 119 as at 31 March 2007 to 150 as at 31 March 2008.
 The targeted number of posts was 162, which was not achieved due
to posts being filled by internal candidates, suitable candidates not
identified and resignations which resulted in savings being realised on
compensation of employees.

R15 million was allocated in the current financial year for the 2010
World Cup which was fully utilised for the construction of new facilities
renovations to existing facilities, player development through the
introduction of the U17 league, capacity building of coaches, referees
and technical officials and provision of equipment to the South African

Football Association (SAFA). The department focused on developing
policies to establish and refine processes, capacitating staff and recruiting
volunteers for the Mass Participation Programme (MPP). This
programme not only swells the ranks of sports programmes, but also
creates job opportunities and develops skills.

The department fully utilised the conditional grant to mobilise
communities through the Siyadladla School Sport Mass Participation
Programmes and Club Development.

During the year, the department engaged in numerous activities
to promote and develop sport and recreation in the province. The
department’s focus on good corporate governance and human resource
development resulted in various training interventions and skills transfer
which have received a sharp focus of attention.

The department’s critical success factors during the year included:

• Over 80% of the budget being spent in previously disadvantaged
areas and on previously disadvantaged people, thus facilitating
transformation;

• Receiving high commendation from National Department for the
effective utilisation of Conditional Grants;

• Leading province in respect of School Sport Mass Participation
Programme. Excellent partnership with the Department of Education
has benefited 321 previously disadvantaged schools, 1, 734 educators,
152, 000 learners, recruitment and training of 171 unemployed
youth in the community, 3, 109 administrators, educators and
volunteers were trained, and the provision of basic equipment for
6 codes of sport viz. rugby, soccer, netball, cricket, volleyball and
athletics;

• The Club Development Programme yielded 80 registered clubs in
soccer and netball;

• Completion of 33 sport and recreation facilities, including one
swimming pool, a stadium, a sports complex and 31 combo courts.
Increase in the number of Mass Participation Hubs to 65 benefiting
over 700, 000 people and creating 328 temporary employment
for unemployed youth in the communities, mostly women;

• Successful restructuring of SAFA along district municipality lines
and the start of a similar process with other codes;

• Implementing the under 17 League for soccer;

• Increased participation of women in sport related activities; and
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• Capacity Building – The Department, in partnership with the
Provincial Academy of Sport and sports federations have trained
and qualified coaches, administrators , technical officials and
administrators in football, athletics, cricket, rugby, volleyball, aquatics,
boxing, netball, hockey, table tennis, golf, and dance sport.

During the year, the department hosted, co-hosted and provided
human resources and financial assistance to the following major
events to promote and develop sport and recreation in the province:

• The Dusi Canoe Marathon, Comrade’s Marathon, Midmar Mile,
Spar Ladies Race, Telkom SA Aquatics Championship and National
Athletics championship;

• Kwanaloga Games – These games were supported in partnership
with Kwanaloga and district municipalities;

• The Premier Sport’s Award – This is an annual event held at the
International Convention Centre to recognise and reward the sport
achievers for the year. All sectors of the sporting fraternity were
recognised for their excellence in various codes of sport;

• Inter-Provincial Games the department assisted the department
of Local Government and Traditional Affairs with the provision of
human resources in preparation for and participation in the Inter-
Provincial Games;

• National and Provincial Indigenous Games – The department hosted
the Provincial Indigenous Games festival at Enseleni and participated
in the National Indigenous Games at Mdantsane in East London;

• Rural Horse Riding Festival – This is an annual event held in Dundee,
in partnership with local and district municipalities, the Horse Racing
Association and Gold Circle. The aim is to provide rural horse riders
the opportunity to pit their skills against each other in an attempt
to revive a traditional pastime;

• SA Games – The SA Games billed as one of the largest multi–coded
events on the South African sporting calendar was held during the
latter part of 2007. The week long spectacular saw 4, 500 athletes,
almost 500 from each of the nine provinces, together with 1, 000
technical and support staff converge on the city of Bloemfontein,
competing in 13 different sports codes. The department assisted
with the selection, preparation, provision of kit and clothing,
transport and accommodation of Team KwaZulu-Natal. The South
African Games has been instrumental in ensuring the integration
of our mainstream athletes and those with disabilities. It has also
been an excellent medium through which we identify our talented
athletes and accelerate their high performance path. The exploits

of Team KwaZulu-Natal at the Games where the Province won an
overwhelming 135 medals is testimony that the department’s
investment in the development of sport is beginning to reap
the dividends

• Pro 20 Cricket – The 20/20 Cricket World Cup was hosted in
South Africa from 10-24 September 2007. A total of 9 matches
were played at Kingsmead which included a semi-final. The
department used this initiative to provide opportunities for officials,
youth, and administrators in building their capacity in preparation
for the country’s hosting of major international events. Training
for experienced volunteers (Recognised Prior Learning candidates)
was conducted over a period of 3 days whilst all new volunteers
attended a 7 day training course. A total of 150 volunteers were
trained. The department also provided an opportunity for 3, 000
disadvantaged learners (primary / secondary schools) to attend
the ICC 20/20 World Cup South Africa, 2007.

2. Service rendered by the department

2.1 The department’s core functions are as follows:

• To initiate programmes targeting the development of human
resource potential relating to sport and recreation, through the
improvement of the quality of sport and recreation and the
development of coaches, trainers, administrators and volunteers.

• To ensure that sport and recreation are accessible to all people in
KwaZulu-Natal, particularly previously disadvantaged people, rural
communities, the disabled and women.

• To ensure alignment with and implementation of the national and
provincial sport and recreation policies, co-operative governance,
and the coordinated involvement of  stakeholders .

• To effect and co-ordinate national and international agreements
and initiatives, as reached by the province in the interests of sport
and recreation.

• To facilitate and organise sporting and recreational events, at district,
provincial and international level.

• To provide funding for and facilitate the implementation of sport
and recreation agencies in the province.

• To facilitate the provision and upgrading of sport and
recreation facilities.

Report of the Accounting Officer
for the year ended 31 March 2008
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• To accelerate the delivery of sport and recreation in the province
through mass participation of the citizens of KwaZulu-Natal.

• To achieve excellence in sport and recreation.

• To host and co-host major provincial, national and international
sporting events.

2.2 Tariff policy
The department does not sell any of its services and therefore has

no tariff policy.

2.3 Free Services
The department provides no free services.

2.4 Inventories
At the year end inventory on hand was R1, 077million.

The inventories on hand consist of sport and recreation consumables
such as kits, trophies, equipment which has been purchased for
distribution to various beneficiaries such as clubs, sporting bodies etc.

3. Capacity constraints
The department is still faced with insufficient human resources

especially on Sport Coordination.  This lack of capacity, as well as lack
of funding, has hindered the department’s ability to operate effectively
and efficiently. The department has aligned its structure to operate at
a district level, but the department is faced with the challenge of
obtaining suitable office accommodation.

4. Utilisation of donor funds
The department has received no donor funds.

5. Trading entities and public entities
There are no trading entities or public entities.

6. Organisations to whom transfer payments have been made
The nature of the department’s operations requires it to make use

of the Sport Federations for the various codes of sports and the Sports
Academy for the development and promotion of Sport and Recreation
within the province. The sports federations as the governing bodies of
the respective codes of sport receive assistance from the department
for the development programmes as well as the organisation of
provincial, national and international events and programmes.  Prior
to funds being transferred audited financial statements and a business
plan is required to be submitted by the organisation whereafter an
agreement is concluded.  A detailed report back is also required once
the programme is completed.

In addition to the transfers above the department also effected
transfer payments amounting to R 21,975 million to 19 municipalities
within the province for improvement of sport and recreation facilities
for the various codes of sport to encourage sport development at the
grass roots level.

Refer to Annexure 1 B, C, D and E for a detailed breakdown of
these transfer payments made.

7. Public private partnerships (PPP)
There are no public private partnerships.

8. Corporate governance arrangements

8.1 Risk management approach
The department has also engaged in risk assessment sessions with

the Provincial Treasury: Internal Audit Unit where the critical risks
identified with action plans to address these were developed. The
management team meets regularly to discuss the risks facing the
department and respective programme managers are required to
submit regular progress reports on measures undertaken to mitigate
against any identified risks.

8.2 Fraud prevention policies
The department is in a final stage of development of a fraud

prevention plan and will work closely with the Provincial Treasury’s
Internal Audit component to finalise and roll out the plan during the
first quarter of the ensuing financial year.

8.3 Effectiveness of internal audit and audit committee;
Internal Audit and Audit Committee’s in this Province have been

centralised in the Provincial Treasury.  All audit reports from the
Provincial Treasury’s Internal Audit Unit have been reviewed and
relevant action taken to address weaknesses that have been identified.
The department does not have an internal control environment and
therefore requests the Provincial Internal Audit unit to carry out certain
audits.

8.4 Implementation of a Code of Conduct,
The Human Resources directorate ensures that the code of conduct

is complied with.  Adherence to the Code of Conduct has also been
included in the department’s strategic plan as a core value.  Disciplinary
procedures are followed in the event of non compliance with the Code
of Conduct.

8.5 Safety, health and environment issues
The department ensures that the Occupational Health and Safety

Act no. 85 of 1993 is complied with at all times.
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8.6 Minimising conflict of interest
Various committees have been established to reduce the conflict

of interest as decisions do not reside solely with any particular individual.
Officials are also required to disclose their interests in any transactions
that the department undertakes.

9. Discontinued activities
There are no discontinued activities or activities to be discontinued

within the department.

10. New/proposed activities
Proposed activities over the next two years include the proposal

to establish an office within each district municipality in the province.

11.  Asset management
The department is utilising HARDCAT for asset management.

Orders, deliveries and invoices are processed on HARDCAT to effect
payment and record the individual assets on HARDCAT.  A year end
reconciliation between HARDCAT and BAS has been preformed for
the current year additions.  A year end physical verification of assets
has been performed and this has been reconciled to the asset register.
The Asset Management Policy and Business Processes are in draft
format, which will be approved in the next financial year.

The major challenge on asset management is controlling the
movement of assets between various locations.

12. Events after the reporting date
No other material fact or event has occurred subsequent to the

accounting date.

13. Performance information
The process for obtaining performance information is a manual

process of record keeping.  The information and statistics are captured
on a project-by-project basis by the project coordinator by completing
a project close out report.  This information is accumulated after each
project and summarised on a quarterly basis for reporting purposes.
The department is in the process of developing a database for this
information.

14. SCOPA resolutions
No SCOPA resolutions relating to previous audit report were tabled.

15. Prior modifications to audit reports
The only matter reported on in the 2006/2007 audit report was

the non implementation of a system for performance information.
For the 2007/2008 financial year the department has continued with
the utilisation of a manual process for the management of performance
information.  Additional monitoring and reviewing of the performance

information has been implemented.  A monitoring and evaluation
component has been established and the key focus of the unit will be
the implementation of an electronic monitoring system for performance
management.

16. Exemptions and deviations received from the National Treasury
The National Treasury has exempted the department from compiling

with certain sections of the Government Immovable Asset Management
Act, No 19 of 2007. In particular the department is exempted from
the following:

• The disclosure of buildings and other fixed structures in the disclosure
notes for the tangible assets for the current and prior year.

• The use of fair value to value assets which is referred to in the asset
management policy set by the National Treasury.

Approval
The Annual Financial Statements set out on pages 82 to 113 have

been approved by me in my capacity as Accounting Officer.

Mrs. S. Khan
Head of Department: Sport and Recreation
31 May 2008
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Report of the Auditor-General to the Kwazulu-Natal Provincial Legislature
on the Financial Statements and Performance Information
Vote No. 16: Department of Sport and Recreation
for the year ended 31 March 2008

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction
1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the

Department of Sport and Recreation(department) which comprise
the appropriation statement, statement of financial position as at
31 March 2008, statement of financial performance, statement of
changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes, as set out on pages 82 to 113.

Responsibility of the accounting officer for the financial statements
2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair

presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury,
as set out in accounting policy note 1.1 and in the manner required by
the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA)
and the Division of Revenue Act, 2007 (Act No. 1 of 2007) (DoRA).
This responsibility includes:

• Designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

• Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies.

• Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Responsibility of the Auditor-General
3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic

of South Africa, 1996 read with section 4 of the Public Audit Act, 2004
(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements based on my audit.

4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International
Standards on Auditing and General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in
Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance on whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

6. An audit also includes evaluating the:

• Appropriateness of accounting policies used.

• Reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management

• Overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Basis of accounting
8. The department’s policy is to prepare financial statements on

the modified cash basis of accounting, as set out in accounting policy
note 1.1.

Opinion
9. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material

respects, the financial position of the Department of Sport and
Recreation as at 31 March 2008 and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the modified cash
basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in
accounting policy note 1.1 and in the manner required by the PFMA
and DoRA.

OTHER MATTER
      Without qualifying my audit opinion, I draw attention to the
following matter that relates to my responsibilities in the audit of the
financial statements:
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UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE
11. The schedule of immovable assets, land and sub soil assets set

out on page 114 does not form part of the financial statements and is
presented as additional information. I have not audited this schedule
and accordingly I  do not express an opinion thereon.

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE INFORMATION
12. I have reviewed the performance information as set out on

pages 20 to 71.

Responsibility of the accounting officer for the
performance information

13. The accounting officer has additional responsibilities as required
by section 40(3)(a) of the PFMA to ensure that the annual report and
audited financial statements fairly present the performance against
predetermined objectives of the department.

Responsibility of the Auditor-General
14. I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the
PAA read with General Notice 616 of 2008, issued in Government
Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008.

15. In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing
procedures of an audit nature to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence
about the performance information and related systems, processes
and procedures. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement.

16. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to report that no significant findings have been identified
as a result of my review.

APPRECIATION
17. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Department of Sport

and Recreation during the audit is sincerely appreciated.

Pietermaritzburg
30 July 2008

YesMatter of governance

Audit committee

• The department had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year.

• The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms of reference.

• The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in section 77 of the PFMA and
Treasury Regulation 3.1.10

Internal audit

• The department had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year.

• The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan.

No

�

• The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2.

Other matters of governance

The annual financial statements were submitted for audit as per the legislated deadlines (section 40 of the PFMA).

The financial statements submitted for audit were not subject to any material amendments resulting from the audit.

No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the unavailability of expected information
and/or the unavailability of senior management.

The prior year's external audit recommendations have been substantially implemented.
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Statement of Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2008

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with
the following policies, which have been applied consistently in all
material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate
and meaningful, additional information has been disclosed to enhance
the usefulness of the Financial Statements and to comply with the
statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1
of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations
issued in terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue Act, Act 2
of 2006.

1. Presentation of the Financial Statements

1.1 Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a modified cash

basis of accounting, except where stated otherwise. The modified cash
basis constitutes the cash basis of accounting supplemented with
additional disclosure items.  Under the cash basis of accounting
transactions and other events are recognised when cash is received or
paid.

1.2 Presentation currency
All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South

African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the department.

1.3 Rounding
Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to

the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

1.4 Comparative figures
Prior period comparative information has been presented in the

current year’s financial statements.  Where necessary figures included
in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure
that the format in which the information is presented is consistent with
the format of the current year’s f inancial  statements.

1.5 Comparative figures - Appropriation Statement
A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per

major classification of expenditure is included in the appropriation
statement.

2. Revenue

2.1 Appropriated funds
Appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the

date the appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments to the
appropriated funds made in terms of the adjustments budget process
are recognised in the financial records on the date the adjustments
become effective.

Total appropriated funds are presented in the statement of
financial performance.

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the Provincial
Revenue Fund.  Amounts owing to the Provincial Revenue Fund at the
end of the financial year are recognised in the statement of
financial position.

2.2 Statutory Appropriation
Statutory appropriations are recognised in the financial records on

the date the appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments to the
statutory appropriations made in terms of the adjustments budget
process are recognised in the financial records on the date the
adjustments become effective.

Total statutory appropriations are presented in the statement of
financial performance.

Unexpended statutory appropriations are surrendered to the
Provincial Revenue Fund.  Amounts owing to the Provincial Revenue
Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the statement
of financial position.

2.3 Departmental revenue
All departmental revenue is paid into the Provincial Revenue Fund

when received, unless otherwise stated.  Amounts owing to the Provincial
Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised in the
statement of financial position.

Amounts receivable at the reporting date are disclosed in the
disclosure notes to the annual financial statements.

2.3.1 Tax revenue
Tax revenue consists of all compulsory unrequited amounts collected

by the department in accordance with laws and or regulations (excluding
fines, penalties and forfeits).

Tax receipts are recognised in the statement of financial performance
when received.

2.3.2 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
The proceeds received from the sale of goods and/or the provision

of services is recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance
when the cash is received.

2.3.3 Fines, penalties and forfeits
Fines, penalties and forfeits are compulsory unrequited amounts

which were imposed by a court or quasi-judicial body and collected by
the department. Revenue arising from fines, penalties and forfeits is
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recognised in the Statement of Financial Performance when the cash
is received.

2.3.4 Interest, dividends and rent on land
Interest, dividends and rent on land is recognised in the statement

of financial performance when the cash is received.

2.3.5 Sale of capital assets
The proceeds received on sale of capital assets are recognised in

the Statement of Financial Performance when the cash is received.

2.3.6 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
Repayments of loans and advances previously extended to employees

and public corporations for policy purposes are recognised as revenue
in the Statement of Financial Performance on receipt of the funds.

Cheques issued in previous accounting periods that expire before
being banked are recognised as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Performance when the cheque becomes stale. When the cheque is
reissued the payment is made from Revenue.

Forex gains are recognised on payment of funds.

2.3.7 Transfers received (including gifts, donations and sponsorships)
All cash gifts, donations and sponsorships are paid into the Provincial
Revenue Fund and recorded as revenue in the Statement of Financial
Performance when received.  Amounts receivable at the reporting date
are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements.

All in-kind gifts, donations and sponsorships are disclosed at fair
value in an annexure to the financial statements.

3. Expenditure

3.1 Compensation of employees

3.1.1 Short-term employee benefits
Salaries and wages comprise payments to employees (including

leave entitlements, thirteenth cheques and performance bonuses).
Salaries and wages are recognised as an expense in the Statement of
Financial Performance when final authorisation for payment is effected
on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

All other payments are classified as current expense.

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or
constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the
financial statements. These amounts are not recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance or Position.

3.1.2 Post retirement benefits
The department provides retirement benefits (pension benefits)

for certain of its employees through a defined benefit plan for
government employees. These benefits are funded by both employer
and employee contributions.

Employer contributions (i.e. social contributions) to the fund are
expensed when the final authorisation for payment to the fund is
effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). No
provision is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements
of the department. Any potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial
statements of the Provincial Revenue Fund and not in the financial
statements of the employer department.

The department provides medical benefits for certain of its
employees. Employer contributions to the medical funds are expensed
when final authorisation for payment to the fund is effected on the
system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

3.1.3 Termination benefits
Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised

as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance as a transfer
(to households) when the final authorisation for payment is effected
on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

Other long-term employee benefits
Other long-term employee benefits (such as capped leave) are

recognised as an expense in the Statement of Financial Performance
as a transfer (to households) when the final authorisation for payment
is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

Long-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or
constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the
financial statements.  These amounts are not recognised in the Statement
of Financial Performance or Position.

3.2 Goods and services
Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as an

expense in the Statement of Financial Performance when the final
authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than
31 March of each year).  The expense is classified as capital if the goods
and services were used for a capital project or an asset of R5000 or
more is purchased.  All assets costing less than R5000 will also be
reflected under goods and services.

3.3 Interest and rent on land
Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the

Statement of Financial Performance when the final authorisation for
payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each
year). This item excludes rental for the use of buildings or other fixed

Statement of Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2008

KWAZULU-NATAL DEPARTMENT OF SPORT & RECREATION                               ANNUAL REPORT 2007 - 200883



Statement of Accounting Policies
for the year ended 31 March 2008

structures.  If it is not possible to distinguish between payment for the
use of land and the fixed structures on it, the whole amount should be
recorded under goods and services.

3.4 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written-

off are limited to the amount of savings and/or underspending of
appropriated funds. The write off occurs at year-end or when funds
are available. No provision is made for irrecoverable amounts but
amounts are disclosed as a disclosure note.

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted
for the recognition thereof.

3.5 Unauthorised expenditure
When discovered unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an

asset in the statement of financial position until such time as the
expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered
from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable in the
Statement of Financial Performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is recognised in
the Statement of Financial Performance when the unauthorised
expenditure is approved and the related funds are received.  Where
the amount is approved without funding it is recognised as expenditure,
subject to availability of savings, in the Statement of Financial
Performance on the date of approval.

3.6 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an asset in the

statement of financial position until such time as the expenditure is
recovered from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

3.7 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the Statement

of Financial Performance.  If the expenditure is not condoned by the
relevant authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written
off as irrecoverable.

3.8 Transfers and subsidies
Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final

authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than
31 March of each year).

3.9 Expenditure for capital assets
Payments made for capital assets are recognised as an expense in

the Statement of Financial Performance when the final authorisation
for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of
each year).

4. Assets

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial

position at cost.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-term
highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

4.2 Prepayments and advances
Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of

financial position when the payments are made.

Pre-payments and advances outstanding at the end of the year are
carried in the statement of f inancial position at cost.

4.3 Receivables
Receivables included in the statement of financial position arise

from cash payments made that are recoverable from another party.
Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the statement of
financial position at cost.

4.4 Inventory
Inventories purchased during the financial year are disclosed at cost

in the notes.

4.5 Capital assets

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost.  Cost of
an asset is defined as the total cost of acquisition. Where the cost
cannot be determined accurately, the capital asset should be stated at
fair value. Where fair value cannot be determined, the capital asset is
included in the asset register at R1.

Projects (of construction/development) running over more than
one financial year relating to assets, are only capitalised as assets on
completion of the project and at the total cost incurred over the
duration of the project.

Disclosure Notes 23 and 24 reflect the total movement in the
movable asset register for the current financial year. The buildings and
other fixed structures movements have not been disclosed in accordance
with the exemption as granted by the National Treasury”

5. Liabilities

5.1 Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the
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National/Provincial Revenue Fund.  Amounts owing to the
National/Provincial Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position

5.2 Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Amounts owing to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund at the

end of the financial year are recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost.

5.3 Bank overdraft
The bank overdraft is carried in the statement of position at cost.

5.4 Payables
Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other

governmental entities.  These payables are recognised at historical cost
in the statement of financial position.

5.5 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes.

5.6 Commitments
Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial

position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial
performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.7 Accruals
Accruals are not recognised in the statement of financial position

as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial performance
but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.8 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or

constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the
financial statements.  These amounts are not recognised in the statement
of financial performance or the statement of financial position.

5.9 Lease commitments
Lease commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial

position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of financial
performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

Operating and finance lease commitments are expensed when the
payments are made. Assets acquired in terms of finance lease agreements
are disclosed in the annexures and disclosure notes to the financial
statements.

6. Receivables for departmental revenue
Receivables for departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure

notes to the annual financial statements.

7. Net Assets

7.1 Recoverable revenue
Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment

made in a previous financial year becomes recoverable from a debtor
in the current financial year.

8. Related party transactions
Specific information with regards to related party transactions is

included in the disclosure notes.

9. Key management personnel
Compensation paid to key management personnel including their

family members where relevant, is included in the disclosure notes.

Statement of Accounting Policies
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Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1B  STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS PAID TO

Programme 1:
Administration

Current payment
Transfers and subsidies
Payment for capital
assets

Programme 2:  Sport
Co-ordination

Current payment
Transfers and subsidies
Payment for capital
assets

TOTAL

25,972
26

1,371

66,037
19,030

1,130

113,566

-
113,566

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

25,972
26

1,371

65,632
19,030

1,130

113,161

-
760

113,921

100.0%
100.0%

100.0%

100.0%
92,6%

100.0%

98,7%

-
-

-

28
2,151

-

2,179

31,498
56

3,241

92,448
27,004

6,351

160,598

23
160,621

31,498
56

3,241

92,476
29,155

6,351

162,777

23
87

162,887

629
-

841

563
-

351

-

32,127
56

2,400

93,039
29,155

6,000

162,777

Entire Department: Detail by Programme

2006/20072007/2008

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Expenditure
as % of final

appropriation

%

Variance

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Virement

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

R’000

Reconciliation with Statement of Financial Performance
Add: Prior year unauthorised expenditure approved
         with funding
         Departmental revenue
Actual amounts per Statement of Financial Performance
(Total Revenue)
Add: Prior year unauthorised expenditure approved
Actual amounts per Statement of Financial Performance
(Total Expenditure)
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Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1B  STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS PAID TO

Current payments

Compensation of
employees
Goods and services

Transfers and subsidies

Provinces and
municipalities
Departmental agencies
and accounts
Non-profit institutions
Households

Payments for capital
assets

Buildings and other
fixed structures
Machinery and
equipment
Software and other
intangible assets

TOTAL

33,898
58,111

14,443

17
4,229

367

800

1,701

-

113,566

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

33,898
57,706

14,443

17
4,229

367

800

1,701

-

113,161

100.0%
100.0%

91,1%

100,0%
100,0%
101.1%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

98,7%

-
28

2,151

-
2
2

-

-

-

2,179

43,355
80,591

21,975

26
4,879

180

6,000

2,719

873

160,598

43,355
80,619

24,126

26
4,881

178

6,000

2,719

873

162,777

602
590

-

-
-
-

-

319

873

-

43,957
81,209

24,126

26
4,881

178

6,000

2,400

-

162,777

Entire Department: Detail by Economic Classification

2006/20072007/2008

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Expenditure
as % of final

appropriation

%

Variance

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Virement

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

R’000
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Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1B  STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS PAID TO

Programme 1: Administration: Detail by Sub-Programme

1.1 Office of the MEC
Current payment
Payment for
capital assets

1.2 Corporate Services
Current payment
Transfers and 
subsidies
Payment for
capital assets

1.3 Head of 
Department
Current payment

1.4 Financial 
Management
Current payment
Payment for
capital assets

TOTAL

4,609

164

15,717

26

1,207

1,776

3,870

-

27,369

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

4,609

164

15,717

26

1,207

1,776

3,870

-

27,369

100.0%

-

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,968

-

18,169

56

3,233

2,502

5,859

8

34,795

4,968

-

18,169

56

3,233

2,502

5,859

8

34,795

2

-

376

-

841

258

7

-

212

4,970

-

18,545

56

2,392

2,760

5,852

8

34,583

2006/20072007/2008

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Expenditure
as % of final

appropriation

%

Variance

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Virement

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

R’000
Economic
Classification
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Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1B  STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS PAID TO

Current payment
Compensation of
employees
Goods and services

Transfers and
subsidies to:
Provinces and
municipalities
Departmental agencies
and accounts
Households

Payment for
capital assets
Machinery and
equipment
Software and other
intangible assets

TOTAL

12,129
13,843

9

17
-

1,371

-

27,369

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

12,129
13,843

9

17
-

1,371

-

27,369

100.0%
100.0%

-

100.0%
100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

-
-

-

-
-

-

-

-

14,061
17,437

-

26
30

2,368

873

34,795

14,061
17,437

-

26
30

2,368

873

34,795

163
466

-

-
-

32

873

212

 14,224
17,903

-

26
30

2,400

-

34,583

Programme 1: Administration: Detail by Economic Classification

2006/20072007/2008

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Expenditure
as % of final

appropriation

%

Variance

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Virement

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

R’000
Economic
Classification
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Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1B  STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS PAID TO

Programme 2: Sport Co-ordination: Detail by Sub-Program

2.1 Junior Sport
Current payment

2.2 Community Sport
Current payment
Transfers and 
subsidies

2.3 Sport Management
Current payment
Transfers and 
subsidies
Payment for
capital assets

2.4 Recreation
Current payment

2.5 Facilities
Current payment
Transfers and
subsidies
Payment for
capital assets

2.6 Mass School Sport
Current payment
Transfers and 
subsidies
Payment for
capital assets

2.7 Community Mass
Participation
Current payment

2.8 Club Development
Current payment

TOTAL

10,639

10,641

124

15,387

9,975

71

7,521

1,303

8,436

800

9,857

495

248

10,689

-

86,197

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

10,639

10,641

124

14,982

9,975

71

7,521

1,303

8,436

800

9,857

495

248

10,689

-

85,792

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100,0%

100.0%

100,0%

100.0%

98,0%

91,1%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

98,3%

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

28

2,151

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,179

9,234

11,859

150

24,409

4,879

6,000

8,669

1,352

21,975

-

18,609

-

351

16,316

2,000

125,803

9,234

11,859

150

24,409

4,879

6,000

8,669

1,380

24,126

-

18,609

-

351

16,316

2,000

127,982

504

472

2

676

2

-

616

304

-

-

351

-

351

-

-

212

8,730

12,331

148

23,733

4,881

6,000

9,285

1,684

24,126

-

18,960

-

-

16,316

2,000

128,194

2006/20072007/2008

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Expenditure
as % of final

appropriation

%

Variance

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Virement

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

R’000
Programme per
sub-programme
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Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1B  STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS PAID TO

Current payment
Compensation of
employees
Goods and services

Transfers and
subsidies to:
Provinces and
municipalities
Non-profit institutions
Households

Payment for
capital assets
Buildings and other
fixed structures
Machinery and
equipment

TOTAL

21,769
44,268

14,434
4,229

367

800

330

86,197

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

21,769
43,863

14,434
4,229

367

800

330

85,792

100.0%
100,0%

91,1%
100.0%
101.4%

100.0%

100.0%

98,3%

-
28

2,151
2
2

-

-

2,179

29,294
63,154

21,975
4,879

150

6,000

351

125,803

29,294
63,182

24,126
4,881

148

6,000

351

127,982

439
124

-
-
-

-

351

212

29,733
63,306

24,126
4,881

148

6,000

-

128,194

Programme 2: Sport Co-ordination: Detail by Economic Classification

2006/20072007/2008

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Expenditure
as % of final

appropriation

%

Variance

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’000

Virement

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

R’000
Economic
Classification
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Notes to the Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act  (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 5 (Transfers and subsidies) and Annexure 1 (A-E) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of specifically and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3. Detail on financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in note 2-2 (Financial transactions in assets and liabilities) to the Annual
Financial Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

0.0%
1.7%

Expenditure
as a % of Final
appropriation

%

Variance

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’0004.1 Per Programme

Administration
Sport Co-ordination

-
2,179

34,795
125,803

34,795
127,982

Administration
Savings of R212,000 from Programme 2: Sport Coordination was transferred to Programme 1: Administration to defray the over expenditure

on capital purchases.

Sport Coordination
The Facilities sub-programme within Sport Coordination is responsible for the provision of new sport and recreation facilities with the

municipalities as the implementing agents.  Capital transfers are made to the municipalities and the department is therefore wholly dependant
on the implementing municipalities for completion of the facilities. During the 2007/2008 financial year the commencement for the
construction of 7 facilities were delayed due to unforeseen circumstances which were not present at the time of preparing the adjusted
budget and government gazette.  These circumstances include management changes at municipalities, non-appointment of project managers/
EIA specialists/ contractors etc, capacity constraints at municipalities, alteration of proposed sites at municipal level, absence of final business
plans, conflicting project decisions between district and local municipalities. Although there was a delay in the commencement of these
projects, they are in progress and the percentage completion is between 50% and 75%. as at 31 March 2008.  The Department has submitted
a request for a roll over of these funds.
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Notes to the Appropriation Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

-
-
-

-
8.90%

-
-
-

-
-

0.00%
-

-

Expenditure
as a % of Final
appropriation

%

Variance

R’000

Actual
Expenditure

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’0004.2 Per Economic classification

Current expenditure
Compensation of employees
Goods and services

Transfers and subsidies:
Provinces and municipalities
Departmental agencies and accounts
Non-profit institutions
Households

Payments for capital assets:
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment
Computer Software

TOTAL

28
-

28

2,151
2,151

-
2
2

-
-
-
-

2,179

123,946
43,355
80,591

27,060
21,975

26
4,879

180

9,592
6,000
2,719

873

160,598

123,974
43,355
80,619

29,211
24,126

26
4,881

178

9,592
6,000
2,719

873

162,777

Savings were realised on compensation of employees and goods and services which was transferred to defray over expenditure on
payments for capital assets.

The underspend on transfers are due to the delay in the commencement of the construction of facilities by municipalities, refer to
explanations for Programme 2: Sport Co-ordination
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Statement of Financial Performance
for the year ended 31 March 2008

REVENUE

Annual appropriation
Appropriation for unauthorised expenditure approved
Departmental revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE
Current expenditure
Compensation of employees
Goods and services
Unauthorised expenditure approved

Total current expenditure

Transfers and subsidies

Expenditure for capital assets
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment
Software and other intangible assets
Total expenditure for capital assets

TOTAL EXPENDITURE

SURPLUS
Add back unauthorised expenditure

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

Reconciliation of Surplus for the year
Voted Funds
Departmental Revenue

SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR

119.161
-

760

113,921

33,898
58,111

-

92,009

19,056

800
1,701

-
2,501

113,566

355
405

760

-
760

760

1
7
2

3
4
7

5

6
6
6

7

11
12

162,777
23
87

162,887

43,355
80,591

23

123,969

27,060

6,000
2,719

873
9,592

160,621

2,266
-

2,266

2,179
87

2,266

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes
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Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2008

ASSETS

Current assets
Unauthorised expenditure
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments and advances
Receivables

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Bank overdraft
Payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
  Recoverable revenue

TOTAL

565
428

-
-

137

565

565
-

36
336
193

565

-

-

-

7
8
9

10

11
12
13
14

2,309
405

1,670
6

228

2,309

2,220
2,179

34
-
7

2,220

89

89

89

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 March 2008

Recoverable revenue
Debts raised

TOTAL

-
-

-

89
89

89

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts
Annual appropriated funds received
Appropriation for unauthorised expenditure received
Departmental revenue received

Net (increase)/decrease in working capital
Surrendered to Revenue Fund
Current payments
Unauthorised expenditure – current payment
Transfers and subsidies paid
Net cash flow available from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets
Net cash flows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in net assets
Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

113,921
113,161

-
760

334
740

92,009
405

19,056
2,187

2,501
2,501

-
-

314

22

336

1.1
7
2

7

15

16

162,887
162,777

23
87

260
89

123,969
-

27,060
11,509

9,592
9,592

89
89

2,006

336

1,670

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

Programmes

Administration
Sport Co-ordination

Total

27,369
85,792

113,161

-
-

-

Appropriation
received

2006/2007

R’000

Funds not
requested/
not received

R’000

1.  Annual Appropriation

1.1 Annual Appropriation

Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act for Provincial Departments. [Equitable share]

Actual Funds
Received

R’000

Final
Appropriation

R’000

34,795
127,982

162,777

34,795
127,982

162,777

1.2 Conditional Grants

Total grants received

(Conditional grants are included in the amounts per the final
Appropriation in Note 1.1)

2. Departmental revenue

Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Sales of goods and services produced by the department
Administrative fees
Other sales

2.2 Financial transactions in assets and liabilities

Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue

21,300

20
740
760

20
-

20
20

740
740

Annex 1A

2.1
2.2

37,276

74
13
87

74
22
52
74

13
13

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

3. Compensation of employees

3.1 Salaries and Wages
Basic salary
Performance award
Service Based
Compensative/circumstantial
Periodic payments
Other non-pensionable allowances

3.2 Social contributions
3.2.1 Employer contributions

Pension
Medical
UIF
Bargaining council

Total compensation of employees

Average number of employees

4. Goods and Services
Advertising
Bank charges and card fees
Bursaries (employees)
Communication
Computer services
Consultants, contractors and special services
Courier and delivery services
Drivers’ licences and permits
External audit fees
Equipment less than R5000
Honoraria (Voluntary workers)
Inventory
Maintenance, repairs and running costs
Medical Services
Municipal Services
Operating leases
Plant flowers and other decorations
Printing and publications
Resettlement costs
Subscriptions
Owned and leasehold property expenditure
Transport provided as part of the departmental activities
Travel and subsistence
Venues and facilities
Protective, special clothing and uniforms
Training and staff development

20,588
33

1,293
687

4,597
3,254

30,452

2,333
1,109

-
4

3,446

33,898

397

1,573
-

52
1,868

575
1,956

231
-

628
862
565

20,481
5,247

109
181

2,885
29

447
147
30

436
3,810
3,887
9,985

5
2,122

58,111

4.1

4.2

4.3

19,401
383

1,456
569

14,198
3,272

39,279

2,489
1,275

308
4

4,076

43,355

952

2,961
1

60
2,091
1,159
2,910

139
1

626
1,649

113
32,358

1,379
198
383

1,740
209

1,205
163

34
1,310
8,067
5,557

13,952
-

2,326
80,591

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

4.1 External audit fees
Regularity audits

4.2 Inventory
Domestic consumables
Food and food supplies
Sport and recreation
Stationery and printing

4.3 Travel and subsistence
Local
Foreign

5. Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities
Departmental agencies and accounts
Non-profit institutions
Households

6. Expenditure for capital assets
Buildings and other fixed structures
Machinery and equipment
Software and other intangible assets
Computer software

628
628

6
3,559

15,841
1,075

20,481

3,855
32

3,887

14,443
17

4,229
367

19,056

800
1,701

-
-

2,501

Annex  1 B
Annex 1 C
Annex 1 D
Annex 1 E

23
23
24

626
626

41
5,477

25,219
1,621

32,358

5,528
29

5,557

21,975
26

4,879
180

27,060

6,000
2,719

873
873

9,592

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes

The amount of R6 000 000 for buildings and other fixed structures relates to construction of combi courts. These combi courts were built on school
premises as part of the school sport programme.  Once the combi-courts were built these were handed over to the schools to maintain and to take
ownership thereof.  In the current year the department has not formally transferred the combi courts to the Department of Education, as this will only
be completed in the 2008/09 financial year.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

7. Unauthorised expenditure

7.1 Reconciliation of unauthorised expenditure
Opening balance
Unauthorised expenditure – current year
Amounts approved by Legislature (with funding)
Current expenditure

Unauthorised expenditure awaiting authorisation

8. Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated Paymaster General Account

9. Prepayments and advances
Travel and subsistence

10. Receivables

23
405

-
-

428

-
-

-
-

428
-

23
23

405

1,670
1,670

6
6

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes

Staff debtors
Other debtors
Intergovernmental 
receivables

10.1 Staff Debtors
Debt Account
Salary Tax Debt Account

10.2 Other Debtors
Salary Income Tax Account
Medical

35
8

94

137

31
4

35

8
-
8

197
31

-

228

191
6

197

29
2

31

-
-
-

-

30
-
-

30

167
31

-

198

10.1
10.2

Annex 3

Total

R’000

Total

R’000

Older than
three years

R’000

One to
three years

R’000

Less than
one year

R’000Notes
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

11. Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Opening Balance
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance

Closing balance

The Department has submitted a request for a roll over of R2,151,000 to Provincial Treasury.

12. Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Opening balance
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance
Paid during the year
Closing balance

13. Bank overdraft
Consolidated Paymaster General Account

14. Payables – current

Clearing accounts

14.1 Clearing accounts
Salary ACB Recalls
Salary deduction disallowance

-
2,179

2,179

36
87
89
34

-
-

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes

2006/20072007/2008

-
-

-

16
760
740
36

336
336

193
193

193
-

193

7
7

5
2
7

3
3

4
4

14.1

Total

R’000

Total

R’000

30+ Days

R’000

30 Days

R’000

Notes
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

15. Net cash flow available from operating activities
Net surplus/(deficit) as per Statement of Financial Performance
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities

(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
(Increase)/decrease in payables – current
Expenditure on capital assets
Surrenders to Revenue Fund

Net cash flow generated by operating activities

16. Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes

Consolidated Paymaster General account

760
1,427

116
10

405
177

2,501
740

2,187

336
336

2,266
9,243

91
6

23
186

9,592
89

11,509

1,670
1,670

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes
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Disclosure Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

17. Contingent liabilities
Liable to Nature
Housing loan guarantees Employees
Other departments (interdepartmental unconfirmed balances)

18. Commitments
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted
Approved but not yet contracted

Non-current expenditure
Approved and contracted

19. Accruals

By economic classification

51
1,964
2,015

1,808
90

1,898

16,400
18,298

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes

101
6,696
6,797

-
-
-

15,453
15,453

-
6,696

-
6

6,702

1,366
5,336
6,702

234
234

22
6,589

166
176

6,953

2,275
4,678
6,953

293
293

9
786

-
-

795

13
5,803

166
176

6,158

Total

R’000

Total

R’000

30+ Days

R’000

30 Days

R’000Notes

Annex 2
Annex 4

Compensation of employees
Goods and services
Transfers and subsidies
Machinery and equipment
Total

Listed by programme level
Administration
Sport Co-ordination
Total

Confirmed balances with departments Annex 4
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Disclosure Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

20. Employee benefits
Leave entitlement
Thirteenth cheque
Performance awards
Capped leave commitments
Total

21. Lease Commitments

21.1 Operating leases

2007/2008

1,012
718

-
3,906
5,636

1,466
847

43
4,399
6,755

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000Notes

Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than five years
Total present value of lease liabilities

2006/2007
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Total present value of lease liabilities

21.2 Finance leases

2007/2008
Not later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5  years
Total present value of lease liabilities

Analysis
Condoned
Total

1,808
2,549

35
4,392

1,917
3,849
5,766

69
26
95

95
95

116
301

35
452

151
125
276

69
26
95

95
95

1,692
2,248

-
3,940

1,766
3,724
5,490

-
-
-

-
-

Machinery and
equipment

R’000

Total

R’000

Buildings and other
fixed structures

R’000

Finance leases relate to departmental cell phones and 3G data cards
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Disclosure Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

Political Office Bearers
Officials:
Level 15
Level 14
Level 13
Family members of key management personnel
Total

728

730
1,443
2,820

40
5,761

2006/2007
R’000

2007/2008
R’000

654

717
1,183
3024

-
5,578

6,652
294

4,010
1,915

433

6,652

-
33

-
-

6,033

2,719
-

1,742
735
242

2,719

-
-
-
-
-

-

3,966
294

2,301
1,180

191

3,966

Disposals

Costs
R’000

Closing Balance

Costs
R’000

Additions

Costs
R’000

Current Year
Adjustments to prior

year balances

Costs
R’000

No. of Individuals
R’00022. Key management personnel

1

1
4
6
2

23. Tangible Capital Assets
Movement in tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008

Opening
balance cost

Costs
R’000

Machinery and equipment
Transport assets
Computer equipment
Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

TOTAL TANGIBLE ASSETS

2.719
1,742

735
242

2,719

-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-

-

2,719
1,742

735
242

2,719

Received current,
not paid

(Paid current year,
received prior year)

Costs
R’000

Total

Costs
R’000

(Capital Work
in Progress

current costs)

Costs
R’000

Non-cash

Costs
R’000

23.1 Additions to tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008

Cash

Costs
R’000

Machinery and equipment
Computer equipment
Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

Total capital assets
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Disclosure Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

-
-

-

33
33

33

33
33

33

-
-

-

Total
Disposals

Costs
R’000

Cash
Received

Actual
R’000

Non-cash

Value
R’000

Sold
(Cash)

R’000

23.2 Disposals of tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008

Machinery and equipment
Computer equipment

TOTAL

3,966
294

2,301
1,180

191

3,966

-
-
-
-
-

-

1,774
160

1,083
373
158

1,774

2,192
134

1,218
807

33

2,192

Disposals

R’000

Closing
Balance

R’000

Aditions

R’000

Opening
Balance

R’000

23.3 Movement in tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2007

Machinery and equipment
Transport assets
Computer equipment
Furniture and office equipment
Other machinery and equipment

Total tangible assets
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Disclosure Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

891

891

-

-

873

873

-

-

18

18

Disposals

Costs
R’000

Closing Balance

Costs
R’000

Additions

Costs
R’000

Current Year
Adjustments to prior

year balances

Costs
R’000

24. Intangible Capital Assets
Movement in intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008

Opening
balance cost

Costs
R’000

Computer software

Total intangible assets

873

873

-

-

-

-

-

-

873

873

Total

Costs
R’000

(Develop-ment
work in progress –

current costs)

Costs
R’000

Non-cash

Fair Value
R’000

24.1 Additions to intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2008

Cash

Costs
R’000

Computer software

Total

Received current
year, not paid

(Paid current year,
received prior year)

Costs
R’000

18

18

-

-

-

-

18

18

Disposals

Cost
R’000

Closing
Balance

Cost
R’000

Aditions

Cost
R’000

Opening
Balance

Cost
R’000

24.2 Movement to intangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2007

Computer software

Total
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Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1A: STATEMENT OF CONDITIONAL GRANTS RECEIVED

Sport and
Recreation SA

Mass Participation
Programme

Amount
spent by

department

R’000

Division of
Revenue

Act

R’000

21,300

21,300

21,300

21,300

100.0%

100.0%

37,276

37,276

37,276

37,276

37,276

37,276

-

-

-

-

-

-

% of
available

funds
spent by

department

%

Amount
spent by

department

R’000

Amount
received by
department

R’000

Total
Available

R’000

Other
Adjustments

R’000

DORA
Adjustments

R’000

Roll
Overs

R’000

Division of
Revenue

Act/
Provincial

Grants

R’000

37,276

37,276

GRANT ALLOCATION

Name of
Department

2006/2007SPENT
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Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1B: STATEMENT OF UNCONDITIONAL GRANTS AND TRANSFERS TO MUNICIPALITIES

Amajuba
Emnambithi
Mandeni
Hlabisa
Ilembe
Ingwe
Jozini
Greater Kokstad
Kwa Dukuza
Mbonambi
Mkhambathini
Ndwedwe
Ugu
Umdoni
Umgungundlovu
Umkhanyakude
Umzinyathi
Uthukela
Uthungulu
Ulundi
Umzimkhulu
Ethekweni
Zululand

Total
Available

R’000

% of
available

funds
spent by

municipality

%

250
-
-
-

1.350
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

725
-

638
2,400
2,262
1,175
1,125

-
2,400

18
2,100

14,443

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100,0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

0.0%
0.0%

100.0%

750
825

2,050
900
675
325

1,125
1,005

325
325
325

1,150
750
975

2,000
500

3,350
1,200
2,500

325
-
-

595
21,975

750
825

2,050
900
675
325

1,125
1,005

325
325
325

1,150
750
975

2,000
500

3,350
1,200
2,500

325
-
-

595
21,975

100.0%
100.0%

97,6%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

40.6%
40.6%
63,9%

100.0%
100.0%

90,9%
66.7%
98,5%

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

0.0%
0.0%

100.0%
91.09%

750
825

2,050
900
675
325

1,125
1,005

325
325
325

1,150
750
975

2,000
500

3,350
1,200
2,500

325
-
-

595
21,975

750
825

2,100
900
675
325

1,125
1,005

325
800
800

1,800
750
975

2,201
750

3,400
1,200
2,500

325
-
-

595
24,126

-
-
-
-

325
325

-
-

325
-
-
-

975
975
325

-
-
-
-

325
-
-

325
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Amount
spent by

municipality

R’000

Amount
received by

municipality

R’000

% of
Available

funds
Transferred

%

Actual
Transfer

R’000

Total
Available

R’000

Adjustments

R’000

Roll
Overs

R’000

Amount

R’000

2006/2007

750
825

2,100
900

1,000
-

1,125
1,005

-
800
800

1,800
1,725

-
2,526

750
3,400
1,200
2,500

-
-
-

920
24,126

SPENTTRANFERGRANT ALLOCATION

Name of
Municipality
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Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1C: STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO DEPARTMENTAL AGENCIES AND ACCOUNTS

Tourism, Hospitality and
Education Training Authority

Final
Appropriation

Act

R’000

% of
Available

funds
Transferred

%

25

25

100.0%

100.0%

26

26

26

26

-

-

-

-

26

26

Actual
Transfer

R’000

Total
Available

R’000

Adjustments

R’000

Roll
Overs

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

Act

R’000

TRANSFER ALLOCATION

Department / Agency / Account

2006/2007TRANSFERS
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Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1D: STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS/SUBSIDIES TO NON-PROFIT INSTITUTIONS

KZN Academy of Sport
KZN Aquatics
KZN Amateur Boxing
KZN Athletics
KZN Gymnastics
KZN Canoe Union
KZN Rugby Union
KZN Volleyball Union
KZN Cricket Union
DISSA
British Council
FEDANSA
KZN Olympic Style Boxing
KZN Golf
KZN Hockey
KZN Surfriders
PADSA
Other

Total

Final
Appropriation

Act

R’000

% of
Available

funds
Transferred

%

995
315
250
313
602
120
175
100
483
350

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

526

4,229

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

99,95%

565
450

-
480
180
100
680

-
245
212
300
200
145
150
170
100
120
782

4,879

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

4,881

4,881

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

4,881

4,881

Actual
Transfer

R’000

Total
Available

R’000

Adjustments

R’000

Roll
Overs

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

Act

R’000

TRANSFER ALLOCATION

Non-Profit Institutions

Transfers

2006/2007EXPENDITURE
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Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 1E:  STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS/SUBSIDIES TO HOUSEHOLDS

Voluntary Severance packages

Total

Final
Appropriation

Act

R’000

% of
Available

funds
Transferred

%

367

367

100.0%

100.0%

180

180

180

180

180

180

-

-

-

-

Actual
Transfer

R’000

Total
Available

R’000

Adjustments

R’000

Roll
Overs

R’000

Adjusted
Appropriation

Act

R’000

TRANSFER ALLOCATION

Non-Profit Institutions

2006/2007EXPENDITURE

ANNEXURE 2: STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED AS AT 31 MARCH 2008 – LOCAL

ABSA
First Rand
Nedbank

Total

Realised
losses not

recoverable i.e.
claims paid out

R’000

Guaranteed
interest for
year ended

31 March 2008

R’000

-
-
-

-

-
-
-

-

-
51

-

51

-
-
-

-

27
-

23

51

-
-
-

-

27
51
23

101

Closing balance
31March 2008

R’000

Revaluations

R’000

Opening
balance

1 April 2007

R’000

Guarantees
draw downs
during the

year

R’000

Guarantees
repayments/

cancelled/
reduced/

released during
the year

R’000

Guarantor
institutions

Original
guaranteed

capital
amount

R’000

Guarantee in
respect of

27
81
23

131
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Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2008

ANNEXURE 3: INTER-GOVERNMENT RECEIVABLES

Department
Sport and Recreation SA

TOTAL

94

94

-

-

-

-

-

-

94

94

-

-

Goverment Entity R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

ANNEXURE 4: INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYABLES

Department
Current
Department of Education
KZN Treasury
Department of Works
Department of Premier
Department of Economic Development

Total

6,111
277
542

-
-

6,930

-
-

472
1,491

294

2,257

 6,111
 177
 408

- 
- 

6,696

- 
- 

 179
 1,491

 294

1,964

- 
 100
 134

- 
- 

234

- 
- 

 293
- 
- 

293

Goverment Entity R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
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Total

 31/03/2008          31/03/2007

Confirmed balance outstanding

 31/03/2008          31/03/2007

Confirmed balance outstanding

 31/03/2008          31/03/2007

Total

 31/03/2008          31/03/2007

Unconfirmed balance outstanding

 31/03/2008          31/03/2007

Confirmed balance outstanding

 31/03/2008          31/03/2007



Supplementary Schedule
for the year ended 31 March 2008

SCHEDULE - IMMOVABLE ASSETS, LAND AND SUB SOIL ASSETS

Opening balances
In the 2006/2007 financial year the department had incurred expenditure of R800,000 on the construction of combi-courts on school premises.  These

were officially transferred in the 2006/2007 financial year to the Department of Education and according an amount of R800,000 was shown as a disposal in
the Department’s annual financial statements

Movements to immovable assets – 2007/2008
The department has applied the exemption as granted by the National Treasury and thus immovable assets have not been disclosed on the face of the

annual financial statements.

Additions
The additions for the current year on buildings, land and subsoil assets consisted of other fixed structures (R6,000,000) for the construction of combi-

courts on school premises.

Disposals
The combi-courts for the 2007/2008 financial year, have not been formally transferred to the Department of Education, as this will only take place in the

2008/09 financial year.  Therefore there are no disposals for the 2007/08 financial year.

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.
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Human Resource
Management

1. SERVICE DELIVERY

Table 1.1 Main Services Provided and Actual Customers

Main Services Actual Customers

• To promote and develop sport and recreation

• Monitor transformation programmes

• The development of priority group A and B codes of sport (includes
amongst others athletics, swimming, football, rugby, boxing, cricket,
golf, netball, gymnastics, surfing, tennis)  and minor codes of sport

• Provision of new and upgrade of existing sport and recreation facilities.
Specific focus on the provision of facilities through the construction of 
combination courts, action soccer courts and various types of
sports facilities,

• Make sport and recreational activities accessible to the communities

• Extending the mass school sport and community mass participation
programmes to additional schools and communities from previously 
disadvantaged individuals

• Creating a legacy for the mass participation programme and for
sport development

• Increasing the number of high performance athletes

• Implementation of the 2010 business plan

• Providing support for the hosting of major sports events in the Province

• Provide administrative support to various sport and recreation
organizations

• Federations (Local, District, Provincial and National)   •  Citizens

• Tertiary institutions    •  Schools    •  Federations

• Federations   •  Citizens   •  Schools

• Local Government    •  Schools    •  Citizens

• Sport and Recreation Organisations    •  Citizens

• Communities, with particular reference to designated groups,
i.e. black, women, people with disabilities and youth

• Schools

•  Citizens    •  Athletes    •  Academy of Sport    •  Club    •  Federations
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•  Athletes    •  Academy of Sport    •  Federations

•  SAFA

•  Athletes

•  Federations    •  Non-profit organisations
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tratransformation

Table 1.2 Consultation Arrangements with Customers

Actual Customers Actual AchievementsType of arrangement

• Workshops and meetings with Federations

• Consultative Meetings with the Department
of Education and Schools

• Collaboration agreements signed

• Regular stakeholder meetings

• Monthly MPP and SSMPP Meetings

• AGM’s of federations

• Local and District Municipality meetings

• Federations

• Schools

• Municipalities
• Communities

• Federations

• Federations

• Municipalities

• Funding of Development Programmes
• Hosting of Events and Programmes

• Competitive School Sport
• Mass School Sport

• Identification and building of facilities
•  Annual meeting with Federations

• 321 Schools and 65 Hubs

• Attended AGM’s invited to

• Implememtation of Sport and Recreation
Programmes



Human Resource Management

Table 1.3 Service Delivery Access Strategies

Access Strategy Actual Achievement

• Establishment of new hubs and clusters

• Increasing access to sport facilities through the upgrade and development
of facilities

• The organisational structure has been designed to ensure that officials
are assigned to perform their duties at district level

• Increasing access to sport and recreation activities in disadvantaged 
communities through the existing hubs and clusters and programmes

• 321 schools
• 65 hub in Siyadlala
• Recreational program

• Facilities being built

• Increase accessibility of sport to school children through the building of
combi-courts

• Hubs and Clusters at community and school level have been established
• 321Schools included in SSMPP

• Offices are easily accessible, close to Public transport

Table 1.4 Service Information Tool

Type of information Tool Actual Achievements

• Launches for flagship programmes • Website

• Media releases • Workshops and launches for flagship programmes, SSMPP, MPP, 2010,
Rural Horse Riding

• Client survey questionnaire • Forum Meetings with District heads

• Radio • Anouncements of flagship programmes

• E-mails • Communication with officials

• Brochures and Phamplets

• Publictions
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• eThekwini Imbizo

• Annual reports
• Strategic
• Annual Performance Plan
• Budget Speech

• District offices



Human Resource Management

Table 1.5 Complaint Mechanisms

Complaint Mechanism Actual Achievements

• The Executive Support of the Head of Department to review complaints
at regular intervals

• Orientation and re-orientation training provided to staff to confirm the
relationship between the employer, employee and the customer

• The Service Commitment Charter of the Department clearly stipulates
the time frames when telephone queries and written correspondence
will be dealt with.

• Complaints are attended to as and when received

• Suggestions and complaints to be considered by the Batho Pele
Committee and make recommendations to the EXCO and Head of
Department

• Batho Pele Committee establsihed

2. EXPENDITURE

Human Recources Oversight - April 2007 to March 2008 - KwaZulu-Natal

Table 2.1 – Personnel costs by Programme

Total
Expenditure

(R’000)

Programme Personnel
Expenditure

(R’000)

Professional and
Special Services

(R’000)

Personnel expenditure
as a percent

of total expenditure

Average personnel
cost per employee

(R’000)

Administration

Sports Coordination

Total

34,795

125,803

160,598

14,061

29,294

43,355

1,747

209

1,956

40,4 %

23,3 %

27 %

94

26

37
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Table 2.2 – Personnel costs by Salary Band

Salary Bands

  Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

  Skilled (Levels 3-5)

  Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

  Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

  Senior Management (Levels 13-16)

  Contract (Levels 3-5)

  Contact (Levels 6-8)

  Volunteers

Personnel Expenditure (R’000) Percentage of Total Personnel Cost Average personnel Cost per Employee (R)
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Table 2.2 – Personnel costs by Salary Band

Salary Bands

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

Senior Management (Levels 13-16)

Contract (Levels 3-5)

Contact (Levels 6-8)

Volunteers

Total

Personnel
Expenditure

(R’000)

90

1,537

10,579

10,066

6,180

161

535

14.207

43,355

Percentage of
Total Personnel

Cost

0,2 %

3,5 %

24,4 %

23,2 %

14,4 %

0,4 %

1,2 %

32,7 %

 100 %

Average personnel
Cost per Employee

(R’000)

90,000

 64,042

151,114

264,895

618,000

53,667

133,750

13,888

36,960

0,2
3,5

24,4
23,2
14,4

0,4
1,2

32,7
  Total 100

90.000
1,537

10,579
10,066

6,180
161,000
535,000

14,207
Total 43,355

90,000
 64,042
151,114

264,895
618,000
53,667

133,750
13,888

  Total 36,960
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Table 2.3 – Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Programme

Programme

Administration

Sports Co-ordination

Total

Salaries
(R‘000)

 9,165

10,220

19,385

65,2

34,9

44,7

Overtime
(R’000)

73

0

73

Overtime as
% of

Personnel
Cost

0,5

0

0,2

HOA
(R’000)

194

232

426

HOA as %
of Personnel

 Cost

1,4

0,8

1

Medical Aid
(R’000)

585

690

1,275

Medical Aid
as % of

Personnel
 Cost

4,2

2,4

2,9

Table 2.4 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Salary Band

Salary Bands

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

Salaries as %
of Personnel

Cost

Overtime
(R’000)

Overtime as
% of

Personnel
Cost

HOA
(R’000)

HOA as % of
Personnel

Cost

Medical Ass.
(R’000)

Medical Ass.
As % of

Personnel
Cost

Highly skilled
supervision (Levels 9-12)

Senior Management
(Levels 13-16)

Contract (Levels 3-5)

Contract (Levels 6-8)

Abnormal Appointment
(Levels 13-16)

Total

Salaries
(R‘000)

62

1,128

7,071

6,979

3,508

141

490

6

19,385

51,7

73,3

72,6

71,6

48

87,6

91,4

0

44,7

0

9

28

9

0

15

12

0

73

0

0,6

0,3

0,1

0

9,3

2,2

0

0,2

4

45

172

181

24

0

0

0

426

3,3

2,9

 1,8

1,9

0,3

0

0

0

1

12

129

642

354

132

0

6

0

1,275

10

8,4

6,6

3,6

1,8

0

1,1

0

2,9

Lower skilled
(Levels 1-2)

Highly skilled
production (Levels 6-8)
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Table 3.2  - Employment and Vacancies by Salary Band

Salary Band

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), Permanent

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8),
Permanent

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12),
Permanent

Senior Management (Levels 13-16),
Permanent

Contract (Levels 3-5) temporary

Contract (Levels 6-8) temporary

Total

1

24

71

37

10

3

4

150

0

48,9

 64,3

30,2

16,7

0

0

53

0

0

0

0

0

1

4

5

1

 47

199

53

12

3

4

319

Number of Posts Number of
Posts Filled

Vacancy Rate Number of Posts Filled
Additional to the

Establishment

3. EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

The Department of Sport and Recreation has an approved organisational structure comprising of 319 posts. Due to an extremely limited
budget, the Department is currently operating with a 53% vacancy rate. Despite this, the commitment of staff has ensured that service delivery
is still achieved.

Table 3.1 – Employment and Vacancies by Programme at end of period

Number of PostsProgramm Number of Posts
Filled

Vacancy Rate Number of Posts Filled
Additional to the

Establishment

Administration

Sports Co-ordination

Total

87

232

319

71

79

150

18,4

65,9

53

1

4

5
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Table 3.3 – Employment and Vacancies by Critical Occupation

Critical Occupations Number of Posts Number of
Posts Filled

Vacancy Rate Number of Posts
Filled Additional to
the Establishment

Administrative related

Auxiliary and related workers

Cleaners in offices workshops hospitals etc.

Communication and information related

Finance and economics related

Financial and related professionals

Financial clerks and credit controllers

Head of department/chief executive officer

Human resources and organizational
development and related personnel

Human resources clerks, permanent

Human resources related, permanent

Library mail and related clerks

Logistical support personnel

MEC

Motor vehicle drivers

Other administrative and related
clerks and organizers,

Other administrative policy and related officers

Other occupations

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks

Senior managers

Total

21

0

1

1

2

6

3

1

1

3

9

3

25

1

4

13

31

7

9

8

150

30

100

0

0

66,7

50

57,1

0

66,7

0

25

40

79,5

0

4

50

38

41,7

18,2

 20

53

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

5

30

1

1

1

6

12

7

1

3

3

12

5

122

1

4

26

50

12

11

10

319

Information Technology related 1 0 01
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4. JOB EVALUATION

The Management Advisory Services Unit is tasked with ensuring that the Department has an effective organogram to deliver on its strategic
objectives. It also has the responsibility of ensuring that all employees are performing their functions in line with their job titles. The Department
of Sport and Recreation utilises the services of the Provincial Job Evaluation Panel to evaluate all jobs.

Table 4.1 – Job Evaluation

Salary Band

Contract (Levels 3-5)

Number of
Jobs

Evaluated

% of Posts
Evaluated

Number of
Posts

Upgraded

% of
Upgraded

Posts
Evaluated

Number of
Posts

Downgraded

% of
Downgraded

Posts
Evaluated

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

Senior Management Service Band A

Senior Management Service Band B

Senior Management Service Band C

Number
of Posts

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

Contract (Levels 6-8)

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

Total

1

3

199

53

6

4

2

4

47

319

-

-

2

6

0

1

0

-

1

10

-

-

1

11,3

0

25

0

-

2.1

3,1

-

-

1

2

0

1

0

-

-

4

-

-

50

33,3

0

0

0

-

-

83,3

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Table 4.2 – Profile of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded

Beneficiaries

Female

Male

Employees with disability

African Asian Coloured TotalWhite

Total

1

1

0

2

1

1

0

2

2

2

0

4

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Table 4.3 and Table 4.4 – Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by Job Evaluation (i.t.o PSR 1.V.C.3)

Nil
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5. EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

Table 5.1 - Annual Turnover Rates by Salary Band

Salary Band

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), Permanent

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8),
Permanent

Highly skilled supervision (levels 9-12),
Permanent

Senior Management Service Band A,
Permanent

Senior Management Service Band B,
Permanent

Senior Management Service Band C,
Permanent

Contract (Levels 3-5)

Employment at
Beginning of Period

(April 2007)

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Contract (Levels 6-8)

Total

0

16

13

6

1

0

0

14

12

62

1

2

4

1

1

0

0

12

10

31

50

20

6,5

3,1

14,3

0

0

1200

500

26,1

2

10

62

32

7

2

1

1

2

119
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Table 5.2 – Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation

Occupation

Administrative related, Permanent

Communication and information related

Financial and related professional, permanent

Financial clerks and credit controllers, permanent

Human resources and organisational
development and relate

Human resources clerks, Permanent

Human resources related, Permanent

Employment at
Beginning of

Period (April 2007)

Appointments Terminations Turnover Rate

Information technology related

Library mail and related clerks, Permanent

Logistical support personnel, permanent

Messengers porters and deliverers, Permanent

Motor vehicle drivers, Permanent

Other administrative and related clerks and
organisers

Other administrative policy and related
officers, Permanent

Other occupations

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks,
Permanent

Senior Managers, Permanent

Trade Labourers, Permanent

Total

Finance and economics related, Permanent

16

1

5

0

0

1

4

2

2

0

3

7

9

6

2

1

0

62

2

1

11

0

1

0

1

0

0

0

4

0

2

1

2

6

1

0

1

31

1

0

100

0

50

0

50

0

0

0

18,2

0

100

11,1

7,4

46,2

14,3

0

100

26,1

100

0

11

0

2

7

2

5

4

1

22

1

2

9

27

13

7

4

1

119

1

0
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Table 5.3 – Reasons why staff are leaving the department

Termination Type

Resignation, Permanent

Expiry of contract, Permanent

Total

Number Percentage of
Total  Resignations

Percentage of
TotalEmployment

Total
Employment

Total

Retirement, Permanent

29

64,5

100

3,2

7,6

16,8

26,1

0,8

119

119

119

119

9

20

31

1

31

31

31

31

Table 5.4 – Promotions by Critical Occupation

Occupation

Administrative related

Finance and economic related

Financial clerks and credit controllers

Employment at
Beginning of Period

(April 2007)

Promotions
to another

Salary Level

Salary level
Promotions as a

% of Employment

Notch progressions
as a % of

Employment

Progressions to
another Notch

within Salary Level

Financial and related professionals

Human resources and organisation
development and related

Library mail and related clerks

Human resources related

Human resources clerks

Motor vehicle drivers

Messengers porters and deliverers

Logistical support personnel

Other administrative and related clerks
and organisers

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks

Other occupations

Other administrative policy and related officers

Senior managers

Total

Trade labourers

2

1

3

1

0

0

2

0

0

0

1

0

1

1

0

1

13

0

18,2

100

42,9

50

0

0

50

0

0

0

4,5

0

14,3

7,7

0

25

10,9

0

54,5

0

85,7

50

0

100

75

100

50

100

68,2

66,7

85,7

76,9

81,5

75

72.3

0

11

1

7

2

2

1

4

5

2

1

22

9

7

13

27

4

119

1

6

0

6

1

0

1

3

5

1

1

15

0

6

10

22

3

86

0
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Table 5.5 – Promotions by Salary Band

Salary Band

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2), Permanent

Skilled (Levels 3-5), Permanent

Employment at
Beginning of Period

(April 2007)

Promotions
to another

Salary Level

Salary level
Promotions as a

% of Employment

Notch
progressions as a
% of Employment

Progressions to
another Notch

within Salary Level

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8),
Permanent

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12),
Permanent

Contract (Levels 6-8), Permanent

Contract (Levels 3-5), Permanent

Total

Senior Management (Levels 13-16),
Permanent

0

1

5

6

0

0

13

1

0

10

8.1

18.8

0

0

10.9

10

50

70

82.3

65.6

0

0

72,3

60

2

10

62

32

2

1

119

10

1

7

51

21

0

0

86

6

Occupational Categories
(SASCO)

Legislators, senior officials
and mangers, Permanent

Professionals, Permanent

Males

A WI

Females

6. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Table 6.1 – Total number of Employees (incl. Employees with disabilities) per Occupational Category

Total

C A WIC

Clerks, Permanent

Plant and machine
operators and
assemblers, Permanent

Elementary occupations,
Permanent

Total

3

34

2

1

5

45

0

0

0

0

1

1

3

7

2

0

3

15

0

5

1

0

0

6

2

33

16

0

5

56

1

8

9

0

1

19

0

1

1

0

0

2

10

89

35

1

15

150

1

1

4

0

0

6
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Table 6.2 – Total number of Employees (incl. employees with disabilities) per Occupational Bands

Occupational Categories

Top Management,
Permanent

Males

A WI

Females Total

C A WIC

Contract (Semi skilled)

Professionally qualified and
experienced specialists

Top Management,
Permanent

Skilled technical and
academically qualified workers

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making, Permanent

Unskilled and defined decision
making, Permanent

Contract (Skilled technical)

Total

0

0

10

3

25

4

0

3

45

0

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

1

1

1

7

2

3

1

0

0

15

0

0

4

0

2

0

0

0

6

0

2

12

2

24

14

1

0

56

0

0

4

1

10

4

0

0

19

0

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

2

1

3

38

9

70

24

1

4

150

0

0

1

1

3

1

0

1

6

Table 6.3 – Recruitment

Occupational Bands

Professionally qualified
and experienced specialist

Males

A WI

Females Total

C A WIC

Skilled technical and
academically qualified worker

Contract (Skilled technical),
permanent

Total

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making

Contract (Semi-skilled),
permanent

0

6

5

14

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

0

2

6

0

3

0

1

0

1

0

0

0

4

3

21

9

5

0

2

0

7

4

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

13

10

49

16

9

0

0

0

0

0

0
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Table 6.4– Promotions

Occupational Bands

Senior Management,
permanent

Males

A WI

Females Total

C A WIC

Total

Skilled technical and
academically qualified worker

Professionally qualified
and experienced specialist

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making, permanent

Unskilled and defined
decision making permanently

0

1

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

1

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

4

0

2

1

0

0

4

2

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

1

13

4

7

1

0

0

2

1

1

0

0

Table 6.5 – Terminations

Occupational Bands Males

A WI

Females Total

C A WIC

Skilled technical and
academically qualified worker

Contract (Skilled technical),
Permanent

Total

Senior management

Professionally qualified
and experienced specialist

Semi-skilled and discretionary
decision making, permanent

Unskilled and defined
decision making permanently

Contract (Semi-skilled),
Permanent

3

5

10

0

0

0

1

1

1

0

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

2

6

1

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

10

0

0

1

0

6

0

0

3

0

1

0

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

4

10

31

1

1

2

1

12

0

0

1

0

0

1

0

0

Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00
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Table 6.7 – Skills Development

6.6 Disciplinary Action
There was no formal disciplinary action taken against any employee for the period 01 April 2007 to 31 March 2008.

Skills Development
The Department exceeded its training objectives as 118 staff were trained.  The staff targeted for the Skills Programme and other short

courses conducted during the 2007 / 2008 financial year are reflected as follows:

Skills Development

Legislators, Senior
Officials and Managers

Males

A WI

Females Total

C A WIC

Professionals, permanent

Plant and Machine
Operators and Assemblers

Total

Clerks, permanent

Elementary Occupations

3

1

34

24

6

0

0

0

1

1

0

0

2

0

9

6

1

0

0

0

6

4

2

0

2

0

48

21

24

1

1

0

13

5

7

0

0

0

2

1

1

0

8

1

118

63

45

1

0

0

5

1

4

0
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7. PERFORMANCE REWARDS

TABLE 7.1 – Performance Rewards by Race, Gender and Disability

Demographics

African, Female

African, Male

Number of
Beneficiaries

Total
Employment

Cost
(R’000)

Percentage of
Total Employment

Total Blacks, Male

Total Blacks, Female

White, Female

Asian, Female

Asian, Male

Coloured, Female

Coloured, Male

White, Male

Total

4

4

11

11

1

4

6

3

0

1

23

56

45

61

81

2

19

15

6

1

6

150

48

68

257

114

5

25

189

41

0

7

383

7,1

8,9

16,4

13,6

50

21,1

40

50

0

16,7

15,3

TABLE 7.2 – Performance Rewards by Salary Band for Personnel below Senior Management Services

Salary Band

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2)

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

Numbers Of
Beneficiaries

Total
Employment

Cost
(R’000)

Percentage of
Total Employment

Total

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

Contract (Levels 3-5)

Contract (Levels 6-8)

0

3

16

9

4

0

0

1

24

141

71

37

3

5

0

11

128

52

65

0

0

0

12.5

1,4

12,7

10,8

0

0
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TABLE 7.3 – Performance Rewards by Critical Occupation

Occupation

Administrative related

Communication and information related

Numbers Of
Beneficiaries

Total
Employment

Cost
(R’000)

Percentage of Total
Employment

Information technology related

Human resource related

Library mail and related clerks

Finance and economic related

Financial and related professionals

Financial clerks and credit controllers

Human resource clerks

Logistical support personnel

Messengers porters and deliverers

Motor vehicle drivers

Other admin and related clerks and organizers

Other admin policy and related officers

Other occupations

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks

Senior managers

Total

5

0

0

1

0

0

1

6

0

0

0

0

1

1

3

3

2

23

22

1

1

7

3

1

4

7

5

16

1

1

12

34

15

9

11

150

182

0

0

14

0

0

4

39

0

0

0

0

3

5

71

15

50

383

22,7

0

0

14,3

0

0

25

85,7

0

0

0

0

8,3

2,9

20

33,3

27,3

16

Salary Band

Band A

Band B

Numbers Of
Beneficiaries

Total
Employment

Cost
(R’000)

Percentage of
Total Employment

Band C

Total

6

1

0

7

6

2

1

9

171

83

0

254

100

50

0

77,8

TABLE 7.4 – Performance Related Rewards (Cash Bonus) by Salary Band for Senior Management Services
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8. LEAVE UTILISATION

Table 8.1 – Sick Leave from January 2007 to December 2007

Salary Band Number of
Employees
using Sick

Leave

% of Total
Employees
using Sick

Leave

Average
Days per

Employee

Estimated
Cost

(R’000)

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

Total Days % Days with
Medical

Certification

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

Senior management (Levels 13-16)

Contract (Levels 6-8)

Total

90,6

89,7

86,7

91,7

33,3

88,8

12

8

8

5

3

9

36

112

179

50

1

378

149

290

188

24

3

654

35

23

5

12

1

76

46,1

6,6

15,8

30,3

100

1,3

Table 8.2 – Disability Leave (Temporary and Permanent) from January 2007 to December 2007

Salary Band Number of
Employees

using Disability
Leave

% of Total
Employees

using Disability
Leave

Average
Days per

Employee

Estimated Cost
(R’000)

Skilled (Levels 3-5)

Total Days % Days with
Medical

Certification

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

Total

100

100

100

100

4

5

42

17

1

2

55

58

4

5

42

51

1

1

3

1

33,3

100

33,3

33,3
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Table 8.3 – Annual Leave from January 2007 to December 2007

Salary Band Average days
per Employee

Number of Employees
who took leave

Lower skilled (levels 1-2)

Total Days Taken

Skilled (levels 3-5)

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8)

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12)

Senior management (Level 13-16)

Contract (Levels 3-5)

Contract (Levels 6-8)

47

235

1,088

706

168

9

10

2,263

24

12

17

18

17

5

5

16

2

19

65

39

10

2

2

139Total

Table 8.4 – Capped Leave from January 2007 to December 2007

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12)

Total

Total days
of capped

 leave taken

Average number
of days taken
per employee

Average capped leave
per employee as

at 31 December 2006

Number of
Employees who

took capped leave

17

17

9

9

101

101

2

2

Table 8.5 – Leave Payouts

Reason

Capped leave payouts on termination
of service for 2007 / 2008

Total Amount
(R’000)

Number of Employees Average payment
per Employee (R’000)

Capped leave payouts on termination
of service for 2007 / 2008

Total

65

100

35

7

13

6

9,286

7,692

5,833
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9.1 – Details of Health Promotion and HIV and AIDS Programmes

9. HIV AND AIDS AND HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES

Steps taken to reduce risk of occupational exposure

The Department conducted Life skills training, which includes issues related to HIV and Aids, for the Mass Participation Programme (MPP)
and School Sport Mass Participation Programme (SSMPP) contract employees. These contract employees promote sport and recreation in the
schools and hubs in the communities.

HIV and Aids Awareness Programmes have been identified as a training need and stipulated in the Department’s Workplace Skills Plan for
the 2008 / 2009 financial year. Whilst the Department does not have specific funding for HIV and Aids, funding for the Awareness Programmes
will be taken from the Training Budget.

Despite the absence of a dedicated budget for matters related to HIV and Aids, the Department does address this issue when sport and
recreation programmes are run within the communities. At such sport and recreation events, partnerships with Local Government, Lovelife and
the Department of Health ensure that a platform for Aids Awareness is created.

The Department continues to subscribe to a Wellness magazine, the “Ripple Effect”, which addresses issues such as HIV and AIDS, gender,
women abuse, workplace stress and general health issues. This monthly magazine is distributed to all staff.

Has the Department designated a member of the SMS
to implement the provisions contained in Part VI E of
Chapter 1 of the Public Service Regulations, 2001? If so,
provide her /his name and position.

Question Yes Details, if yes

Mrs A. Ally – Manager:  HRM

No

1

Does the department have a dedicated unit or has it
designated specific staff members to promote the health
and well being of your employees?

Health and Wellness forms part of the responsibilities of
the HRD Sub-Directorate. Due to limited staffing, the
Department does not currently have a practitioner
dedicated to Heath and Wellness.

2

Has the Department introduced an Employee
Assistance Programme or Health Promotion
Programme for your employees?

HR Practitioners are trained.3

Has the Department established (a) committee (s) as
contemplated in Part VI E5 (e) of Chapter 1 of the Public
Service Regulations, 2001? If so please provide the names
of the members of the committee.

Due to staff shortages one Committee dealing with
both Employee Wellness and HIV and Aids issues
is established.

4

Has the Department reviewed its employment policies
and practices to ensure that these do not unfairly
discriminate against employees on the basis of their
HIV status?

5

Has the Department introduced measures to
protect HIV positive employees or those perceived to be
HIV positive from discrimination? If so, list the key
elements of these measures

6

Does the Department encourage its employees to
undergo voluntary counseling and testing?

7

Has the Department developed measures/indicators to
monitor and evaluate the impact of its programme?
If so, list these measures.

8

�

�

�

�

�

�
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10.  LABOUR RELATIONS

For the year under review, the Department has a nil return for the following:

• Collective agreements

• Misconducts and disciplinary hearings finalized

• Disputes lodged

• Precautionary suspensions

Number of grievances addressed

Total

Number

1

Perentage of Total Total

11

Table 10.1 Grievances lodges

Strike Actions

Total number of person working days lost

Table 10.2 Strike Actions

Total cost of working days lost

Amount recovered as a result of no work no pay

63,13 days

R 18,369.58

R 18,369.58
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Occupational Categories Learnerships Skills
Programmes

and other
short courses

Other
forms of
Training

Total

Clerks

Plant and machine operators
and assemblers

Elementary occupations

Legislators, senior officials
and managers

Professionals

Total

Gender Employment

Gender Sub Totals

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Male

Female

Female

Male

Male

Female

Male

3

5

36

9

0

1

1

28

35

0

68

50

118

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

5

36

9

0

1

1

28

35

0

68

50

118

3

5

36

9

0

1

1

28

35

0

68

50

118

11.  SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Table 11.1 and 11.2
Training Needs identified and provided
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Project Title

Financial Support

Total number of
consultants that

worked on the project

4

Duration :
Work Days

Contract value
in Rand

R1,747,000

Table 13.2 – Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals (HDIs)

Project Title

Financial Support

Percentage
ownership

by HDI groups

Percentage
management

by HDI groups

Number of consultants
from HDI groups that
work on the project

12. INJURY ON DUTY

There were no injuries on duty cases reported during the year under review

13. UTILISATION OF CONSULTANTS

Table 13.1 – Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds

13.3  Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds
No consultants have been appointed using Donor funds

Strategic support to Recreation and Mass
Participation Programmes

1 R208,667

Total number of projects

2

Total individual consultants

492

194

Duration of working days Contract value in Rand

2 R1,955,667

100 100 4

Strategic support to Recreation and Mass
Participation Programmes

100 100 1
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